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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the review of operating results for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and outlook of the Group.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$486,321,000, representing a significant increase
of 85.29% over that of HK$262,463,000 of 2020. The consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$32,552,000 for the year under review, representing a decrease
of 49.80% over that of HK$64,848,000 of 2020. Basic and diluted
loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was 2.70
Hong Kong cents (2020: 5.38 Hong Kong cents). As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s total assets and net assets reached approximately
HK$428,059,000 and approximately HK$82,915,000 respectively.
The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the expansion in
business scale of the mineral concentrates trading business relating
to nickel cathodes and the newly added property management
services business segment during the reporting year. The significant
decrease in the loss attributable to owners of the Company was
primarily attributable to (a) the support of nickel prices from nickel
cathode production and the resumption of production in downstream
markets boosting the demand for nickel, resulting in higher sales
volumes and prices and profit margins for the Group’s products;
(b) the Group entered into new agreements with related parties
for property entrusted management and operation, solicitation of
business, and leasing services during the reporting year, adding
approximately HK$14,317,000 (2020: nil) to the Group’s property
management services revenue and a segment profit of approximately
HK$13,041,000 (2020: nil); (c) the recognition of fair value losses
on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
and the recognition of fair value losses on investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$1,954,000 (2020: HK$4,075,000) and
approximately HK$2,322,000 (2020: fair value gain of HK$1,970,000)
respectively; and (d) although the Group‘s administrative expenses
increased to approximately HK$55,662,000 from approximately
HK$45,971,000, which was mainly due to substantial increase in the
net foreign exchange loss, the Group recognised the other operating
income in an amount of approximately HK$10,316,000, compared to
the other operating expenses of approximately HK$7,503,000 for the
corresponding year of 2020.

DIVIDENDS

According to the Company’s dividend policy and in order to reserve
sufficient funds for the Group’s future development and operation, the
Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
(2020: nil).
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OUTLOOK

Since early 2020, the COVID-19 coronavirus outbreak has spread
across the PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of
the Group to some extent. In the face of the economic recession and
uncertainties, the Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. At the same time, we will
closely monitor how China’s macroeconomy and policies and changes
in the global economy, political landscapes, market environment and
competition will affect the Company, and continue to optimize its
operations to maintain the sustainable long-term growth of the Group.

On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
cautiously and comprehensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable business
development. The Group will also actively seek opportunities and make
effective use of the resources at our disposal and viable business
opportunities for development and optimization of its asset allocation.
The Group will continue to expand the scale of the property investment
business segment and property management services business
segment and introduce more profitable businesses in due course with
an aim to improving its profitability, increasing shareholder returns, and
laying a solid foundation for its future development.

Looking into the future, the management of the Group believes that,
leveraging on the experience and resources of the Group’s controlling
shareholders and adhering to the principle of investing in value, the
Group will strive to consolidate and develop its existing businesses,
while cautiously and carefully focusing on and develop the Group’s
investments and business development opportunities at home and
abroad, consistently exercising cost and risk control, strengthening
its financial position, and striving to reduce the adverse impact of
COVID-19 and the downturn in global economy on its business
operations. Leveraging on the experience and support of the Group’s
controlling shareholders, the management is committed to grasping
and creating business opportunities with a view to bringing long-term
and substantial returns to shareholders and the Group.

Trading in the Company’s shares has been suspended with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 15 February 2022 and shall remain suspended until
further notice. The Company is taking appropriate steps to resolve the
issue(s) causing its trading suspension and will strive to resume trading
in the Company’s shares as soon as possible.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
valued shareholders for their unwavering trust in the Group over
the years, to our business partners and clients for their long-term
support, and to the entire management team and all staff for their
efforts and dedication. We will continue to intensify our efforts to
strengthen and develop our existing businesses while remaining open
to explore new investment opportunities so as to achieve long-term
strategic transformation and will strive to create the best returns for our
shareholders.

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Year”), the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded revenue
of approximately HK$486,321,000, representing a significant increase
of 85.29% over HK$262,463,000 of last year. The increase in revenue
was mainly attributable to the expansion in business scale of the
trading of mineral concentrates business relating to nickel cathodes
with increased trading volume and amount during the Reporting Year.
The Group’s gross profit during the Reporting Year was approximately
HK$20,011,000 (2020: HK$944,000), thanks to the contribution from
the trading of mineral concentrates business segment and the property
management services business segment. Although the Group’s
administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$55,662,000
from approximately HK$45,971,000 (restated), which was mainly
attributable to the substantial increase in the net foreign exchange
loss recorded by the Group during the Reporting Year (i.e increasing
from approximately HK$15,134,000 to approximately HK$22,225,000),
the Group was able to mitigate the loss for the Reporting Year from
continuing operations to approximately HK$32,222,000, compared to
a restated amount of approximately HK$52,647,000 for 2020, thanks
to the other operating net income of approximately HK$10,316,000
for the Reporting Year (2020: restated other operating net expenses
of HK$7,503,000). Coupled with loss on a discontinued operation
of approximately HK$3,793,000 (2020: HK$20,799,000 (restated)),
the Group recognised loss of approximately HK$36,015,000 (2020:
HK$73,446,000). Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations attributable to shareholders of the Company
was HK cents 2.70 (2020: HK cents 5.38).

OPERATION REVIEW
Trading of mineral concentrates business

During the Reporting Year, the trading of mineral concentrates business
segment principally operates in two main aspects: (1) Overseas Nickel
Trading-sourcing mineral concentrates (branded electrolytic nickel
cathodes) from Russia and exporting them to the trading intermediates
and end customers in the PRC and (2) Onshore Nickel Trading-sourcing
nickel concentrates in the PRC and selling them to the end customers
in the PRC. In view of the uncertainty surrounding the business
environment in Peru, the trading business in Peru has been temporarily
terminated during the Reporting Year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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During the Reporting Year, with regard to the Overseas Nickel Trading,
with limited availability of product supply, the Group was only able to
trade an aggregate volume of approximately more than 1,733 tons
(2020: more than 2,390 tons) of nickel, with revenue of approximately
HK$248,599,000 (2020: HK$252,337,000) being recognised by the
Group. However, this product stream continued to enable the Group to
strengthen its revenue base in this business segment.

During the year under review, thanks to the strengthening of domestic
demand for imported nickel products, which is mainly due to the
progressive recovery of the production momentum, the Group
experienced rise in the selling price and strived to secure a higher profit
margin for its products. As a result, the Group recorded gross profit of
approximately HK$2,817,000 (2020: gross loss of HK$1,058,000) for
its Overseas Nickel Trading.

During the Reporting Year, as a result of the strong domestic demand
for nickel product, as regards the Onshore Nickel Trading, the Group
engaged to commence sourcing of nickel products in the domestic
market of the PRC and to sell to end customers in the PRC thanks to
a strong customer base the Group has been capturing. The Group has
been able to trade an aggregate volume of more than 1,479 tonnes of
nickel products during the year under review (2020: nil), with revenue of
approximately HK$218,479,000 being recognised by the Group.

Based on the foregoing, during the Reporting Year, the business
of trading of mineral concentrates recorded a segment profit of
approximately HK$1,618,000 (2020: loss of HK$3,025,000).

Securities investments

During the Reporting Year, the Group made alteration to its investment
portfolio by investing in additional 850,000 shares of a Hong Kong
listed company engaged in financial services, leading to an aggregate
shareholding of 5,820,000 shares in that company. As at 31 December
2021, the Group recognised relevant fair value loss on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) — held for
trading of approximately HK$1,954,000 (2020: HK$4,075,000), the
negative impact of which has been eliminated with a dividend income
related to the investment of approximately HK$1,335,000 (2020:
HK$1,249,000).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EAAERLF
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Construction material business

Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji”) has been in
suspension of production since August 2016 after the suspension in
supply of granulated steel slag for production in March 2016 by the
sole supplier. During the Reporting Year, the Group received a civil
ruling dated 26 January 2021 issued by the Intermediate People’s
Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province, the PRC (“Loudi Intermediate
Court”), pursuant to which Hunan Taiji was requested to proceed to
the mandatory dissolution order (the “Mandatory Dissolution Ruling”).
On 15 April 2021, Loudi Intermediate Court reiterated its ruling with
the formation of a dissolution team to proceed with the Mandatory
Dissolution Ruling. Therefore, it was concluded that since 15 April
2021, the Group has lost control of Hunan Taiji, which was reclassified
as a discontinued operation of the Group during the Reporting Year.
Accordingly, Hunan Taiji was de-consolidated from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group with effect from the same date and
recognised as equity investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

On 11 October 2021, the Loudi Intermediate Court ruled and confirmed
the dissolution proposal (the “Dissolution Proposal”), including, inter
alias, the procedures to dispose of the tangible and intangible assets
of Hunan Taiji (the “Liquidated Assets”) by way of open tender.
The Ligquidated Assets include (i) the land use right of a parcel of
state-owned land with an area of approximately 88,000 square meters
located at Loudi City Economic Development Zone in Hunan province,
the PRC (the “Land”); (i) the buildings on the Land; (iii) two production
lines of each with a designed annual production capacity of 600,000
tons slag powder; and (iv) inventories of consumables and parts.

On 17 December 2021, a purchaser submitted the tender and
successfully bid for the Liquidated Assets at a consideration of
RMB80,080,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$97,698,000) (the
“Consideration”). Subsequently on 20 December 2021, JE R i &£ H
BBR A 7B (“Lianyuan Steel”), which owns 40% equity interest in Hunan
Taiji, exercised the right of first refusal which was granted under the
Dissolution Proposal and offered to the dissolution team the same
Consideration for the Liquidated Assets. The Group agreed to the offer
from Lianyuan Steel.

In April 2022, the Group received RMB24,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$29,098,000) from the dissolution team for the first
distribution of proceeds from the mandatory dissolution of Hunan
Taiji. Up to the date of this annual report, the mandatory dissolution of
Hunan Taiji is still in progress.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has recognised a loss of
approximately HK$3,793,000 (2020: HK$20,799,000) from the
discontinued operation, which was made up by operating loss of
approximately HK$8,610,000 (2020: HK$20,799,000), and a gain on
deemed disposal of Hunan Taiji of approximately HK$4,817,000 (2020:
nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS =

Coal mining business

As the estimated revenue is unable to support its operating costs and
the production costs, the production of the two mines under the coal
mining business have been suspended since March 2019. Meanwhile,
Peru was adversely affected under the COVID-19 coronavirus outbreak
(the “Pandemic Outbreak”) and the relevant government has imposed
certain restrictions throughout the country since March 2020. Hence,
the Group’s coal mines operations in Peru have been greatly disrupted
since March 2020.

During the Reporting Year, this business segment recorded revenue
of nil (2020: HK$119,000) and a segment loss of approximately
HK$22,797,000 (2020: HK$14,295,000).

Since the Group expects the production will continue to incur loss
and given the Pandemic Outbreak, the Group expects that the two
mines will not resume production until the economic recovery from the
Pandemic Outbreak emerges.

Property investment and development

During the Reporting Year, the segment of property investment and
development recorded a segment loss of approximately HK$1,012,000
(2020: segment gain of HK$3,101,000).

Investment properties in Beijing

During the Reporting Year, the rental income from property leasing
in Beijing, the PRC was approximately HK$4,398,000 (2020:
HK$4,112,000). These investment properties in Beijing recorded fair
value loss of approximately HK$2,322,000 (2020: fair value gain of
HK$1,970,000) in respect of the revaluation, which mainly accounted
for the loss in this business segment. Notwithstanding these, the
Group expects these investment properties in Beijing currently held on
hand will keep generating a stable rental income stream and capture
potential appreciation in future.

Property management services

On 8 February 2021 and 14 July 2021, the Group entered into
agreements with Macrolink Development and Investment Limited
(“Macrolink Development and Investment”) and Macrolink Holding Co.,
Ltd., respectively, to provide property operation and management,
solicitation of business and tenants and other related services in
relation to certain owned and entrusted properties. The Group
achieved to recognise a property management income of approximately
HK$14,317,000 during the Reporting Year (2020: nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the Reporting Year, the Group entered into a lease agreement,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to lease properties comprising
395 guest rooms and certain ancillary facilities (i.e. kitchens, warehouse
and restaurant) located in Fengtai District, Beijing with a total usable
property area of 26,058.90 square meters (the “Properties”) for a
term commencing from 5 July 2021 and ending on 31 December
2032. The leasing of the Properties is intended for use by the Group
as short-term or long-term rental serviced apartments with ancillary
business premises such as catering and convenience stores. Due to
the ongoing pandemic situation arising from the Pandemic Outbreak in
the PRC and that the Properties were requisitioned as the temporary
ancillary facilities for the Beijing Winter Olympics Games in the fourth
quarter of 2021, the Group did not recognise any income relating to the
Properties during the Reporting Year.

Based on the above, the Group was able to recognise a profit of
approximately HK$13,041,000 (2020: nil) in this business segment.

OUTLOOK

Since early 2020, the Pandemic Outbreak has spread across the
PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of the
Group to some extent. In the face of the economic recession and
uncertainties, the Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. At the same time, we will
closely monitor how China’s macroeconomy and policies and changes
in the global economy, political landscapes, market environment and
competition will affect the Company, and continue to optimize its
operations to maintain the sustainable long-term growth of the Group.

On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
cautiously and comprehensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable business
development. The Group will also actively seek opportunities and make
effective use of the resources at our disposal and viable business
opportunities for development and optimization of its asset allocation.
The Group will continue to expand the scale of the property investment
business segment and property management services business
segment and introduce more profitable businesses in due course with
an aim to improving its profitability, increasing shareholder returns, and
laying a solid foundation for its future development.
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Looking into the future, the management of the Group believes that,
leveraging on the experience and resources of the Group’s controlling
shareholders and adhering to the principle of investing in value, the
Group will strive to consolidate and develop its existing businesses,
while cautiously and carefully focusing on and develop the Group’s
investments and business development opportunities at home and
abroad, consistently exercising cost and risk control, strengthening
its financial position, and striving to reduce the adverse impact of
COVID-19 and the downturn in global economy on its business
operations. Leveraging on the experience and support of the Group’s
controlling shareholders, the management is committed to grasping
and creating business opportunities with a view to bringing long-term
and substantial returns to shareholders and the Group.

Trading in the Company’s shares has been suspended with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 15 February 2022 and shall remain suspended until
further notice. The Company is taking appropriate steps to resolve the
issue(s) causing its trading suspension and will strive to resume trading
in the Company’s shares as soon as possible.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total equity amounted to
approximately HK$82,915,000 (31 December 2020: HK$119,002,000),
representing a decrease of 30.32% compared with that as at 31
December 2020. The Group’s current ratio as at 31 December 2021
was 0.69 (31 December 2020: 0.71). The Group’s gearing ratio,
expressed as a ratio of total interest-bearing other borrowings to total
assets as at 31 December 2021, was 0.07 (31 December 2020: 0.11).

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group had secured other loan and
unsecured other loan amounting to HK$22,000,000 (31 December
2020: HK$23,000,000) and HK$6,115,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$5,980,000), respectively. The secured other loan is denominated
in HKS$, interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum and after extension in
January 2022, the repayment date has been extended to January
2023. In April 2022, the Group repaid HK$14,000,000 of the secured
other loan and after repayment, there was an outstanding principal
amount of HK$8,000,000. The unsecured other loan is denominated in
RMB, interest-bearing at 9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
totaled approximately HK$113,943,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$6,830,000), which were mainly denominated in HK$, US$, RMB
and Soles.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had aggregate banking and
other facilities of approximately HK$22,000,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$32,568,000) and had no unutilised banking and other facilities (31
December 2020: HK$9,568,000) available for drawdown.

The Group recorded net loss of approximately HK$36,015,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and it had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$87,493,000 as at 31 December 2021. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as going concerns.

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure:

(@) Continuing implementing comprehensive policies to monitor cash
flows through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

(b) Exploring the possibility and speeding up the process of disposing
assets of the Group to enhance its liquidity position;

(c) Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include funding
from related companies of the Group;

(d) Obtaining financial support from two related companies to
which the Group was indebted in an amount of RMB19,000,000
(approximately HK$23,304,000) and HK$150,000,000
respectively, as at 31 December 2021. The related companies
have undertaken not to request for repayment of the total indebted
amounts for twelve months from the date of this annual report;
and

(e) Re-exploring the property management services business segment
by entering into entrusted property operation and management
contracts with related companies of the Group, as well as
by developing into service-based operation of rental serviced
apartments, thereby generating stable income and operating cash
flows to the Group.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account of the
above measures covering a period of sixteen months from the end of
the reporting period prepared by the management, the directors of the
Company consider the Group would be able to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due or will
be falling due in coming twelve months. Accordingly, the financial
information has been prepared on a going concern basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Reporting Year, there have been no change in the
issued share capital of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the
Company’s number of issued ordinary shares was 1,206,249,251.

GROUP STRUCTURE

Apart from (i) the reclassification of the investment in Hunan Taiji from
investment in subsidiary to equity investments at FVTPL; and (ii) five
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company being deregistered, there
has been no change in the structure of the Group during the Reporting
Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (31 December 2020: nil).

On 5 March 2021, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interests of
Macrolink Development and Investment at a total consideration of
HK$186,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).

Deposit of HK$50,000,000 has been paid to the Vendor pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, with the first instalment of
HK$33,000,000 and the second instalment of HK$103,000,000 to
be paid upon completion of the Acquisition and mortgage release
of the certain properties of Macrolink Development and Investment,
respectively. Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5 March 2021 and 30
December 2021.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Acquisition has not been
completed.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)’s Decision on the Company’s Non-Compliance
with Rule 13.24 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Trading in the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 15 February 2022.

The Company has received a letter dated 13 August 2021 from
the Stock Exchange notifying the Company of its decision that the
Company has failed to maintain a sufficient level of operations and
assets of sufficient value to support its operations under Rule 13.24 of
the Listing Rules to warrant the continued listing of the Shares, and that
the trading of the Shares will be suspended under Rule 6.01(3) of the
Listing Rules (the “Decision”).

On 23 August 2021, the Company lodged a request for the Decision
to be reviewed by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange,
which decided to uphold the Decision on 18 November 2021 (the
“LC Decision”). On 26 November 2021, the Company submitted a
written request for the LC Decision to be referred to the Listing Review
Committee of the Stock Exchange for review under Chapter 2B of the
Listing Rules.

On 21 January 2022, the Listing Review Committee conducted a
review hearing to review the LC Decision. On 14 February 2022,
the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange notifying
the Company that the Listing Review Committee, having carefully
considered all the facts and evidence, and all submissions presented
by the Company and the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Division”), decided to uphold the LC Decision to suspend
trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules on the
ground that the Company had failed to comply with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules.

On 23 February 2022, the Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange setting out the following resumption guidance for resumption
of trading in the Shares (the “Resumption Guidance”):

e to demonstrate the Company’s compliance with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company must remedy the issue(s) causing its trading suspension
and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange’s
satisfaction before trading in the Shares is allowed to resume. The
Company has the primary responsibility to devise its action plan for
resumption. The Stock Exchange may modify or supplement the
Resumption Guidance if the Company’s situation changes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange may
cancel the listing of any securities that have been suspended from
trading for a continuous period of 18 months. In the case of the
Company, the 18-month period expires on 14 August 2023. If the
Company fails to remedy the issue(s) causing its trading suspension,
fulfill the Resumption Guidance and fully comply with the Listing Rules
to the Stock Exchange’s satisfaction and resume trading in the Shares
by 14 August 2023, the Listing Division will recommend the Listing
Committee to proceed with the cancellation of the Company’s listing.
Under Rules 6.01 and 6.10 of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange
also has the right to impose a shorter specific remedial period, where
appropriate.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
16 August 2021, 23 August 2021, 18 November 2021, 26 November
2021, 14 February 2022 and 24 February 2022.

TREASURY POLICIES AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach with respect
to treasure and funding policies, with a focus on risk management and
transactions that are directly related to the underlying business of the
Group. During the period under review, the business activities of the
Group were mainly denominated in HK$, US$, RMB and Soles. The
Group has not adopted any currency hedging policy and entered into
any currency derivative products. However, the management of the
Group will continue to monitor the foreign currency exchange exposure
and will consider adopting certain hedging measures against currency
risk when necessary.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s investment properties
with carrying amount of approximately HK$40,366,000 (31 December
2020: HK$41,634,000) have been pledged to other lender to secure
loan facilities.

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of approximately HK$37,750,000
have been pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities, which was
released during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, carrying amount of investment properties
of nil (831 December 2020: RMB26,680,000 (approximately
HK$31,910,000)) have been pledged to a bank relating to security for
the repayment obligations of a connected person of the Company in
the partial loan principal amount of RMB8,000,000 and the related
interest thereon, which has been fully indemnified by the connected
person.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 30 employees in total as at 31 December 2021
(excluding those headcounts attributable to the discontinued operation)
(31 December 2020: 116) mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and Peru. The
number of workers employed by the Group varies from time to time
depending on the industry need and they are remunerated under the
employment terms which are based on industry practice. The Group
implemented its remuneration policy and discretionary bonus based on
the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provides
benefits such as social and medical insurance and pensions to ensure
its competitiveness.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION

Details of the outstanding litigations are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Kwan, aged 64, has been the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Fu is currently
the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macrolink
Holding Co., Ltd (“Macrolink”). Mr. Fu is a senior economist and has
over 30 years of experience in corporate management and business
strategy planning. Mr. Fu served as a Commissioner of Public
Security in Liling City, Hunan Province, China, the Deputy Secretary
of the Commune Party Committee, the Secretary of the Township
Party Committee, the Deputy Director of the Economic and Trade
Commission of Liling City, a director of the Municipal Foreign Trade
Bureau, the deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group, and the deputy leader of Social and Education
Work Team of the Provincial Party Committee in Liuyang City, etc.
Also, Mr. Fu was appointed as the executive director and a member
of Standing Committee of the China Federation of Industry and
Commerce (2B Tr8t), and a director of Political Affairs Committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (& B T 2 B 5%
KZE&), a member of Advisory Committee of China Federation
of Industry and Commerce (2B Tt £ HZ E€) and the vice
president of the 10th China Federation of Industry and Commerce (&
B T8 ). Mr. Fu worked as the vice chairman of the 11th China
Civil Chamber of Commerce (FEIRE &), and is a member of the
11th, 12th and 13th National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”), the co-president of the Hong
Kong China Chamber of Commerce and a member of Hong Kong
Election Committee. Mr. Fu was appointed as the vice chairman of
the board of directors of Central South University and Beijing Foreign
Studies University. He has been honored as “the National Outstanding
Socialist Builder”, “the China’s Top Ten Outstanding Entrepreneurs”,
“China’s Economic Figures of the Year”, “the Outstanding
Entrepreneurs of Private Enterprise in 40 years of reform and opening
up of China” and “the New China’s Top Hundred Outstanding Hunan
Figures in 70 years” (3T Bl + AT HZMMBEADE). Mr. Fu is
currently a director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.,
Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Hunan
Hualian China Industry Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited,
a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Zhang Jian, aged 48, has been the executive Director of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently the senior vice president of Macrolink and the chief controller
of the integrated management department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang has
more than 20 years of experience in investment banking, corporate
operation and business management. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the general
manager of the Company and also acts as directors of two subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Zhang is currently an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited
and New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange), a director of Keda Clean Energy
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), a
director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co. Ltd. and Hunan
Hualian China Industry Co., Ltd (companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange).

Mr. Zhang Bishu, aged 52, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the investment
and financial consultant of Macrolink. Before joining Macrolink,
Mr. Zhang served in state-owned enterprises and PRC government
bureau. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in October 2004 and was
employed as senior vice president, chief accountant and deputy
financial officer of Macrolink, the chairman of Macrolink Weihung Food
Company Ltd., a director and general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt
Holdings Co., Ltd., the chief financial officer and a director of the
investment department of Macrolink and the chairman of Macrolink
Holding Group Financial Limited Liability Company. Mr. Zhang is also a
certified accountant and registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is
also an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and a director of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd.

Mr. Zhang currently also acts as a director of Sichuan Hongda Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Sailun Group
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Asia-
Pacific Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. and Daxinganling Rural
Commercial Bank.
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Ms. Liu Jing, aged 46, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Ms. Liu is currently the senior vice
president of Macrolink, the president of the investment department
of Macrolink, the chairman and the general manager of Changshi
Investment Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu joined Macrolink in
1998. Since then, Ms. Liu has worked in winery, real estate and
gas companies under Macrolink. Ms. Liu also served as the chief
financial director of overseas finance department of Macrolink.
Ms. Liu is currently an executive director of Shandong Organosilicone
Materials Co., Ltd. (a company listed on ChiNext of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange). In 1998, Ms. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting from Xiangtan University in Hunan province. Ms. Liu is also
a certified accountant in the PRC and acts as a director of a subsidiary
of the Company.

Mr. Chan Yeuk, aged 63, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Chan is an economist and the
current director of Macrolink and Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chan started working in 1976 and worked as a worker
and a project budgetary staff. In 1987, Mr. Chan obtained a degree
from the Business Administration Department of Beijing Institute of
Chemical Technology. After graduation, Mr. Chan worked in a company
under San Xiang Group in Guam, the United States of America serving
as the deputy manager, and later served as the deputy director and
the director of sales department of Hunan branch of China Investment
Bank. Mr. Chan joined Macrolink in 1993, and served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Board, the vice president, and the executive director
of Macrolink.

Mr. Zhou Jianren, aged 63, has been an executive Director of the
Company since July 2014. Mr. Zhou is the elder brother of Mr. Zhou
Chu Jian He, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company
until 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhou has more than 30 years of experience
in international trading. Mr. Zhou also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, aged 66, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004 and
is the chairman of the audit committee; and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Securities Institute, Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
Australia ® New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants, Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and Certified Tax Adviser. Mr. Lam is currently
an independent non-executive director of Grand T G Gold Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of OCI International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Dragonite International Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
28 April 2010 to 7 May 2018. Mr. Lam currently is a partner of
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited and was head of department in
Southwest Securities International Securities Limited and also the
proprietor of Albert Lam & Co. CPA. Mr. Lam was also the director and
currently is the shareholder and Consultant of Jonten Hopkins & Aoba
Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in Arts (Economics) from the
University of Manchester, the United Kingdom.

Mr. Fung Chuen Kin, aged 60, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since July 2021 and is a
member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Fung has over 30 years of experience in
property development and investment and corporate management.
Mr. Fung is currently the chairman of China Jinying Investment Co.,
Ltd., Hainan Olympic Garden Co., Ltd. and China Jinying (Hainan)
Safety and Security Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Fung was a member of 11th
and 12th National Committee of CPPCC, and Standing Committees
of CPPCC (Hainan Province) and CPPCC (Sanya City). Mr. Fung
was appointed as a member of the 12th Executive Committee of
China Federation of Industry and Commerce, and vice-chairpersons
of the 7th and 8th Hainan Federation of Industry and Commerce
(General Chamber) and 11th Guizhou Federation of Industry and
Commerce (General Chamber). Currently serving as a member of
the Population, Resources and Environment Sub-Committee of the
13th National Committee of CPPCC, Mr. Fung has been honored
as “the Hainan’s Top Ten Outstanding Figures”, “the Hainan’s
Outstanding Socialist Builder with Chinese Characteristics”, “China’s
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”, and “the World’s Outstanding Chinese”.
In 2020, Mr. Fung was named as “the Top Ten Hainan Outstanding
Entrepreneurs”.
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Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since March 2013 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of
the audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung also holds two Masters Degrees
respectively in Public Administration and in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung has worked in various government
departments for 12 years, and has over 20 years in the practice of
company law and civil litigation matters. Currently Mr. Cheung is the
senior partner of Messrs. Kelvin Cheung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
Mr. Cheung and his law firm have been the legal advisors of a number
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, asset fund management
firms and non-profit making organizations and charities in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kwok Choi, aged 50, has been the company secretary
and the financial controller of the Company since September 2018.
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
majoring in accounting. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
finance, accounting and listed company secretarial matters. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ng had worked in an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong, and was responsible for accounting, finance and
company secretarial matters for various listed companies in Hong
Kong.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Reporting Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, trading
of mineral concentrates and securities investment. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise of property
investment and development, property management services,
manufacturing and sale of construction materials (discontinued during
the Reporting Year), trading of mineral concentrates, coal mining
and others, details of which are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Year,
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section from pages 6 to 16 of
this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a good standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
employees, and contributes to the community to meet the corporate
and business objectives of the Group. The Group also implemented
energy saving practices in offices where applicable.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time
to time and will consider taking more effective and efficient measures
and practices in the operations. The environmental policies and
performance of the Group are discussed in more detail in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group, such as the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

The Company has received a letter from the Stock Exchange notifying
the Company of its decision that the Company has failed to maintain
a sufficient level of operations and assets of sufficient value to support
its operations under Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules to warrant the
continued listing of its shares, and that the trading of the Company’s
shares will be suspended under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules (the
“Decision”).

On 23 August 2021, the Company lodged a request for the Decision
to be reviewed by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange,
which decided to uphold the Decision on 18 November 2021 (the
“LC Decision”). On 26 November 2021, the Company submitted a
written request for the LC Decision to be referred to the Listing Review
Committee of the Stock Exchange for review under Chapter 2B of the
Listing Rules.

On 21 January 2022, the Listing Review Committee conducted a
review hearing to review the LC Decision. On 14 February 2022,
the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange notifying
the Company that the Listing Review Committee, having carefully
considered all the facts and evidence, and all submissions presented
by the Company and the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Division”), decided to uphold the LC Decision to suspend
trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules on the
ground that the Company had failed to comply with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules.

On 23 February 2022, the Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange setting out the following resumption guidance for resumption
of trading in Shares (the “Resumption Guidance”):

e to demonstrate the Company’s compliance with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Company must remedy the issues causing its trading suspension
and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange’s
satisfaction before trading in Shares is allowed to resume. The
Company has the primary responsibility to devise its action plan for
resumption. The Stock Exchange may modify or supplement the
Resumption Guidance if the Company’s situation changes.

Under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange may
cancel the listing of any securities that have been suspended from
trading for a continuous period of 18 months. In the case of the
Company, the 18-month period expires on 14 August 2023. If the
Company fails to remedy the issue(s) causing its trading suspension,
fulfill the Resumption Guidance and fully comply with the Listing Rules
to the Stock Exchange’s satisfaction and resume trading in Shares
by 14 August 2023, the Listing Division will recommend the Listing
Committee to proceed with the cancellation of the Company’s listing.
Under Rules 6.01 and 6.10 of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange
also has the right to impose a shorter specific remedial period, where
appropriate.

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended with
effect from 9:00 a.m. on 15 February 2022 and shall remain suspended
until further notice. The Company is taking appropriate steps to resolve
the issue(s) causing its trading suspension and will strive to resume
trading in the Company’s shares as soon as possible.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group intends to reward and recognise performing employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package and to promote career
development and provide opportunities within the Group for career
advancement. The Group encourages employees participation of
external seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates
on areas of industrial, legal, compliance, financial accounting and
tax knowledge. The Group also encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars, updates on regulatory
requirements and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good and long-term
relationships with our customers and suppliers to ensure efficient
delivery of products and services and smooth procurement process
respectively.

The Group recognises the importance to protect the interests of
shareholders and the importance of having communication with
them from time to time through annual general meetings, corporate
communications, interim and annual reports as well as results
announcements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



TERRRAREM

RBEFE  EFSRRAETELARERHES
FMETERZIERRBEREREMTHAAZMSE
M RNEECITRIRE  TERFRAREET
M ERERIMABE SRR - MEER - BREER
Rk - FERRREERR - NEBEEH MRS
AREASEXEB RV BEEERTNEEZZ
FELELREE -

EEeRRAARRIAEEREAERTENRREER
AR A RERAYHBIEER R EERNR
BReBEE EFEREH I RREEZBETHT
EALLEF - E— TR ERAFRETIOANE
B0R [XREARHRE —AREERABEE | —& -

RERRE
REBEEFE 2 ZEBNEF REOE R FEO
H2HA RS-

FEelfEEgEBE_SE-_—4F+_A=+—H1
HFERNEAKBE(ZZE_ZTF : &) -
M- - BERRKE

AEEZNE  BERREREEEEAZ BB
BRREE M BREM 14

BREWF
AEE 2 RAMEHERNRA M HRRM 5 -

B
R|EFE  AEEYBELEEBR(—T-F
) o

Hitfg &
B E A B B RNRA B R M 2T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

EEEHRE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the Reporting Year, the Board identified the principal risks which
are likely to affect the Group’s business operations including volatility
and uncertainty in market conditions, changing in industry standards,
industry competition and financial risks in the ordinary course of
business, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and currency risk. It is essential that the Group is able to respond
in a timely manner to such changes which may adversely affect the
Group’s businesses and financial results.

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate the risks
present in our businesses and operations as efficiently and effectively
as possible. The Board delegates some of its responsibility of risk
management to various operational departments. Further reviews are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — Risk
Management and Internal Control” on pages 79 and 80 of the Annual
Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 90 and 91 of this
Annual Report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of investment properties of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group for the Reporting Year
(2020: Nil).

OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the other borrowings of the Group are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue generated from the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate accounted for 65.51% of the total
revenue for the year and revenue generated from the largest customer
included therein accounted for 24.95%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 78.13% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 52.72%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the
Reporting Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

There has been no change in the issued share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to nil
(as at 31 December 2020: nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during
the Reporting Year.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 220 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Jian

Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert

Mr. Fung Chuen Kin (appointed on 1 July 2021)
Mr. Cao Kuangyu (resigned on 1 July 2021)
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 86(2) and 87(1), Mr. Fu
Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Chan Yeuk and Mr. Fung Chuen Kin will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages
17 to 21 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensations). Details of directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transaction”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 29 to 32 of this
Annual Report and notes 21, 30 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no director of the Company or any entity connected with
the director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its holding
companies and subsidiaries was a party during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 166, every director, officer and
auditors shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out
of assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained
by him as a director, auditors or officer of the Company about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group during
the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Year, save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transaction” on
pages 29 to 32 of this Annual Report, the related party transactions
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements did not
either fall within the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction”, or treated as de minimis transactions under
Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 5 March 2021, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited (the “Vendor”), pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interests of Macrolink
Development and Investment Limited (“Macrolink Development
and Investment”) at a total consideration of HK$186,000,000 (the
“Acquisition”). Macrolink Development and Investment is principally
engaged in property leasing and property management and operations,
and owns six properties and is entrusted with management of seven
properties. All of the thirteen properties are based in Beijing, the PRC.

As the Vendor is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Macrolink Group
Limited (being the controlling shareholder of the Company), the Vendor
is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The primary purpose of the entering into of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement is to enable the Group to expand its core business in
property development and investment segment through significant
increase in the Group’s land reserves and entry into rapidly growing
districts of Beijing, the PRC in one single transaction.

Deposit of HK$50,000,000 has been paid to the Vendor pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, with the first instalment of
HK$33,000,000 and the second instalment of HK$103,000,000 to
be paid upon completion of the Acquisition and mortgage release
of the certain properties of Macrolink Development and Investment,
respectively. Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5 March 2021 and 30
December 2021.

Up to the date of the Annual Report, the Acquisition has not been
completed.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(1) Provision of Mortgages
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On 8 November 2019, Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency Co.,
Ltd. (“Junefield Property Agency”) (Bt R)EHELLARA
A]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the mortgages agreements (the “Mortgage Agreements”)
(as supplemented and amended by the supplemental agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”)) with a bank, pursuant to
which Junefield Property Agnecy pledged certain investment
properties in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) held by
Junefield Property Agency in favour of the bank as security for
the repayment obligations of Jinzhou Rongxin Trading Company
Limited (the “Connected Borrower”) ($3M&EZEEBARARA) in
the partial loan principal amount of RMB8 million and the related
interests thereon. On the same date, Junefield Property Agency
and the Connected Borrower also entered into an indemnity
agreement (the “Indemnity Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Connected Borrower agreed to pay Junefield Property Agency,
a one-time handling charge of RMB120,000, being 1.5% of
the partial loan principal amount of RMB8 million, and to fully
indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s obligations under the
Mortgage Agreements (as supplemented and amended by the
Supplemental Agreement). The term of the Mortgage Agreements
is two years from 8 November 2019 to 7 November 2021.

As the registered capital of the Connected Borrower is ultimately
and solely owned by Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, who is a former
executive director and a former substantial shareholder of the
Company, and the younger brother of Mr. Zhou Jianren, a current
executive director of the Company, the Connected Borrower is
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Mortgage Agreements,
the Supplemental Agreement and the Indemnity Agreement
is to enable the Group to have a readily available facility for
providing sufficient financial resources to it in the PRC without
involving further negotiation and lengthy procedures with financial
institutions. Other details of the agreements, including the reasons
and the benefits of provision of mortgages, are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 9 January 2020 and 10
February 2020.
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The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of
mortgages for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB8,558,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,529,000) and
nil, respectively.

Provision of Property Operation and Management
Services to Macrolink Development and Investment

On 8 February 2021, Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement (the “Property Operation
and Management Agreement”) with Macrolink Development and
Investment to provide property operation and management,
solicitation of business and tenants and other related services
in relation to the thirteen owned and entrusted properties. The
term of the Property Operation and Management Agreement
is three years (i.e. from 8 February 2021 to 7 February 2024),
which would terminate immediately and automatically upon
completion of the Acquisition. The total services fees for the
Property Operation and Management Agreement shall not exceed
RMB12,000,000 per annum.

As Macrolink Development and Investment is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Macrolink Group Limited (being the
controlling shareholder of the Company), Macrolink Development
and Investment is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Property Operation and
Management Agreement is to expand the Group’s source of
income, thereby generating stable income and realizing more
benefits for the Group. Other details of the Property Operation
and Management Agreement are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 8 February 2021.

The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of property
operation and management services to Macrolink Development
and Investment for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to RMB12,000,000 and RMB12,000,000, respectively.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(3) Provision of Property Entrusted Management
Services to Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd.

On 14 July 2021, Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development entered into a property entrusted management
agreement (the “Property Entrusted Management Agreement”)
with Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd. (“Macrolink”), pursuant to which
Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading Development agreed
to provide Macrolink with property operation and management,
solicitation of business and other related services in relation to
certain entrusted properties for a period of three years from 15
July 2021 to 14 July 2024. The rental income received in relation
to the entrusted properties is shared by Shenzhen Macrolink
Industrial & Trading Development and Macrolink in the ratio of 4:6,
with Macrolink receiving 60% of the rental income and Shenzhen
Macrolink Industrial & Trading Development receiving 40% of the
rental income.

As Macrolink is an associate of Mr. Fu Kwan, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, Macrolink is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Property Entrusted
Management Agreement is to expand the Group’s source of
income, thereby generating stable income and realizing more
benefits for the Group. Other details of the Property Entrusted
Management Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 July 2021.

The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of property
entrusted management services to Macrolink for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to RMB4,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,760,000) and RMB595,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$717,000), respectively.

The continuing connected transactions as detailed in (1) to (3) above
have been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors of the Company
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transaction entered into by the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors of the Company have issued an
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

LONG POSITION - ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.10
EACH OF THE COMPANY

HARDABEET

BARBEA

Rl s

Approximate

Percentage

of the

B AR ZEER HRER Company’s

EEHE Personal Corporate Total issued share

Name of directors interest interest interests capital®

HE R4 4,500,000 870,145,473 874,645,473 72.51%
Mr. Fu Kwan (Htat1)
(Note 1)

PR B %% 4 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%

Mr. Chan Yeuk

BtiE1 : #870,145, 473D IR FEBEEMBR A AFE -
NEBMEBRBERARNEAEVEEREBRAREEGLD
42.05% - BERAEMABUEERERR AR B ETR
KZT0%Ezs - FAt - RIBFHRBERD - BFExE
18 A 1A870,145, 473D R A #e s ©

Witz : RZEZ—F+-A=+—0 ADRAZEETRAR
1,206,249,251 A& B 15

BREXFIEREIN RZTE=—F+_A=+—
B SARREFREBITRABRA - &I
HbARREZERTBITBRABRARE MEME
M AEEE (E8 LES KB ERMIFEXVE) 2
- HEAROMESHEEREES MMEGRIE
3E2{FRFLIRFE AR RIRTF 2 B R i AR BAR L < Al
BN A B2 S TORR
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Note 1: These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned
as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited. Mr. Fu
Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment Company
Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed to be interested in the 870,145,473
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2021, the issued share capital of the Company is
1,206,249,251 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as is
known to the directors and chief executives of the Company, no
other directors and chief executives of the Company had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register as required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RZF-_—F+-A=t—8 " AR AEAES
EERBITHABRA  BRARRNEFIRRHTR
ABLASN - RARB IR RAAERODEERERS
REE GBI EXVERF2 N F37 #f A B kAR IR &
7 M E R PIFEIB6 IR H AR R BIREFZ B
ZREEBIOABMALTNT :

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (LONG POSITION)

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than directors or chief executives of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LR NN
BRTRAMN
BABEDL
Approximate
Percentage of

FERMEE the Company’s
BREEEB BORESZHE Number of issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital
MR B AR AR (42) BEERHA 870,145,473 r2:14%
Macrolink Group Limited (Note) Directly beneficially owned
BUEBEREBGRDR (ML) REEE R 870,145,473 72.14%

Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited (Note)

BiaF : #870,145 473D B EBEEBRAAFEE -
NEBHEERERARNABEVEEREBRARERLD
42.05% c BESXERBELEXREAR AT D HITR
K2ZT0% s - At - B HFRBEKROIME - FHEH
EEERAR - BEUEBEREERARILBELERR
B ER S E B R A B T B 2870,145,473M i 5
PEEE R -

B EXFIREEIN R_E-_—F+_A=+—
B BARFNESIHESTHRABUIN  WEH
HMATREARBRO EEEROEEREZSF X
B E KB EXVERE2 R E3D B A B X RIEEFHF
N AR E 60 55336 IR i X TE A A B AR 17 < B L it
ZHEIORE o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Interest in a controlled corporation

Note:  These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned

as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited.
Mr. Fu Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited. Therefore, each of Macrolink Group Limited, Truly Industry
Investment Company Limited and Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed or taken to be interested
in the 870,145,473 Shares which are owned by Macrolink Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children under
age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the following director of the Company was considered
to have interests in the following businesses which competed or were
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

Each of Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing
and Mr. Chan Yeuk (collectively the “Relevant Directors”) is either the
beneficial owner or the director and/or senior management of a number
of companies (the “Companies”) in which either Macrolink Holding
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries or the Relevant Directors have beneficial
interests. The businesses engaged by the Companies include property
investment and development, property management, securities
investment and trading of mineral concentrates.

The above-mentioned businesses are operated and managed by the
Companies with independent management and administration. In
addition, the Board is independent of the boards of the Companies
carrying on the competing businesses. Accordingly, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of the competing
businesses mentioned above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the date of
this Annual Report, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and/or
comparable market statistics. As an incentive for the employees,
bonuses and cash awards may also be given to employees based on
individual performance evaluation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on pages
69 to 82 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



B A R

MERERERAR ([FEHIHIARA])ER
HB AR (BRI ANEE R WA
BPMEERE  HekBAHRSE ([AHmE]) - &
SEEREI AREBREAEERHBE—FT ——
FHZA=Z+—ALMBRFE ([HREHM]) OFRE -
HEREREENH  BRAKREREEEN -

ARENBBEEFPRAEBRTEPEARLENH
([FEDMDEEERSES  ULKBEES X
o XBEEENES (0 RBEEMRE) cAR
COVID-19%& 15 A R & E AR TR 8E - AL - W&
MBI AREBRREBHAREE S - B - X
MEATEREEZEBDTNRRER - BERK
FRERR T —F—AHAURERET R
ERER—E—FNABRHRERTE  A5EH
MElE RIHEREMBERDLEMETRSE
B O AEECBHEHIDADRILGEER  EE
BIEEARENERTER -

% g

A=A
AREDRBEEEMAXSMBRLR ([BRAH])
Ex EHRAMSE -+ EMENCGRE g RE
AmEEID(RE e REARERD K
OUWEBRERGRE HEREBRRSEIDAME
M TETHREREI G BRAKERSTEAR
ETEERBORIN AHBECEREEHR
FHRE  HEREABRECER T _FMN
AEAGSEESEE ([EF ) EMRMLE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

RR -#HE8RERHRSE

ABOUT THE REPORT

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (“Macrolink” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”, or “We”) is
pleased to publish our annual environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) report (the “Report”). It is to summarise the Group’s ESG
management approaches, practices and environmental and social
performance during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”), unless otherwise specified.

The scope of the Report focuses on the Group’s property management
services business in the People of Republic of China (“PRC”), and
trading of mineral concentrates business which is principally operated
in Nickel trading (branded electrolytic nickel cathodes). The coal
mining business in Peru was continually suspended during the
Reporting Period due to COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty of
economic situation and hence there is no disclosure of environmental
performance under this business segment in this Report. With the
outcome of final litigation ruled in January 2021 and the civil judgement
issued by Loudi Intermediate Court in April 2021, the Group’s
manufacture and sale of the construction materials business has been
proceeded to a mandatory dissolution and the Group classified it as
a discontinued operation and excluded in the reporting scope of the
Report.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), as well as adhering to the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide. Except for provisions
that the Group considers are inapplicable to our operations, for which
explanations are illustrated in the corresponding section. The ESG
Report has been reviewed and approved by the board of directors of
the Group (the “Board”) in April 2022.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has compiled the ESG Report in accordance with the
following reporting principles.

Materiality

° The Group identified the materiality of ESG topics by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. The details are
explained in the section of “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative

° The Group disclosed the information of the standards,
methodologies and source of conversion factors used for the
reporting of emissions and energy consumption. Please refer to
the relevant section in the ESG Report for details.

Balance

o The ESG Report presented the Group’s environmental and
social performance on an impartial basis to provide an objective
reporting disclosure for readers.

Consistency

o The methodology adopted for disclosing key environmental
and social performance indicators is consistent with that of the
previous Reporting Period.

OUR ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

A well-established ESG governance structure is the key to enhancing
the Group’s ESG management and ensuring the corresponding
principles are fully incorporated across business segments.

The Board actively participated in planning sustainability strategies to
lead the direction of the Group in long-term sustainable development.
The Board oversees the overall ESG strategies, management
approaches and all ESG matters of the Group, including ESG risk
management, identification of material ESG issues, action planning and
related initiatives. It is also the Board’s responsibility for reviewing the
progress and achievement of respective ESG objectives and targets,
and approving the ESG report submitted by the ESG Taskforce Team.

The internal ESG Taskforce Team advises all the ESG matters and
implementation of the Group from different perspectives. The ESG
Taskforce Team assists in establishing ESG strategies, identifying
and analysing the significant ESG risks and opportunities in risk
management with associated impacts on the Group. The ESG
Taskforce Team is also responsible for setting initiatives with actions
plans in line with the determined ESG strategies. The ESG Taskforce
Team shall collect relevant ESG data and information for performance
review and compilation of ESG reports and regularly report the
progress of ESG work to the Board.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Maintaining an open and regular dialogue with our stakeholders
through diversified channels of communication is important in further
improving our sustainable development strategy formulation. Engaging
our stakeholders could provide us with their constructive opinion and
insights that enable us to further enhance our business strategies in
achieving sustainable business operation. We consider opinions from
various stakeholders especially on ESG governance structure, internal
control system, approach to various ESG-related issues and long-term
policy formulation. We identified our key stakeholder groups as
shareholders and investors, employees, customers, business partners,
government and regulators, community, and media. The below table
sets forth the adopted communication channels for engaging our
stakeholders to ensure building quality communications.

Communication Channels

BREBREE . RHEARR
- ABBEHEBE

s ARKEE

o NAIM@U
o REKX®
s RAIRE
o FHMETHME
o BHIRE

Shareholders/ e | ong-term investment returns e Company website
Investors e Sustainable business development e General meetings
e QOperational compliance e Corporate announcements

AT . HEREF
- BERENZE
- BEHE
- BETE

. DAXF

e Annual and interim reports
e Onsite inspection

s EBMNERAM

o WEHEKAE T
e BT ®Z

o FEXRFMIE

o BT

Employees e Remuneration and benefits e Emails and suggestion box

e QOccupational health and safety
e Career development

e Equal opportunities

e Corporate support

TR o EMAMIRBHEE
o ZIRBAIRE
Customers

e Products and service quality
e Data privacy protection
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Intranet and internal publications
Employee meeting

Annual performance review
Employee training

EFPERRERKF

%P IR AR

E 3

HEER

Customer feedback and complaints
Customer service hotline

Customer visit

Day-to-day communication

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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] HERETEE
Stakeholders

Expectations and Concerns

BERE

Communication Channels

BB o BEBIE
o HEARERRE
o REAMATFEHAE

Business partners e Business integrity

e Mutual cooperating relationship
e Open and fair procurement

BB B4 RS o SRMKE

s BITWMER

s BlEBEKRE
Government e Operational compliance
and regulatory e Fulflment of tax obligations
authorities e Job opportunity creation
#HE o ZEEMMEMAGREE

s WEEMHRIIRE

o XHHEBRE

Community e Participation in local community and public

welfare

e Improve local community environment
e Support community investment

e s BFERE

Media e [nformation transparency

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

BETHRER

SEEESH

R R IRAR

BRE & 1E R

B AR R

Lawful actions and communications
On-going direct engagement
Procurement and tendering

Strategic cooperation and negotiation
Onsite inspection

T HA 1R 22 XX 1

B BEE MR TE HB @

B HRBRE R

Wi gk

Regular document submission

Regular communication with regulatory
authorities

Compliance inspections and assessments
Forum, seminar and conference

NGIE R
1= 5 B

Company website
Community interaction

YNGIE SR
HEEN
Company website
Media enquiry
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BEEMFM MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

AEEDETEZ MG - L\Aﬁﬁ?f“fj$’§l&ﬁ1ﬁ The Group carried out a materiality assessment to examine the ESG
EMEEEENIRE HNLERME  (tMIEE  topics that are material to the Group and our stakeholders so as to
HIETIR - %i%’&a/uﬁﬁi&iﬁijﬁzﬁg TESNEE EE direct the formulation of ESG strategy and reporting disclosure. As
BB T - NEETERA B RAEIRE facilitated by an external consultant, the Group continuously enhances
eRERRENRE  WArEREEEIRE - %i@ the process of identifying and determining ESG issues and fully
KERRE - ZMIB R E TR EEIMFIE  discloses material ESG issues. We are committed to responding to the
THeETRENEE - J//{&?:EEI%‘ EEF'jJu%ﬁE concerns highlighted by various stakeholders regarding our fulfilment

HEKRERE HekEiREns of social responsibility and strengthening our management of material
ESG issues in daily operations.
EEMTHORE Process of materiality assessment

=B HE R IR EREENEEREER BIEEZRE #HERER
JRRE 5 HERERRE E =]
Identification of relevant Review of materiality Response to material
ESG topics matrix and material ESG ESG topics
(o] o] (X3
BEAEENHRE X RIFERE B RER
% RE g kER e KREEBEBGEE 1% HRENEZEEUAREE
&85 B3R TE A R AT ERBY  RR o€ HOHENETEZE@AIT S
XRE HelkE6E & & 18 B £ Bl & #5 B HZPMARERE -
ErEEEE - #AE 5| - HAAIA B AR I 42 HEREREENER
ERIRE g kEB SR EHAERNE B BEHARBERENT

FRRE o ikmiﬁiﬂ‘ﬁ[&k‘r M o

AR EZ R -
Considering the

Based on the Group’s
existing businesses, the

According to the
materiality of ESG

requirements of ESG
reporting guidelines,
and industry ESG
management priorities,
potential ESG topics
were identified.
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business operations,
industry development
trends, ESG related
standards and
guidelines, we internally
reviewed and plotted
the materiality matrix
with ESG topics that are
material to the Group.

issues and key concern
of our key stakeholders,
we determined the
focus area of ESG
management as well
as the direction of the
reporting disclosure.

OE B E A AR

N
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EEMEE

EEMEE
Materiality Matrix

SNERETME (H B ENTE)
External assessment (impact to stakeholders)

[E @ Aspects EE MR E Materiality Issue

SEEM
High Materiality

hEEM

Moderate Materiality

BEEH
Low Materiality

= BB HEREABE
* ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Matrix

BEEY
Low Materiality

hEEM
Moderate Materiality

SEEH
High Materiality

REFHE (HRBIZE)

Internal assessment (impact to business)

RiE 1) PEE 3 Emission Management
Environmental 2) K B BE K& 32 Water and Wastewater Management
3) 4 RE S22 Ecological Impacts
4) BEEYNAEYEEE Waste and Hazardous Materials Management
5) S[E# L Climate Change
e 6) B 2@ FE 2% 2 Occupational Health & Safety
Social 7) A J1E ARZE Human Capital Development
8) EEfm R ET B2 E £ Product Design and Quality
9) 7 % 18 /% Business Ethics
10)  EBSFAE KRB Compliance with Laws and Regulations
1) FLEEREIE L2 Privacy and Data Security
12) HEHEEIE Supply Chain Management
18)  #[@¥%E Community Investment
) 14)  ®IE - H&REIAAIE ESG Governance
Governance 15)  #5{p# /B8 Stakeholder Communication

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The materiality of each ESG topic is illustrated in the materiality matrix
after an internal evaluation. The ESG topics that are categorized as
high importance are fallen into the top right quadrant of the matrix. The
result of the materiality matrix and the identified material ESG topics are
reviewed and finalized by senior management and the Board.

Based on the result of materiality assessment and the reporting
principle, the disclosure of the Report is mainly focused on the
issues categorised as being of high materiality. The Group considers
providing the overall management approaches on such ESG issues
categorised as being of moderate materiality and low materiality of
the Group in order to provide the overall picture to stakeholders in
ESG management. The Group would continue to review the existing
ESG strategies, policies, and objectives so as to optimise the ESG
performance and reporting disclosure in pursuit of continuous
improvement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group endeavours to promote environmental sustainability. Striving
to minimise the adverse impacts on the environment, the Group has
implemented various control measures to optimise the resources
efficiency and reduce emissions and waste production across our
business segments. We strictly comply with all applicable laws and
regulations in where we operate. For example, the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise, the Law of the PRC on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, Law
of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment.

Considering our business nature, we abide also by other relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to mineral concentrates
trading business and coal mining business in Peru. For example, D.S.
003-2017- MINAM approves the standards of environmental quality
(ECA) for the air and establishes complementary provisions, and D.L.
1278 that approves the Law of Solid Wastes Management.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any breaches
of the environmental laws and regulations.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Emissions

The Group is dedicated to identifying and managing any
significant environmental consequences responsibly. We have
obtained required licenses for our operation and kept a tight
eye on emissions throughout the manufacturing and improve
environmental management to keep the main pollution sources
under control. We also strive to limit waste emissions and
improve resource utilization efficiency in our operations. We
believe that the environmental effect of our activities shall be
reduced when we operate in a green manner.

As emission management is not considered as the Group’s
material ESG issue, and with the coal mining business
suspended, we will continue to assess its influences on our
stakeholders and our business respectively, before setting any
emission targets in the future.

1.1. Air Emissions

The Group recognises the major sources of air emission
are mainly come from the fuel combustion of machinery
equipment and vehicles in coal mine sites, as well as
the daily transportation of company vehicles in property
management services business. With no resumption of
production coal mining during the Reporting Period, no
air emission was produced and recorded.

1.2. Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The GHG emissions of the Group are derived from fuel
combustion from machinery and vehicles owned by
the Group (“Scope 1 emission”), the consumption of
purchased electricity (“Scope 2 emission”) in offices and
premises. The GHG emissions are closely linked with the
Group’s energy consumption.

Due to the business nature of the Group, the use of
fossil fuels and electricity are inevitable. The Group has
been striving to minimize greenhouse gas emissions by
lowering the percentage of polluting fuels and adopt
the suitable technology to filter gas emitted. Certain
emissions, on the other hand, are impossible to prevent.
As a result, we make every effort to monitor and mitigate
relevant risks.
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2.

1.3. Waste Management

The major types of non-hazardous waste generated
in day-to-day operations across our various business
segments are domestic waste. The Group has
championed and encouraged trash sorting and recycling
in order to reduce their environmental influence. We have
adopted green office management on our entire business
operations to further reduce waste generation in the daily
operations. For instance, we properly review the usage
of office materials to avoid overstocking and place paper
collection bins nearby the photocopiers for collecting and
reusing the single-sided printed paper. The recyclable
waste, such as plastics and wastepaper, is appropriately
sorted and consigned to property management company
for further handling.

As waste management is not one of the Group’s material
issues, and with the coal mining business suspended, we
will continue to assess its influences on our stakeholders
and our business respectively, before setting any targets
in the future.

Use of Resources

To foster sustainable development, the Group values the
importance of effective resource management. We have
been encouraging resource conservation in our operations
across business segments. Focusing on energy and resource
procurement and consumption, it is to promote the use of
energy and resources in a reasonable and efficient manner.
Aside from improving the Group’s environmental performance,
it could facilitate costs reduction at the same time. The Group
encourages our employees to act environmentally in their
day-to-day activities and cultivate greener corporate culture by
enhancing their environmental awareness.

The major energy consumption of the Group is mainly diesel and
purchased electricity, the Group has adopted certain measures
in offices for energy saving, including but not limited to:

° Raise the environmental awareness among our customers
and business partners as our top priority;

o Encourage employees to turn off office appliances and
electronic devices such as air conditioners, computers,
personal electronic devices, and common office
equipment when not in use;
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o FREBEREERAGEORARE o Reduce energy use by purchasing energy-efficient office
B MW (Flan BB E—REERZ equipment, electrical appliances, and machinery (such as
%) DURADBERER & those with a Grade 1 energy designation); and
. EPRNRAETIE BN TR &AL . Place energy saving reminder signs nearby office
IREEIE:: - E— H IR E THIRES equipment and light switches to further enhance
B e employees’ environmental awareness.
AEBENFEERECBRAIRE UK Paperless office environment to reduce paper consumption is
FOEFE Bt AEBEAEF A (Hla also encouraged by the Group. Therefore, the Group has been
BFEHMG  ESFBRAMAERABHE) ETATE utilising electronic means, such as email, e-newsletter and
BREREAM - DUR R ARSI ED o BN 0 B intranet, for daily communication and disseminating information
MG EmMITERE RTERITH - KERAE to avoid paper printing. Besides, we set double-sided printing
ANAEMEBEmITEAAR  WERIEER &Y as default for printing, collected the single-sided printing used
EN - BUR A #sR B FE o paper in office and reused for drafting and printing to reduce

paper consumption.

B REEG L EREPRIGE K We have also been actively implementing water conservation
i o RIIERASLE T E/KEHEEF5E measures throughout the business operation process. We
e MR RIRREETE THEHEAERE have installed energy-efficient facilities and amenities such
FEREILKENEEERER o« RPFRE/KE as water-saving taps in the office, as well as inspired our
NofekEBE B &iKIERS - LARBEFE T 8 TR employees to develop the lifestyle of water and electricity
AIRBRK o RIREHA - A& B SKEUK preservation in their daily lives. We have put up water-saving
TR 4 A ] B RE o signs at pantry and washrooms to remind our employees to

reduce water wastage. The Group did not face any issues in
water sourcing during the Reporting Period.

HERNEREEBWIFAEENEEZEY — As resource management is not one of the Group’s material
mEEEERFAREREF  RMEeBEERT issues, and with the coal mining business suspended, we will
HES RIS EMAEFNDELRBMOEBNE continue to assess its influences on our stakeholders and our
2 KRBT EMBERZ- business respectively, before setting any targets in the future.
3. RERXARER 3. The Environment and Natural Resources

REBER  £ERELAAEENERNRE The Group acknowledges ecological protection is one of the
Z— o SR BEEETNEBERRESRS (= Group’s material issues. However, with the suspension of our
BRI EHANEEEBETEZARAE coal mining business, our major business during the Reporting
B WA REESE - BRFGeBET G Period was mainly office work and did not involve high level
HAEREB OIS RERMOFTME LK of pollution. We will continue to assess its influences, across
MEBHTE  RERBEIILEHAHBE - R business segments, on our stakeholders and our business
SEHAR - NERE W EE RIS AR ERIER respectively, before setting any targets in the future. The Group
TR ERTE - did not cause any substantial impact on the environment or

natural resources during the Reporting Period.
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Climate Change

With the release of the 14th Five-Year Plan with the carbon
reduction target to achieve peak emissions by 2030 and carbon
neutrality by 2060, together with the Paris Agreement to prevent
further increase of global temperature, the Group understands
the importance of recognizing and managing climate change
risks. We have taken steps to analyse and mitigate such risks.
Several physical and transition risks are identified and being
managed to address the concerns and the impacts on our
business operations.

Physical risks

° Acute risk: The growing severity of extreme weather
events (e.g. frost, snowstorm and hail) may cause
damage to our office buildings and/or other premises,
such as coal mines, and further interrupt our business
operation and increase the maintenance cost.

o Chronic risk: The increased severity and frequency
of extreme weather events (e.g. flooding caused by
rising seawater level and heatwave) may cause the
office building and/or other premises, to submerge and
further interrupt our business operation. The increase of
energy consumption at our offices to maintain the room
temperature at comfort level, together with the rising
demand for inspection and maintenance to ensure coal
mine safety, would increase the operating cost.

Transition risks

° Market risk: Higher demand for more clean fuels may
result in the shift of customer preferences and cause
a negative financial impact on coal mining business,
while the trading of mineral concentrates business may
flourish globally due to the rising demand of nickel for the
batteries used in electric vehicles.

The Group will keep monitoring the impact of climate change on
our business and formulate preventive countermeasures to avoid
such impact in the future. Although climate change is not one
of the Group’s material issues currently, relevant target-setting
would be considered as we continue to assess its influences on
our stakeholders and our business respectively.
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

5.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group acknowledges our long-term value is created by
our employees’ effort to maintain our competitiveness in the
industry. We uphold the responsibility of ensuring respect
for individuals in daily operations and embracing diversity
in the workplace. The Labour Policy is set with reference to
the law and regulations of the operational regions, including
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest days, compensation and employee welfares and
benefits. The policy assures a safe, fair and inclusive workplace
as the ultimate goal.

The Group offers a competitive remuneration package, such
as social security, medical insurance and retirement scheme in
compliance with the relevant local labour laws and regulations.
Moreover, our employees are entitled to sick leave, marriage
leave, maternity leave and parental leave apart from statutory
leaves and annual leaves. We believe that promoting work-life
balance in the Group could motivate our employees to deliver
satisfactory performance and attain business sustainability.

Diversified and Inclusive Working Environment

We strive to gather talents to affix us from different geographic
locations, backgrounds, ethnics, creating a diversified and
inclusive workplace. We adhere to the principles of fairness
and transparency during the entire employment procedures,
including recruitment, remuneration, promotion, and training.
Regardless of gender, age, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, race and religion, only objective factors should
be considered in decision-making process, to ensure the
working environment is free from any form of discrimination.
We only review the candidates’ individual performance, ethics,
qualifications, working experience and attitudes, which meet our
employment requirements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



HTIEERRENNZEIIER

REERREAE  FAKEEBHRAS
FREEBIEITRNYS TRFRE - IS
FIETESMAEMERNET KBHS
T -MiERBERETHREETHENLER
BE - AERRBENQEZREIBADEDEE
TRk - A - TERRBANHHETR
FazZE MBI A AB REERRRA B -

AEBECKEREENEE - FELWENE
FABBAERBRO - RBEHR - AEE
WAHMBEEFMERSEERRRONBE
S TR R IR AR A E T MR |5 T

R -

RZE-_—F+-A=+—8 K"EEAI0
HZET  2EHMAEEZHBET - B EFREEE
B&516.7% °

BEEAZRE
6.1. BEXREHEZ2

AARENREE S LMEEIERS
EBmE  RANKEXBETEAMR
NENET Bt BT EHRE
ABERREAR2RE - AM - 8T
MRERL2KERKMNELR
B - MEEBRERERGBERET
(PEARKMBELEEE) (PEA
REMBBERIDEE) - (hEAR
HABDHBE) A R E A B 7
AREAR -

HASEMEBEANERRBRM - BEEBFIITH
E(&BFE] OCEBEL) (F57F) BEFEN
(EERHEKRD) (F282F) ABFEN(REIER
Bl (%6608%F) Kk & A1 [E &) & il A T8 & &1 B 61D
(5485%)  (REARKLMELEE) « (REARLM
HEHERF)R(ELEFREINRTE) : WEN(E
EN KRB S %) (TUO del D. Leg. 728 — Ley de
Productividad y Competitividad Laboral (4 )& 4 ZE 5
RBFENE)) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

B HBRERBE 2
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Zero-tolerance Policy for Unethical Employment
Practices

In order to respect and safeguard human rights, all operations
are aligned with high standards of ethical behaviour and labour
rights protection. We rigorously prohibit any type of child and
forced labour in the workplace. Identification and qualification
checks are required for all job candidates and workers, to
confirm the candidates have met the legal age to work under the
laws and regulations. Meanwhile, all the employment contract is
voluntarily signed by the employees, and they are free to leave
their existing position.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant labour laws and
regulations’ in Hong Kong, PRC and Peru. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any breaches of the labour
laws and regulations, no use of child and forced labour were
noticed.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 30 employees, all of
which are full-time employees. Our voluntary turnover rate was
16.7%.

Health and Safety
6.1. Occupational Health and Safety

For the Group’s mineral concentrates trading and
property management services business, our operation
is mainly housed in offices and thus no significant
occupational health and safety hazards are anticipated.
However, the health and safety of employees is always
our priority. All business and employment practices have
strictly complied with the Labour Law of the PRC, the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases Law of
the PRC, Fire Control Law of the PRC, and other relevant
local laws and regulations.

The laws and regulations that are significant to the Group, including the
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“HKSAR”), the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.282) of HKSAR, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap.608) of HKSAR, and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cas.485) of HKSAR. the Labour Law of the PRC ( &
#EARHEIMELEE) ), the Labour Contract Law of the PRC ( (R #EARLME
L&A [FE) ) and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using of Child Labour ( {Z£1E
FRAZETHHRE) . the Law of Productivity and Labour Competitiveness of Peru,
the TUO del D. Leg. 728 - Ley de Productividad y Competitividad Laboral (Work
Ministry law of productivity and competitiveness).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
W oEBREAREFERAF

49



BB HBREARE
. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRBIOXRIN AREBEANBERD
HIRBEZ2RER - ARETELA
ERERRENTESMH - RS
A EERTHAZEETHNE) T 28
E e brget - piup (I N

. ETHEERBRARREREE
LI

J EIER LRHEMNTFRHRZE
fE

. ZHEHOBRRAERRE LR
%

o EBRAAREESNSNE
R

L]
e

ERETHFERBETRFRER
CRIRELERETE

[ =
V& R ©

5 @

AREEBARELTHANERR - B
SREMETEINREEIARER
BEESIBAMEN -

FE¥COVID-19KRITH R 2
il
BEZCOVID-19K R 1TIS B 2 B &
BB AEETERARITE
BN - AEED R
ESPEE MR & BT A
HE - DMRIE B T o2 B AIEAL -

A BAKCOVID-1918 # 1 Al - 1
FRETTEEEED &R OBEMA R
RSl WEITA N EE2FHEMER -

. RFREBER  EHRELEER
BOREETHES

. 2Py & A (P10 S KA
SH)MERE

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
E X B R 2 7

Apart from legal compliance, the Group strives to
minimize the occurrence of occupational safety risks
in order to create a safe and healthy workplace to our
employees. Some key OHS measures implemented in our
office during the Reporting Period are as follows:

o Maintain good housekeeping in the working and
office area;

° Provide sufficient storage space on the working
table;

° Arrange regular office inspection and maintenance;

o Equipped with first aid kits for instance minor injury

treatment; and

° Raise the safety awareness of our employees
on the use of display screen equipment, manual
handling and the fire safety.

Fire drills are arranged by the building management
company and are expected to raise our employees’ safety
awareness and their capability in handling emergency
situations.

Safety Measures in response to COVID-19
Pandemic

With the worldwide outbreak of the continuous COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has been closely monitoring the
pandemic situation under the regions where we operate.
The Group strictly followed the implemented pandemic
prevention policies and regulations of local governments
to safeguard the health and wellbeing of our employees.

To reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission, we have
been strictly following the health advice issued by Centre
of Health Protection in Hong Kong and implemented the
following key preventive measures:

o Keep the environment clean and regularly disinfect
frequently touched surfaces;

o Increase the stockpile amount of pandemic
prevention equipment, such as masks and
sanitizers;
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o Require employees undergo a daily body
temperature check to ensure they are fit to work;

o Require our employees to stay home when they
feel unwell and/or are showing symptoms of
COVID-19, seek medical attention and report to
relevant personnel for the record;

° Require employees to perform hand hygiene
frequently and maintain good personal hygiene;

o Require our employees and visitors to wear
surgical masks all the time;

° Circulate health advice and updated news to
raise employee awareness on COVID-19 infection
prevention practices; and

° Reduce face-to-face meetings and site visits with
online meetings, to avoid physical contact and
keep adequate social distancing.

For the Group’s property management services business
in the PRC, the COVID-19 pandemic situation in the PRC
is relatively stable, as supported by the high vaccination
rate in the Country. The Group would continue to adjust
our operation practices in response to all applicable
advice and regulations in where we operate. For example,
mass testing arrangements, travel restrictions, and
lockdowns. We would also provide sufficient support to
employees subject to lockdown or quarantine orders.

The COVID-19 pandemic situation in Peru remains
volatile, announcing rounds of emergency self-quarantine
and movement restrictions. In November 2021, the
Government of Peru again announced the extension of a
national level health emergency until March 1, 2022.
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Development and Training

The Group is dedicated to enhancing our employee’s latest
knowledge and skillsets by providing training and development
opportunities, in order to keep abreast with changing market
trends and development.

On-the-job training to the employees is provided to our
employees to equip their practical skills and technical knowledge
for performing their duties effectively. For instance, the Group
provides our employees to attend external training courses
organised by our suppliers with the topic of the prospect and
price trend of Nickel. All employees in different position level are
encouraged to have continuous education and self-learning and
improve their work capabilities.

Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to achieve mutual sustainable corporate
development together with our business partners. The
Group carries out background checks by assessing various
criteria when engaging new business partners. For example,
qualifications, capability, quality of services, and previous
business and compliance track records. It is to ensure suppliers’
competency for reliable product and service provision. For
our existing suppliers and contractors, we conduct regular
performance evaluations, in terms of product and service
quality, delivery, and after-sale services. Keeping our suppliers’
performance up to our standards and expectations consistently
is the Group’s responsibility.

Apart from delivering products and services of quality, the
Group also expects all the suppliers and contractors to maintain
adequate environmental awareness, and occupational health
and safety management control. It is not just to comply with
applicable laws and regulations, but also to minimise the
environmental and social risks in our business cooperation.

During the Reporting Period, we engaged with a total of 24
suppliers from Mainland China.
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Product Responsibility

The provision of quality products and services is one of the
Group’s major cornerstones. The Group has established a series
of management procedures to ensure the delivered products
and services are up to customers’ expectations and standards
as well as compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
industry practices.

In terms of our mineral concentrates trading business, the Group
applies the official prices of nickel as suggested by the London
Metal Exchange (the “LME”). With the global reference price, the
Group could standardise the trading pricing. The Group engages
only LME approved parties which are required to be strictly
in conformance with the requirements on quality, shape and
weight as outlined by LME. The Group obtains also independent
laboratory tests, inspection reports and quality certificates from
vendors, with the aim to validate the consistency of the product
conformance towards the specifications as well as internationally
recognised standards before product export and delivery. All
the relevant contract agreement is prepared in accordance
with relevant contract specification, including but not limited to
pricing periods, settlement terms, traded and cleared currencies.

Regarding our property management services business, the
Group is to maintain an open dialogue with our clients. By
avoiding communication gap between occupier and the Group,
the Group provides an adequate definition of occupier’s service
standards to prevent unsatisfaction. Meanwhile, information
privacy is another key element to be taken care of.

With the increasing concern in information privacy, the
Group requires all employees, across business segments, to
perform their due care to keep all the corporate and customer
information in strict confidentiality as stipulated in our code of
conduct. For example, trade secrets, business forecasts, and
pricing. Employees prohibit to divulge, copy or disclose any
information to unauthorised persons and third parties without
prior authorisation from the Group and customers. The Group
has adopted several administrative, physical and technical
measures for data protection to prevent information leakage
and unauthorised access. Any employee who breaches the
regulations is subject to disciplinary actions and legal liability.

The Group was not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and
regulations related to product quality and safety and privacy
matters during the Reporting Period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Anti-Corruption

The Group endeavours to foster a culture of integrity in the
workplace. We expected our employees to perform high
standards of professionalism and business conducts in our
business operations and dealings, which is stipulated in our
code of conduct. All employees are required to comply with
the relevant laws and regulations on anti-corruption (e.g. the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.201) of HKSAR, the Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Cap. 615) of HKSAR, and the Criminal Law of the PRC ( {# Z
ARFEHMEIFE) ), the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC
((PEARAMBIRTEEFHEFE) ), the Law of the PRC on
Anti-money Laundering ( (AR AXMER%EEE) ), the Inter-
American Convention Against Corruption, the Peruvian Criminal
Code (Legislative Decree N° 635) Articles 393-A and 397-A, and
the Corporate Anti-Corruption Act of Peru) and the obligations
as stated in the Employment Contract. Any cases of violation will
be subjected to disciplinary action.

We have developed a whistleblowing policy and provided
channels for raising the concerns of the suspected case in
relation to any violation of laws. We keep the identity of the
whistle-blower with all the relevant reported information in
confidential to prevent any unfair treatment and reprisal. In
addition, regular monitoring and assessments are conducted
to ensure the effectiveness of the internal control system.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not organize any
anti-corruption training to employees though, the Group is
planning to arrange relevant training in coming year.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees.

Community Investment

With the impact being brought by the COVID-19 pandemic,
social distancing measures and lockdowns pose limitations and
difficulties when organizing community activities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not organize any community
activities or donations. However, the Group would continue to
assess the pandemic situation, and seek opportunities to invest
in and engage with local communities in the future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

-



B HEREABE -
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R EWNIEE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
RIEXRIE Environmental Performance
B —E- - —E-EF —E-NF
Unit 20211 2020 2019
BmmEE
Types of emissions
BEREHER
GHG emissions?
Eq— 3 E-StiEE
g =1 E?ﬁﬂﬁ& o WE— R LI EE 4917 509 26.48
Scope 1 - Direct emissions?® tCOe
B2 — & 4 E— SR E =
EE2 ﬁﬁﬁ@: B WE— R LR E 2 91 57 1 54 5.0
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions* tCOe
BERBHERAE A AL E &
nméﬁﬁgﬂfﬂ%ig. WE— AL EE 63.74 163 89 70
Total GHG emission tCO,e
BEREBEZEE

GHG intensity
W —E i &

ﬁﬁg% *i . . ¥R 0.02239 0.0006 0.0008
Mineral concentrates trading business tCO, e/

square feet

WE S LiRE S

R BERER INE JR B N iE A A iE A 0.08
Coal mining business tCO,e/tonne Not applicable Not applicable '

of raw coal
BEEyER
Type of waste
BEBEEY NI i A T iE A3
Hazardous waste tonne Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
EEBRYS
Non-hazardous waste®
-—REEY N iE A A5 B 0.40
- General Waste tonne Not applicable  No available data '

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B e —EZBF —E-hEF
Unit 2021" 2020 2019
EREEER
Types of resource consumption
BEIR
Energy
— B he S H:t
%/EE TR 157,563.59 7,701.65 237,034.47
- Diesel® kWh
— 5 i
L. TR 29,091.00 3,056.00 4,677.00
- Electricity kWh
a5 3E 1Y = SR
B AR _ TR 186,654.59 10,757.65 241,711.47
Total energy consumption kWh
Energy intensity
L/ LR
%_E%%%ﬁ _ _ FTERE,/FHR 10.91 0.76 0.95
Mineral concentrates trading business kWh/square feet
FERE, AMERE . .
IR B R AE kV_\rlgtorme TR R 235.45
Coal mining business Not applicable Not applicable '
of raw coal
K7 N N
) I A 0 3,780
Water’ gallon Not applicable
KEE
Water intensity
s, AW R .
BB TS /2 i
o . gallon/tonne i 0 3.71
Coal mining business Not applicable
of raw coal
A Z7R 0 0 225.80
Wood m3
F 8 /_\H,E:
& alk 0.035 0.09 0.02
Paper® tonne

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HEEN Social Performance

ETER Employee Profile
ERERe BT AH B B 10111213

Employment Profile® Number of employees  Turnover rate'®!"1213
(%)

R Bl

By Gender

s 20 20.0
Male

x 10 10.0
Female

REF#RA R

By Age Group

1858 £305% 2 100.0
Age 18 to 30

315 2 455% 9 22.2
Age 31 to 45

46155 Z605%, 15 6.7
Age 46 to 60

8 3B605% 4 0
Age > 60

Rith @

By Geographical Region

EE 11 0
Hong Kong

B K B 8 12.5
Mainland China

WE 11 36.4
Peru

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 57
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BRRE HERERBRE

BERREZZ2ER Occupational Health and Safety Profile

—E-NEF —BIEF —EB=—F

2019 2020 2021

TiERERT 2 0 0
Work-related fatalities
TEHREXEG 1 0 0
Work-related injuries
THBREXBE 22 0 0
Lost days due to work-related injury
BEREZIER Development and Training Profile
BT —E=-%F
Employee Training 2021
B T AR 10.0
Total hours of employee training
ZXBIETIBESL 6.67
Percentage of employees who received training
8 TEIe PR 8 0.33

Average hours of employee training

EZEIET

B2 (%)
Percentage of
employees trained

15 1% 31 BE B
(B BT)

Average
training hours

(%) (hours/employee)
&Rl
By gender
-5 5.0 0.25
- Male
- 10.0 0.50
- Female
RIERER
By employment category
—mREEBAE 18.18 0.91
— Senior Management
—HREBEAER 0 0
— Middle Management
——HRET 0 0
— General Staff
HEFER Supplier Profile
CEVE -
Country/City 2021
SHciPNLS 24

Mainland China

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEﬁACOVID 19X BRERE T ZFE_FTENEER
ﬁﬂﬁ R-F_—%F- @%m%%%%%%gﬁ*u
BHBE A RS EEMETNRITRYEE
I% HPVERFTES R A EN L BRITBOENE © UL
R THFYBRREBEEARNBEZEBESIEL R
BEEMATEFEARTEREOMEERRY - ANE
HIEE  RAINEB D BLEEASEME - BAHRAM

IR FRIEE -

BERBHEMNTE ISR EHHO N EER
A %i‘;&a/uﬁ&i?—mﬁ:_ B5E ziﬁz#ﬁ%‘e@
g 35l) ~ BEEAZEEMISO 14064 )& E'ﬁ EHRTE

E ) gfziTT%i;?‘f)zi&%&H* B 5
BB BRFEMERTA -

BEVAEREHBURERE AR BRI OB RR
IR FE B B R BEAR o

BEDEERE
R R RBEL ©

O 2 7% 5 75 4R BDK FERO SV B 7 B

REBSEVMEENEZENTIEAMEETE QAT
S EARAEETESECEENBBRAEERREZ
Ao mRERKARTEERSHAEE At —F——
FA SIS RTRE S ERERY -

'Wiﬂiﬁﬁﬂ’]%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ
(COPEMTFHAA : R=—F—

BEREMMBERYTIZR
ZEEBMBHEBRERRR) -

BEBESEBGRIKRBEDAARRELS - SL BRG]
BHENEEZA -

EFRUFERERBEESEBRHERLE -

BTABRETHBREOUAFRIER THBGTE -

BERZRER T A BB RRIK -

BRESTHBREENETHBGEHBRIAET A -

BTRERRENMEEIERIAR NS TREBGEGIAGH
TERIERIE B TR -

BTHEBMXENARFRANNE THBREBGRIAER
FlARNE TR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

Notes:

HtERER®RE

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown of Peru since Q2
2020, the mining activities at our coal mines continued to be suspended in 2021
in order to follow the pandemic preventive measure of the local government for
preventing virus transmission and hence we only maintain necessary administration
operation in mine office. Thus, the data coverage in 2020 is available to the
business of mineral concentrates trading, mine office operation in Peru and the
property management services in Mainland China. Due to the business nature, no
packaging materials are utilised in our business segments as we are not engaged
in manufacturing industry.

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is made with reference to “How to
prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
published by HKEX and international standards such as ISO 14064 and GHG
Protocol, 2020 sustainability report of HK Electric and the UNDP Environmental
Performance Reporting Tool.

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emission covers the direct emissions from the
combustion of fuels in mobile sources controlled by the Group.

Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission covers the indirect energy emission from the
purchased electricity consumption by the Group.

The waste generated in the operation of trading business is mainly collected by the
property management company and hence the Group did not quantify the waste
data for disclosure for information disclosure. Due to the suspension of work for
coal mining during the Reporting Period, no waste generation at coal mines was
recorded in 2021.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of fuels consumption to energy units
are with reference to CDP Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh in 2020.

The water billing of mineral concentrates trading business is included in the office
rental fee and hence there is no available data for information disclosure.

The figure is only covered the consumption in mineral concentrates trading
business.

The figure of employee number and employee turnover is calculated based on the
number of headcounts.

The turnover rate covers employee voluntary resignations and retirements.

The overall employee turnover rate equals the total number of employee turnover
divided by the total number of employees.

The employee turnover rate equals the total number of employee turnover in
corresponding gender group divided by the total number of employees in the
gender group.

The employee turnover rate equals the total number of employee turnover in
corresponding age group divided by the total number of employees in the age
group.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

BE @

Section/Explanation

BEHBERE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BB
Governance
Structure

B % = Al
Reporting
Principles

HESEHHMNER EFRHETINAD :

() BREREFGURE HEREAFENEE:

(i) BEFENRE LSBT RAEEHITLERE  BETE - Bk
FIREREENRE HeREAEBEE (BEHEITAED
R BB - &k

(i) EFSWMRRE HERELAHEEERIER  AUHET
fIanfal BB 1T A ETE B R o

A statement from the board containing the following elements:

(i) adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate, prioritize and manage material
ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses);
and

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the
issuer’s businesses.

Wl B ERRERE L8 MEARERWAER THIERRA

EEM RE HeLEAREEEE: (BHIEERE HEME
AREMNBREMEBELRZMNEL : WNETADETENES
B BEMNEERHENRANRETARNESENBERER -

Bit: EEERIRE ERFEM (WER) ANEE 775 BRR
R/SEFETANER - URAEROEREZNRRE T RE -

—HM BITARERSE HegNERRMETKES AN BRE
BIEFENEE (M) EMEMFERERLRNEFAEE -

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report:

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors; (i) if
a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of significant
stakeholders identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s
stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion
factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy consumption
(where applicable) should be disclosed.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors
affecting a meaningful comparison.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

BMOERER g hER/EEAL
Our ESG Management Approach

B ¥R R Al
Reporting Principles
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ESG Reporting Guide

B @

Section/Explanation

H

=

EHREE
Reporting
Boundary

A1 BER

A1 Emission

A1

BREN
EEA11
KPI A1.1

BEEN
B51EA1.2
KPI A1.2

B AN
EEA1L3
KPI A1.3

BREN
15ZA1.4
KPI A1.4

RERE HekEaRENERSGE @ KiEdhE LB R8s X5
MARE HeghkBEAREHNBRIE BERBEGNE  BITAR
REIRZEREBREA -

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the
scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for the
change.

—RWE
BHERIMRZEREBHN - MK LHOEES  FERESTEEYY
EEFH

(a BE: R

(o) BTFEHBEITABERZEMHEBEER LA
BB o

General Disclosure

Information:

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.

e iR A R AR R BE I BUE

The types of emissions and respective emission data.

BEE(HE1) kpREE (BE2) A=REBHME (U E) & (40
BR)ERE(MNBESEMN  BERWBTE) -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

PMELAEEEMHEE UANFE) L (ER) ZE (MASEESE
{7 - SIHERMEE H) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

PELEEZEEYHEE UANGE) L (ER) ZE (MASEEE
i - BIERMETHE) °

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

R ARE
About the Report

1. BER

1. Emissions

1B — 1.1 BERBE
7R 4 48 BRI

1. Emissions — 1.1 Air Emissions

Key Performance Indicators

BB IR R
Key Performance Indicators

RS AE IR AR
Key Performance Indicators

BB A IR IR

Key Performance Indicators

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide

B R

Section/Explanation

BERAEAN RIRPIEI S EVHE N E B IR R RERE L B R ERERE P58 -
51EA15 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
KPI A1.5 them.

BREN WHREEEREEERYNITE  RIEBAETZAERERRERA

E1EA1.6 EDELHEMEKRONLSRE -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

A2 EREH
A2 Use of Resources

A2 —MRIREE
BURERER (BIEER KEREMERMR) KK -
General Disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRAEAN REMNESHNERER KEEER(WNE - Roa) @FEE (UTET
EEA2.1 EEFHE)REE(WAEESEN -  BHERMEFTHE) -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity

and mobile) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREN BAEKERERE(WMNGESEM  BHERKMBTHE) -

51EA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

KPI A2.2 volume, per facility).

BRAEN RIRPTEI LBV BERE A e B R R AR EDE & B IRFTEREA) P 8K -

51ZEA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to

KPI A2.3 achieve them.

BRAEAN HACSKEUERKR LA B EMEE - MR CHAKEEEZER

EEA2.4 REDEL BRI 8 -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

BREN HXDATABEMHNRE (UEAE) X (WER) BEERMUGE -
51ZEA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
KPI A2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

oE B EAXER LT

1. BER — 1.1 BERHER

1. Emissions — 1.1 Air Emissions

1. B —1.3 BEEYEE
1. Emissions — 1.3 Waste
Management

2. BREM

2. Use of Resources

BB IR IR
Key Performance Indicators

B8 4B IR 1R
Key Performance Indicators

2. BIREM

2. Use of Resources

2. ER1FEH

2. Use of Resources

EREBME  TEEMNKEEE
I M B EE AR

Due to the business nature, no
packaging materials is used in the
Group’s operations.
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B @

Section/Explanation

H

=

ASREBERRXARER
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 — MR EE
WERBITAHRERAAEREKRERNTZERIE -
General Disclosure
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BREN ML XK EHHRERRAERNERTERCRREEFHATE

BEA3.1 BITTE o

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

Ad RIRZ 1L

A4 Climate Change

A4 —MREEE
BRI R EH D RAIEEHBETAEEYENERABGHEFEEED
BUR ©

General Disclosure
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer.
BEREN R RAEeHETAEEYENEARGREEE  REY
EEA4A T8 -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

B1 &%
B1 Employment

B1 — R EE
ERAFWEER BEREA TIEHH - BEY - FEEE - 2T
£ RERAREMEFBREFA :

() BUR: &
(b) BSFHBEITABBEAFENMAREERZLED
B E K} o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer. Relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

B BRELRKARER

3. The Environment and Natural

Resources

3 IREMRARER

3. The Environment and Natural

Resources
4. RISt
4

.4>

FIREE

4. Climate Change

5. BEKSTER

. Climate Change

5. Employment and Labour

Standards

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide Section/Explanation
BERAEAN R EEER (WE2BNER)  FRAENKMREASHESE BREBER
51EB1.1 £ o Key Performance Indicators
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.
BREN RIER - FIRAER RMEEDHEERKLLE - BB IR IR
{51EB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Key Performance Indicators
KPI B1.2 region.
B2 REHEZE
B2 Health and Safety
B2 — AR EE 6. BEELZ S
FAREZ2TEREMREREHRBENEEN 6. Health and Safety
(a) X &
(b) BTHBTAFERTENHBEEKLBRD
BV EHL o
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BREN AITHAABRLEE - B A IR R
51EB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Key Performance Indicators
KPI B2.1
BERAEAN EIEEAIIERE - BB IR R
51EB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Key Performance Indicators
KPI B2.2
BERAEAN R PTER AV BB R R R L 25k ARMBBRITRERAE - 6. ERMALTE 6.1 BERFHL S
$51ZB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, 6. Health and Safety — 6.1
KPI B2.3 how they are implemented and monitored. Occupational Health and Safety

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

woE B
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ESG Reporting Guide

B @

Section/Explanation

B3 #E R IEF

B3 Development and Training

B3

BEREN
15 ZB3.1
KPI B3.1

BEEN
$51€B3.2
KPI B3.2

B4 % T %8|

—RRE
FRARTEERIT TEBRENANE R REREE - #HAEIES -
General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

RUERREERN(MESREEE HREEE) A>OXIEER
DL e

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

ZERIREEBERNED  BREB TR TR -
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

B4 Labour Standard

B4

BEEN
151ZB4.1
KPI B4.1

BREN
{51ZB4.2
KPI B4.2

— AR R

BRABT IEE T e s Ty :

(a) BR: &

(o) BTHETABEATENHBEERELBRD

AR -

General Disclosure

Information relating to preventing child and forced labour:

(@) the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

R BB MNERABEE T RRHIST -
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.

TR E R BN BER B BB ST RIS 5 o
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

7. BERKIEI
7. Development and Training

B8 42 48 BRI

Key Performance Indicators

BB IR IR
Key Performance Indicators

5. EfE &% T 28|
5. Employment and Labour
Standards

5 EERSB TR
5. Employment and Labour
Standards

5. EfE R T 28|
5. Employment and Labour
Standards

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide Section/Explanation

B5 fEEEE
B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 — R E 8. e E IR
BIEMERNIRE RS ERREE - 8. Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.
BREAN BB S HEEEE - 8. HEHE IR
5 &B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 8. Supply Chain Management

KPI B5.1

BgEN W ERERHERNED MERTEBEINOHERHRE Ak 8 HERER

$51B5.2 MEEITMERFE - 8. Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BAREEN RO BBABNEEESRIRENIRERASRARAED - ARAERE 8 HEREEIE
$51ZB5.3 HITRERGE - 8. Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
BAREN ol EREHERKEEZARREMERBEHOED - ARBBALH 8 HEHEE
{51ZB5.4 1TREERFE - 8. Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
B6 EmEE
B6 Product Responsibility
B6 — M ER 0. Em&EME
FHMREERMRBNERELS  BE  SHEERLEBEEARM 9. Product Responsibility
T ER
(a) BUR: &
(o) BFHBETABERZEHMEERREN
B &R

General Disclosure

Information relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BIR g REARKEES
ESG Reporting Guide

B @

Section/Explanation

BREN
5 #ZB6.1
KPI B6.1

BREN
$5#ZB6.2
KPI B6.2

BREN
$5/Z2B6.3
KPI B6.3

BREN
15/ZB6.4
KPI B6.4

BREN
$5/ZB6.5
KPI B6.5

B7 RES

EERCEXERBHETAR2ERERIEHMEALQKNA DL -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

EEENERMREORFBEAREE X -
Number of products and service-related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

Rl R R RE B EEGRENED -
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

R E 2R ERIEREMBKIERF
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

HHOEBEERRERMLEBEE  URBEEBATRERTE -
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.

B7 Anti-corruption

B7

BREN
5 ZB7.1
KPI B7.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

— M E

BRI IEFER - 9% - MEFRARER -

(a) BXE: &

(o) EBFHBITABERFZENHBREZEED
B E R} o

General Disclosure

Information relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.

RERPAHETAXEEERETEEENE THARGHEE
KRR o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

9. EmBE
9. Product Responsibility

9. EmBfE
9. Product Responsibility

ERAEBMOEBILE - MBER
TEAEZRE

Due to the Group’s business
nature, intellectual property rights
are not considered to be material
issues

9. EmBE
9. Product Responsibility

9. EmEfE
9. Product Responsibility

10. RE)5

10. Anti-corruption

10. RES
10. Anti-corruption

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide Section/Explanation
BERAEAN AT EE R ERER  AREERITRERFE - 10. RES

51EB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 10. Anti-corruption
KPI B7.2 how they are implemented and monitored.

ERAEAN HREEFREIRENRESEI -
$51ZB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
KPI B7.3

B8 HE®RE

B8 Community Investment

B8 —REE
FRAUHEBE2ERTREENEHEFTENEREXBEHEER
#t[&@ F) R Y BUR -

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BREN EIERER (HE  BRREE HIFRK R Xt 8B5F) -
5 1&B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
KPI B8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).

ERAEAN EEISBMBAER(NEENER) -
$51£B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
KPI B8.2

ACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EF KB EXAER 2 A

10. RES
10. Anti-corruption

1. @R E

11. Community Investment

11. B E

11. Community Investment

11. B E

11. Community Investment
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining
high standard of corporate governance practices. The primary
corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Year”) and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviations:

—  Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 June
2021 (*AGM”) due to other business engagement. The chairman of
the Audit Committee, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and certain members of the Nomination Committee were present at
the AGM to answer the shareholders’ questions.

— Under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should at least annually hold meetings with the independent
non-executive directors without the presence of other directors.
Due to various other business engagement, the Chairman of
the Board did not meet up with the independent non-executive
Directors during the Reporting Year. The Chairman of the
Board will come up with a meeting date with the independent
non-executive Directors as earliest as possible to make sure that
they can meet without other executive Directors present in the
reporting year of 2022.

— Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
During the Reporting Year, not all the independent non-executive
Directors attended the AGM due to other business engagement.
The Company will finalize and inform the dates of the general
meetings as earliest as possible to make sure that the independent
non-executive Directors can attend the general meetings in future.

— Under code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meeting should be held at least four times
during the Reporting Year at approximately quarterly intervals. The
Board met only three times during the Reporting Year. Instead of
holding Board meetings, certain matters of the Company were
dealt with through written resolutions signed by the Directors. The
Board members were properly briefed, actively discussed on issues
and were presented with accurate, clear, complete and reliable
information for the well-informed decisions in the best interests of
the Company.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021 after specific enquiry.

The Company believes that the current procedures to remind all
Directors and senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) to follow strictly with the Model Code prior to
publication of the Group’s interim and final results remain sufficient to
prevent non-compliance with the Model Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report,
except (i) Mr. Cao Kuangyu resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 July 2021 and (ii) Mr. Fung
Chuen Kin was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1 July 2021, there was no change in the
structure of the Board, which currently comprises nine Directors and is
of the opinion that it has a balance of skill and experience based on the
following composition:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Jian (General Manager)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Fung Chuen Kin
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board for the Reporting Year and up
to the date of this Annual Report. At least one of the independent
non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional qualification
and/or experience in accounting and/or related financial management
expertise. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
Each independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a period of two years until terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions specified therein.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
21 of this Annual Report. Save as disclosed therein, there are no
other relationship (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that they are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board communicates regularly to discuss the overall strategy and
business plans as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, financial, capital,
remuneration and mergers and acquisition matters. During the year
under review, three Board meetings and the AGM were held. The
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM s set
out as follows:

HE S BTERRE
Meetings Attended/Held*
o= Directors EEg [
Board BEXE
Meeting AGM
HITESE Executive Directors
BEEE Mr. Fu Kwan 0/3 0/1
ok B A Mr. Zhang Jian 3/3 0/1
RMBERE Mr. Zhang Bishu 2/3 0/1
2Fa+ Ms. Liu Jing 2/3 0/1
PR B o A Mr. Chang Yeuk 2/3 0/1
B ARAE Mr. Zhou Jianren 3/3 01
BIUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MWER ST E Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 3/3 1/1
e Mr. Cao Kuangyu (resigned on 1 July 2021) 1/2 0/1
(RZZEZ—FtA—HEE)
SN SLE Mr. Fung Chuen Kin (appointed on 1 July 2021) 0/1 0/0
(RZZEZ—F+tH—HEZMT)
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 3/3 1/1

: EREEHARSRTZEREA -
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MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EAAERLF




TEXERRE

" CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RBEFERN EFETERECFRIZEREAE
B EERE 2FRPHMRE  AMEENEAR

AHE - BEER  2ERWENBRRZEE ° It
Sh AR REEHREEMRBR 2T AER MM
BEEBRARRZABERASREAMERZET
EH-

ExgflenmBReRgERTEHEL THREHM -
EREMEFEEE ARSI —RAEREH
HBA - BEREFEERBTHEL =RAEF
HheRZRLEMHEBERN  LAMBESEH
A NEREMERIAEZTEEHHIZAN -

ARMEBRARFMEESTERZEERACH
HOERMERERZAMESR - @FTH 2R R
REETREERMEES  UHREFBHENEREE
RRERTE BEZANRARMERGER LR
B MArElRNESERR  BREBESS
CREF c RRINERABUENRECESTRY
AR ARBREEERE -

ERER
EREFHRREESSNARFEINLAEEE
BREIEES - SEERRALAESN  XAIERER
ERFE—TER - ARFIERAEZTGRHETID
RELER  REFQAUSERGHMARENE
BREMER  FHAREBENFE - EFTAUER
HIRBAFMENBERNZERAMBHORE - ARFE
MEBEFRUEFER  FIARARRNK
B BB EATROAERREONE - AT
NEEEBTRE EFENCRAE EFHEE
THEERERSKBYEEER ERHARF
AT e

EERERBEEERE

TAHFREINEFEEZIZTRESHREAED - R
ERMPAHARENERGEENWER - ARAE
AHELETRUMERIEREERE THRE
REE ARRAEFRHEEBAREEHREAL
THEFER ESREESARMIELEEER
UAREHRTSESH cRMEN  NEBETHER
F-ARAKERNEFTER/ETLHREZNA
REEER-

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the Reporting Year, the Board has dealt with matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim results, internal
control and risk assessment, corporate governance and matters of
acquisition of a subsidiary. In addition, certain matters relating to the
Company’s announcements of inside information and other affairs
were reviewed and approved by written resolutions signed by all the
Directors.

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors in advance for regular
Board meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice period
is given. Meeting agendas and other relevant information are normally
provided to the Directors at least 3 days in advance of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board
and committee meetings which are recorded in sufficient detail about
the matters considered. Both draft and final versions of the minutes are
sent to all Directors for their comments and records. Directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board meeting procedures
are followed.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary.
Sufficient explanation and information have been provided to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary. Update
which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details is provided
to all Directors to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Board has also agreed that the Directors
may seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expenses.

DIRECTORS INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Directors are given an induction after their
appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of their duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, and
the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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RATISEARESSHELRESHERE) - 2H The Company encourages the participation of ongoing professional

AARNRIEE - @ARIEEN T - —FFRNLXR~HEE  trainings by individual Director at the Company’s expenses. The training

Bl o Ul participation by individual Director during 2021 is summarised as
below:

HE R

gz,

wie

Hneg,

B

Attending

induction

training/

seminars/

MR briefings/
Reading professional

materials trainings
HITESE Executive Directors
BELLE Mr. Fu Kwan v/ v/
iRk B A Mr. Zhang Jian v/ v/
RMNEBLAE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/ -
B+ Ms. Liu Jing v/ -
PR BB 4t A= Mr. Chan Yeuk 4 -
BEALE Mr. Zhou Jianren v/ .
BIUKHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MEDR A& Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert v v
BHTAEE Mr. Cao Kuangyu (resigned on 1 July 2021) v -
(R=ZBE=_—FEA—HEMT
IR E Mr. Fung Chuen Kin (appointed on 1 July 2021) v v
(RZZEZ—FEtA—HEZE)
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai v v

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

On top of the regulatory and statutory responsibilities, the main duties
of the Board include formulating strategy as well as monitoring and
controlling operating and financial performance of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
have been consulted on major and material matters of the Company
and have been encouraged to make active contribution to the affairs
of the Board. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and are committed
to act in good faith and make decisions in the best interests of both
the Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board delegates
day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group to the
management of the relevant principal divisions. The Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have
been set up to assist the Board to discharge its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Al Committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and report to the Board with
recommendations. The final decisions are rested with the Board, unless
otherwise provided in terms of reference of the relevant Committees.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code and
has adopted the latest corporate governance code manual (including
continuous professional development of directors, the compliance of
the Model Code, etc) since March 2016. In addition, the Company’s
employee whistleblowing guidelines has also been in place since March
2012. During the Reporting Year, liability insurance for the Company’s
Directors and senior management was maintained by the Company
with coverage for any legal liabilities which may arise in the course of
performing their duties.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 that give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board is responsible for presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. The Directors have made an assessment
on the liquidity position of the Group as to whether the Group is able
to operate as a going concern for sixteen months from the end of the
Reporting Year. The Directors are in the opinion that it is appropriate
for the Group to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement of the auditors of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 87
to 89 of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the board and the chief executive officer are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. During the
Reporting Year, Mr. Fu Kwan has been the Chairman of the Company
and responsible for the leadership and the effective operation of the
Board. Mr. Zhang Jian has been the general manager of the Company
and assumes the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He has been responsible for the day-to-day management
of the businesses in all aspects effectively, the implementation of the
strategies approved by the Board, the development and formulation
of business plans, budgets and financial objectives for consideration
by the Board, and the establishment and maintenance of proper
internal controls and risk management systems with the support of the
Company’s Audit Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. Their presence and participation also
enable the Board to maintain good standards of compliance in financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise
in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have
sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, (i) any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment or (ii) any director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company. Any
Director appointed shall then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Fung Chuen Kin
and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai. Mr. Cheung Ka Wai is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board. The remuneration of Directors are based on the skKill
and contribution in the Company’s affairs and are determined by
reference to duties and responsibilities of the executive Directors
after considering the Group’s performance and the prevailing market
situations including salaries paid by comparable companies. No
Director is involved in determining his own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the
Company’s website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was one meeting held
by the Remuneration Committee to review the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management as well as the remuneration
policies.

Details of the remuneration paid and payable to Directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2021
are disclosed in notes 8, 9 and 39(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Attendance of the Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Year
is set out below:

HESBERE BTERRE

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held*

REELE(EE) Mr. Cheung Ka Wai (Chairman) 1/1

MRS HE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1

BT RA Mr. Cao Kuangyu (resigned on 1 July 2021) 11
(RZZEZ—FtH—HEHE)

BINELEE Mr. Fung Chuen Kin (appointed on 1 July 2021) 0/0

(R=F-—FtA—BEE)
REZRY

ARAR-F-_FEKURELEZES NEFE
FHR MEREABEAR - RELZEQB AN
FHTEFR(BERLE(REBZESIR) AREL
E)R=ZBBIUFRNTESE MERELE BIIZ
FTERKBRELE)EK - REZBEEHREAE
LEERELER  FEESRABENIRESS
ZRBELHEHEMZAE - REZESZRESR
B R R ARBHIEER]

EEQCR T =FRMEFTEZ TILBE -
HEEEHEFETEZ 2N L REZBENA
BRI ARBENAREIRRA 2 EFMATEE A
BT ERZSTERIER - ARARBBERES
BRZ(BRETRREKE RERTELR 5
BBk -MREEMRE)EREFEZ UL
RETEFSZRERBIE - AAR T RE
REZEBBRARTRZHEFTL HAEFTEX
FEZTERA - HERMEY TR EETENE 2 &R E
MEREZ bRt It R Z b E B R Z
AEMBRAEETEEEKE -

* EREEHMARTZEREE -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Nomination Committee was set up in 2012 to review
and make recommendations for new candidates to the Board. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive Directors
(Mr. Fu Kwan (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhang
Jian) and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lam Man
Sum, Albert, Mr. Fung Chuen Kin and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai). The
Nomination Committee will assess new candidates based on their
skills, experience and who, in its opinion, are able to make positive
contribution to the performance of the Board. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to review the policy and any measurable
objectives as may be adopted from time to time and to review the
progress on achieving the objectives. The Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities. The Company will also
take into account of its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does
not intend to fix a diversity quota for Board members appointment or
set a short term objective on gender diversity, for such policies may
compromise on the calibre of Directors.

It refers to number of meeting held during his tenure.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was one meeting held
by the Nomination Committee to mainly review (i) the structure, size,
composition and diversity policy of the Board; (i) the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company and (iii)
the re-appointment of retiring Directors for election by shareholders
of the Company at the AGM. The matters relating to the review of
the biographies of the candidate to be appointed as the new Director
and the recommendation to the Board in this regard were dealt with
by written resolutions signed by the members of the Nomination
Committee.

Attendance of the Nomination Committee during the Reporting Year is
set out below:

HESRRE BITERRE

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held*

EEEE(FE) Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman) 0/1

SR B A Mr. Zhang Jian 1/1

WEFREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1

BT EA Mr. Cao Kuangyu (resigned on 1 July 2021) 1/1
(EA_v_—i‘tﬁ HEHE)

B 25 £ Mr. Fung Chuen Kin (appointed on 1 July 2021) 0/0
(E/\ T+ —HEZMHF)

RERETE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 1/1

* BREEHRSRTZEREE -

BEREES

ERZEERN— jUULE}ﬂZi B R =R
HITEEMERELE  BIBEERREELEEA
R - 3 AR 5‘&%5@*&1}* EVZEETIRA
FRBZEXESHERR SBHBE /L LETR
AIE310QFREZHBMEERFEEME - AR
AIEEST EMRANEI2MGZRE - EREZEGZ
BESEN RN ARABEER -

ERZEER T —FERRITMAEH

FERN BERZEGHFERAHINMT

It refers to number of meeting held during his tenure.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Man Sum,
Albert, Mr. Fung Chuen Kin and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, and is chaired
by Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and/or experience in
accounting and/or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2021. Attendance of the
Audit Committee during the Reporting Year is set out below:

HESRRE BTERRB

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held*

MEREE (EE) Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert (Chairman) 2/2

REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 2/2

BT EAE Mr. Cao Kuangyu (resigned on 1 July 2021) 1/1
(RZZE=Z—F+A—H#T)

BINEEAE Mr. Fung Chuen Kin (appointed on 1 July 2021) 0/1

(R—F=—FtA-BEZRMD
T ERAMEASTZEREE -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

It refers to number of meetings held during his tenure.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



Fi&iifm %Vé,\aﬁ%%/‘hfﬁ\gfi &57}

ﬁf‘%%%%lﬁ ¢t$7|\ ' %%?E/‘*ﬁﬁ$%l2ﬂ
REERABERERG - AKEEE_T_—FX
A=Z+TRALERNEAZREERTMEERHE
Z_TFE+ A=+ -HUEFEZEERFEZE
BMOHEZZESEN  ELZEERAS  %FH

BB SRR BN AR R AR - 1

BIEHT D HE -
e 2

BE-_T -~ F+-_RA=1T"HLEFEREHH
BACHEFESAMEBABERAAERZ - XMW
EFERN - BEEHHELMAERRRMEHRSE
T7ﬁﬁf%uﬂlﬂiz;§ﬁﬁ7%900OOO/’%TE(_—«_7¢

900,000/ L) ~ Bl & it FH A AR A AR
E-B- 4+ - A=+ ALFEIMETE
AERBRY (—F-FF  m) -
EEEERAEER
EERMTBARRECRIRARRARERZ

RREREEABEZERGARBELAEEZEER
EAEEBEPRIRE  WREARBRRZ#
o S RBREENANEERARAR/EEMD
3!5&,%@9%%9%HM HEr IR A B REBMIFBE R
BRI EERRERMKIER

$'¥l RAEABEZIEE - YO ERLAREEE

CHEREEE %V%u@&aﬁ)ﬁ o REE
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁf DAHEE ~ fHE R EEANEEMAE
HBNEARR  EBEMLBER  FERERS

MREXBEUAR R - S EERKEBAER
H[ﬁi%ﬁ&af@ﬁﬂi%l%ﬁ“pﬂﬁ EHIEARN
MEHLBERRE - EFTSHMBHEBETH R

Iuﬂéﬁﬂ REIE R A EMERI R R 2B R

REBR AR AL AR EERABEERREE

By ABIEREENRE BEREH L BE
RENHR BRI - % A EREEBRIT R
27 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #

SEEABRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee provided accounting
and financial advices and recommendations to the Board as well as
reviewed the independence of external auditors and relevant auditing
matters. Also, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s unaudited interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee which was of the opinion that the preparation
of the relevant financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
has been made.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. During
the Reporting Year, the fee in respect of audit service provided by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was HK$900,000 (2020: HK$900,000).
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited did not perform any non-audit
services during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibilities for the
establishment and maintenance of an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interest of shareholders of the Company. Furthermore, the risk
management and internal control system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has a built-in internal audit function and has established a
risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the management. On-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group has been
established. Business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with their respective units. The results
of evaluation will be reported to management through regular internal
meetings associated with the list of risks identified and management’s
assessment on the impact to the Group. The Board discussed the risk
identified and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

The Group is of the view that an effective risk management and
internal control system is in place which encompasses sound control
environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well-defined policies
and monitoring procedures and is reviewed and enhanced by the
management at regular intervals.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EAAERLF
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The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practices, risk management and internal control system.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group engaged
external consultants to perform review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group at least once a
year and make recommendations for improvement and strengthening
of its risk management and internal control system. Based on the
reports on the findings from the external consultants, no major issues
but areas of improvement have been identified. All recommendations
will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time and the Board considered the Group’s risk
management and internal control system were effective in all material
aspects during the year.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Company has formulated its guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the
insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure
obligation of the inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the company secretary
attended relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, special general meetings may be
convened by the Board upon requisition by any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings
of the Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business at 15/F, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (“Head Office”), specifying the
shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at its Head Office, specifying the shareholding information
of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business at its Head Office. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Directors are aware of the importance of maintaining good relations
and communications with shareholders of the Company. The Company
continues to promote investor relations and communication with its
investors. The Company uses a range of communication tools, such as
annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual and interim
reports, various notices, announcements and circulars etc, to ensure its
shareholders are kept informed of the Company’s information.

The Company has maintained a website at http://macrolinkcapital.
etnet.com.hk, which serves as a platform for corporate communications
with its shareholders and the general public. All corporate
communications required under the Listing Rules are displayed (for
documents published in the previous 5 years) on the Company’s
website, which has established procedures to ensure timely update in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in 2019. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of the
Group. The Company intends to pay out on annual dividend payment
for the then financial year after taking into consideration of, inter alia,
the following factors:

(i)  the Group’s financial results;
(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i)  future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

(iv)  the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants of our
Group’s bank and other loans; and

(v)  any other factors that our Board may consider appropriate.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EAAERLF
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The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the Bye-
Laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company
must be approved by an ordinary resolution of its shareholders at an
annual general meeting. The Board may from time to time pay to the
shareholders such interim and/or special dividends as it considers to be
justified by the profits of the Group.

Any declaration and/or payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are/is subject to the Board’s determination that the same
would be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. The Board endeavors to strike a balance
between the shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
and the Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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&5 31/F, Gloucester Tower
I = \ = = The Landmark
HLB /fiT T FEH A R EITH115% 11 Pedder Street
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED E iy 12 Central
HHETITRNE31#E  Hong Kong

BHEBRELRBRAA TO THE MEMBERS OF

ZEBR MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(REZEZEAIMET 2 HRAAE]) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
=58 OPINION

EEORIZFIEEF2I8EMH TR A AAGR  We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macrolink
AT( SRF) REMBAR (5B &% E]) 2z Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
SEAMBHmE  WUBREBIEN_SE-—4F+= (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 218,
B=1t—B2&S&880BHAREk EHEZBIEFE 2 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
,/:.\Ta IR CHFEErTEKER  GEeEEEHRL 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
SARERER  URGAMBHEN T (B1FE  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
Eg quEﬁzﬁﬁ%;() statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

EERA  BAVBBREBEEESHEAE ([F  In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and

BestiiAe ) BHENESHGHREER ([F4 fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31

BEREEAN D EER AP REEER N —-ZF December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and

——FE+ A=+ —BNEAMBIHR R RENE its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

iEZEIiifﬁ’ﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁmg -3¢ with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by

EIRBEBSANTIGEINEEREL BRE - the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EENER BASIS FOR OPINION
EERRBREE quEﬂi”AﬁEWﬁZE/%V%IE BI([%&  We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
BAZEUCER ) EITEZIIE - REZ S YERITE T~ Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under

CEAEREEZZ2H/E ﬁq%ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁggﬁéﬁ/fﬁ those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
IRFEFRIEMEF—EE—FB - TFRIEFHE  for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
© qugmﬂAﬁE{%ﬁZE%E #5&@{%#,@/((#@ 1) our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the

B BEER - BENCBETNERES 2H  HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
HEEEE - —Eﬂ;a@ B LT ESREZEEEF R and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
BENEENAEEZERIBMHEE- with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

BEEZEIR KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Eﬁﬁé%’f?%lﬁﬁﬁ L2EEHEMS - HEFE  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
AN HARE 2 &R ﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%?%%xm%E %E judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
IEEEEM*%%%%%?Sﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ%&ﬁ‘dwttﬂﬂif financial statements of the current period. These matters were
RFETRERN LT eHZEEHEEMESE  addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
MER o statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

HREEZER

Key audit matter

BARFEEBXPE=RBREN1GE

Valuation of investments classified as level 3

in the fair value hierarchy

DEZE W B RERME18 -

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

W—T——¢+:ﬁz+—avﬁ%Eﬁu&%@ﬁ%a
HE 8 ABRAIE ETRAIRE K8 X32,922,000/8 T °
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unlisted equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
approximately HK$32,922,000.

mmu NPEAEBEHBEHT ABRNIE LTRARENS
SENOERSMBMERNERLES - MG AR TETE
Hﬁﬁ FRABENRARENGEFESENMGET TR
- Bt BFFEBREZIE - AREEHET AN
@ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ“ﬁ&%ﬁﬂ% At - ARAZ T EHESR
BRIRARRER °
We paid significant attention to this area due to the
material balance of the equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the estimation of the valuations of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to this area is considered significant due to critical
judgement involved in determining the critical estimates
and assumptions used in the valuations.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EZERBEEEBEHBEAATERRPE=ZRNRENBEMET
ZRERFEE:

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investments classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
included:

e THREBEENWHAMSMEENGEN AN ELEERTEE
P RERGHTEEMNEERAMERRREZ - 40
AN FEN EREERERRESRFFNSERMT
VA BT Al 88 K 85 AR R it &) [ 75 LB
Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of the
valuations of other financial assets and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

e AEBEEMZEMNBYUREESERMGEMZIBES
RO REEIM
Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional qualified valuer engaged by
the management;

s ZRMEZRBYHESZFTLMAIENESEIERMIEH
REFREREZEEMN
Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess
the appropriateness of the methodology used and the
reasonableness of the key estimates and assumptions

made;
. = BT EUE AR 1% DA RORI R (& E AT A SRR
MM K&

Considering the relevance of the data used and testing
the accuracy of the input data used in the valuations;
and

e G EVBBRANEEBARTERBRPE=ZHRNRK
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&?%%km&i%
Evaluating the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures about the valuations of investments classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy in the consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

BARELEE (|
BREXEE

Key audit matter

BREYFEZ15E

Valuation of investment properties
DEGZE M EHREWTELS -

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEENREMEUNRTEIIE -ERERE BEEERE
MER_ZE_—F+_A=+—BZ2RAFELRT6,414,000
B MBREMEREBEE-_T-_—F+ZA=T—HILF
B2 AFEEEN2,322,0008 TR GEBERAAR B
MIREMERSEH LINEMEE - REDENHEKBEM
BERABHFAEANE TRE MZERIZITEEREZT
Z AREHERARTEEAZEE EAEZRFERE
HREPERF 2 TORAEL Z HEAR® -

The Group’s investment properties are carried at fair value.
Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be approximately HK$76,414,000
as at 31 December 2021 with fair value loss on investment
properties for the year ended 31 December 2021
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
of approximately HK$2,322,000. Independent external
valuation was obtained in respect of the investment
properties. The valuation of the investment properties
is dependent on certain assumptions adopted in the
valuation process, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual results.
Reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EEZBERNMEERRERSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEREEBUREMEZCHEMETZIEFEH

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of

investment properties included:

s HEBUBXRSERMEEMZBES

Evaluation of the independent professional qualified

CREARFEIE

valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

s ZEBGEEERBHEFHEMMBIIENG B NAIER

BERZAEME: Rk

Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess
the appropriateness of the methodology used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions made; and

o  ERERMABUEMMERIENALBH AR E A EREN

Considering the relevance of the data used and testing

the accuracy of the calculation of the estimates.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

FREECENBASERE

REGREUBHREREDRBRIESESSRFEL
BEERE QA o JNUNARS B RS IR KR MY 51 R ET &Y
W BESERIEEMLCERE  ERHEAEFE
#/387,493,000/8 7T + WHRRNZEE 4B R Al 8
B BEERBEKERERECENENTERE
ARG -  BEEEHZRSESTHERBELNTGHARER
EBEHAEBEEMN S REEIMAMF1RER - 3t
mE RPN ERTBRIEZEEER -

Hfth &
BAFMCEFARBUAMERN - HLANBEF
BEFBZAN  ETEEFAMBRERES ML
ZRBE RS ((Har]) -

BERSEAMBRRZEALTRES
A AR BEREMEA 2 HE S

foER -

o

/i

e
= =T
B &
= =T

S

HESHEAMBRR BRGNS  BFZEER
BEREMEN  HMEEREMENEE RRE M
BEAXEEFHEBRZBRTEZNERFEERT
o AFEEAHERL - WEBEFEERD THH
THERREMEHHRBAHEREL - EFARE
HEE -HEETE BFLREEMAMRS -

EERERZEENGEYBRRE
EENEME

1

BERREZAAERBRABEAMAGRM2EE
M mEER R BB R RMRD 2 W ERTERBIEL
EEMAARBRZEAMBER YREEERR
IRERGEAVBBRRZER I FEARKIFNE
R ERE B A REUR AT THE 2B BABES

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

EMPHASIS OF MATTER REGARDING GOING
CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Group will continue as a going concern. As discussed in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
suffered recurring losses from operations, has net current liabilities
of approximately HK$87,493,000, and has stated that these events
or conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s evaluation of the events
and conditions and management’s plans and measures regarding these
matters are also described in note 1. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT (continued) f

ESNERZBERASHBRRA
=1

RREEEMBHERE  EFARENE BE5E
FELENREN IREERELZAENER
(ER) - BRIFEFHER BEREFR HfFLL
28 FKIZ MY EBEMBERATTHOMIE - B A
EEARAUBBELERERNGE -

g5

EAAEFERRERRHY TRITLEE
B8 B S R AR AT o

BRBMRERREMBHRRAEREN
BfE

EENEER EHEEBRAVBEBRRES I FE
RSB RMEBNEANFERRARS A
RiE YREBEARE-NN-FRADEFEWNEE
m BT (ERER LASRESERNZEM
WE - RSN BEENBRENMEEMRE - BF
TERARENATAETAEMA TR LAE
EAEME - EBRELESKTEHRE - BTERE
BREBEGEENETHEZER —ERERR
MR B RE TR o $RRRIRUM ] A i BRAF Sl #E AR 5
o HEERAREEN A BRI EZERE
M MEREREAELGERE - RIBRAEHRR
PR AT AR AEE K -

EERBEERBEALETERNIEZ - &
AEXHE  EERERZBRETAFBEIRREE

T o B :
X [=Rayi "

o HRBIAMFFEARNREFLERMEBRE M
BREFEEAFRRANAR - Rt R
BEZEFAREZERR ARG EM
BEMNBEZERE FRBESEANER - /A
RERFEARES LSRR RE E2ER &
RERA - HERBRARRZES 2 £ - FithREe
ERRAMFMEBNEAERRANARS
REHRMEBNWERERRAO R -

o  THREZEZMEBNAIES  URFTEEN
BEZRERF EEMLIFYE BEEBEREPES
M REBRRER -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMABER GRSV BRRAEREN
B (&)

AHEESEMERA S BRMIGEE M RAIEL
SRR MEEREENNAEN -

s HEERASBLZGHTERNBEMLEL
i o REMBSNEREE REREFHE
HEEMRBERABNERNTHEEME - A AL
$ ERERECENENBREKRRERE -
HMESRBRRAFEERNTHEL  AELER
REMBEPIRFBEAEHESMBHRERT
MAEEREEN T - HAERMNBEEER
T AETEFNER -BENEmHE
REBEERZMRE AP IEAMREHNEZR
e AR ARREHXIBFEAALEH BER
BT REEERELE -

s HESAUBHmER(BEREEN WERET
BHA  EERAT  URGEMBHRRE
BRAARRBBIZHMER -

e i BERETFERBIXBEADNYHENE
RAED MEENBEZER  NHREMBR
RERER - BFRERE EBRHTE

BEZ  BEEYESZERERALZAE -

BEEREZZESRBT (AT 8B FENEX
#E RERE BEABZEREZR BHES
225z A PR A8 ) P B4 ) O AR (T B KRR B o

BFERAEZZBESRRER  HARMETEE
BB MHREERBEEN  WEMFIERA A
EAEMERASETERMIBULIENTE BEMN
HMEIR - AREERNIBERT BRI NFZEN
TTB) SRR XA 7 $B 45 46 -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued) f

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLEFEUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E=-—F —T-THF
2021 2020
B &t TER FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
BEREEK Continuing operations
EES G Revenue 5 486,321 262,463
$HE KRS A Cost of sales and services (466,310) (261,519)
ES] Gross profit 20,011 944
i PN Other income and gains 5 4,308 8,494
THEHR Administrative expenses (55,662) (45,971)
Hg &R A () F58 Other operating income/(expenses), net 10,316 (7,508)
REMENFE(EE),/ Fair value (losses)/gains on investment
W 25 % 58 properties, net 15 (2,322) 1,970
EMEpEEREEE Impairment loss on other intangible assets 17 (6,190) (6,613)
REFELCEEKRWELEEIE  Operating loss from continuing
operations 6 (29,539) (48,679)
B 75 B X Finance costs 7 (4,141) (3,064)
REFELE Loss before tax from continuing
MREBLATE 18 operations (33,680) (51,743)
Fiafiife  (&BH) Income tax credit/(expense) 10 1,458 (904)
AEERBFELLEEKNWEIR Loss for the year from continuing
operations (32,222) (52,647)
BERIEEEEK Discontinued operation
REERBEE LKL Loss for the year from a discontinued
KB EE operation 11 (3,793) (20,799)
AEEBE Loss for the year (36,015) (73,446)
g - Attributable to:
KRE]HEA Owners of the Company
REEREFBLEEKD Loss for the year from continuing
] operations (32,222) (62,647)
AREFERADKRIEKLELEBE  Loss for the year from a discontinued
i} operation (330) (12,201)
(32,552) (64,848)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ﬂ: CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) f

BE-F-—F+-A=+—AILFEGBTIE P
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—F —E_EF
2021 2020
B &t TER FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
FEFER s Non-controlling interests
REEREFBLCEEBD Loss for the year from continuing
E518 operations - _
REFRADRIELLERE  Loss for the year from a discontinued
E5 18 operation (3,463) (8,598)
(3,463) (8,598)
(36,015) (73,446)
AANTREEAEGTERE Loss per share attributable to owners
EBERCRILEEEKN of the Company from continuing and
BRESE discontinued operations 12
BERREE (FRENM) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (2.70) (5.38)
ARARFEBANELBFTELE Loss per share attributable to owners
EBXNEREE of the Company from continuing
operations 12
EARNREE (FREN) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (2.67) (4.37)
AANREBEAELED AL Loss per share attributable to owners
REEBKNEBRER of the Company from a discontinued
operation 12
BERREE (FRENM) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (0.03) (1.01)
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & #§ MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Q%é; CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
CEBE—ZT-_—F+t-A=t+—BHLFEUABETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
TER FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEEFHE Loss for the year (36,015) (73,446)
Ha2mzsE (BAx) Other comprehensive income/(expenses),
(HBRBIE) net of tax
BB EEN 7S B8 a R Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
EH profit or loss:
FABT B A B 8 = M A 2R Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve upon
VE 8 ) % 1% deregistration of a subsidiary - 4,165
FA & B B 1 R B AR R B 3 Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon
R B disposal of a subsidiary - 61)
RIBVEEE M B R 7 5 E X, Reclassification of exchange fluctuation reserve to
RENEBEN D EERR profit or loss upon deemed disposal of a subsidiary (5,746) -
BEBINEBELEZERLEZR Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 14,701 9,377
8,955 13,481
AEEZHEBAE Total comprehensive expenses for the year (27,060) (59,965)
FEAS - Attributable to:
KRARHEE A Owners of the Company (23,632) (52,554)
FEE IR Non-controlling interests (3,428) (7,411)
(27,060) (59,965)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HBAETIIE)
At 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
B &t FET TAET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENKERE Property, plant and equipment 14 38,509 82,816
&Y= Investment properties 15 76,414 77,921
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 39,125 19,234
Hinfmp EE Other intangible assets 17 = 6,849
RAFEFEBEHEZEHFTA Equity investments at fair value through
BHERAEE profit or loss 18 32,922 =
WEEK B ARME] £ Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary 21 50,000 -
ERBEERE Total non-current assets 236,970 186,820
REBEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 19 22,028 28,264
FEWLAR K Accounts receivable 20 = 932
FERIE R R EMEWIIE Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 21 19,235 15,948
Al W B 18 Tax recoverable 4 _
JE Uk B 32 N Rl ZRIB Amounts due from related companies 22 951 14,019
FE U 4 38% E A B FE Amounts due from an investee company 22 18,744 -
AT EFE2BHEEZET A Financial instruments at fair value through
BEmesmT A profit or loss 23 16,121 15,706
I & RIRITAEER Cash and bank balances 24 114,006 6,893
MEBEEMEE Total current assets 191,089 81,762
=R Current liabilities
FETRR R Accounts payable 25 2,749 4,801
HER B RETAE Other payables and accruals 26 47,433 52,1183
FFERHMEER Interest-bearing other borrowings 27 28,115 28,980
JE 1~ B 38 & R kI8 Amounts due to related companies 28 193,024 27,955
HEEaE Lease liabilities 29 7,261 973
FEfTFi1E Tax payable - 24
B EAEE Total current liabilities 278,582 114,846
REAEFEE Net current liabilities (87,493) (33,084)
EEHERARBAE Total assets less current liabilities 149,477 153,736
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A RAMBHRR R (E)
% CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) E

TR-E-_—F+-_A=+—HUAEIIE)
At 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e —T-THF
2021 2020
B &t FET FH T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
kREBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 29 33,503 331
EIETIE B & Deferred tax liabilities 31 33,059 34,403
EmEBABERE Total non-current liabilities 66,562 34,734
BEEFE Net assets 82,915 119,002
s Equity
AATEBAEMLER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
[N Share capital 32 120,625 120,625
ERe] Reserves 83 (37,710) (14,078)
82,915 106,547
TR ER Non-controlling interests = 12,455
48R 3 Total equity 82,915 119,002

SEMBEHRERARA-_SE-_—_FWMA -+ LHEEZSE The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

S ENIEETHINVTEERREST SR for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2022 and are signed on
its behalf by:
BE RE
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
5= o
Director Director

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ?

o BE—T-—4+-A=+t—ALLEFEEGUETIE ¥
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
ARAEEARR
Attributable to owners of the Company
R % EjiRE

kx  RHEEER BRfE EfffE At i it EE & FBRER hgs

Share Statutory Property Exchange Non-
Share premium surplus  revaluation Other fluctuation ~Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

TR TR TR TR TEx TR TEn TR TER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Hi32) (Hi#330) (Hr33fi)
(Note 32) (Note 33 (i)) (Note 33 (ii))
R=B=-%-5-A At 1 January 2021 120,625 163,910 18,380 1,132 21,259 16,294 (235,053) 106,547 12,455 119,002
wHAER Profit or loss - - - - - - (32,552) (32,552) (3,463) (36,015)
Hp2EkE/ (B%) Other comprehensive
(NkHE) income/(expenses}, net of tax
BEENERELZEY  Exchange differences on translation
=8 of foreign operations - - - - - 14,666 - 14,666 35 14,701
REBARHBEMEESE  Reclassification of exchange
B REGE fluctuation reserve upon
deemed disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - (5,746) - (5,746) - (5,746)
EE2EUE/ (BX)HE  Total comprehensive
(ksE) income/(expenses)
for the year, net of tax - - - - - 8,920 (32,552) (23,632) (3,428) (27,060)
RELEHELR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary - = (18,380) - - - 18,380 - (9,027) (9,027)
WZEZ-F+ZF=1-H At31 December 2021 120,625 163,910 - 1,132 21,259 25,214 (249,225) 82,915 - 82,915

o~ MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 # # % o= B & KX B B D
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)::::

NBz-—2-—&1+-A=+—B1%E OUBTHIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARAER AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
ke ROEEE iTRHEE NEEREE  EbEE EIRBEE  2HEE & FBRES L 3
Share Property Exchange Non-
Share premium revaluation Other  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve resenve losses Total interests equity
T T T Fin FExL Tk T T Tk
HK$000  HK§'000 HK$000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS'000  HK$000
(Hitse) (Hitasi)
(Note 32) (Note 33 (i)
At 1 January 2020 120,625 163,910 1,132 21,259 4,000 (170,209) 159,101 19,866 178,967
Profit or loss = = = = = (64,848) (64,848) (8,59) (73,446)
Ef2AKE/ (B%) (IKHE)  Other comprehensive income/
(expense), net of tax
BERNEBELEREE Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - 8,190 - 8,190 1,187 9,377
REB AR REER Realisation of exchange fluctuation
reserve upon deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - 4,165 - 4,165 - 4,165
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
upon disposal of a subsidliary = = = = (61) = (61) = 61)
FE2ENE/ (X458 Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year, net of tax - - - - 12,204 (64,848) (62,554) (7.411) (59,965)
R=B-BF+-A=t-H At 31 December 2020 120,625 163,910 1,132 21,259 16,294 (235,063) 106,547 12,455 119,002

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
A X B R 2 F
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GERETRER
A CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E=-—F —T-FF
2021 2020
B at FERT FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(&=7))
(Restated)
REXEBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
bR AT EE Loss before tax:
REFEREER From continuing operations (33,680) (51,743)
REERIERERT From discontinued operation (3,793) (20,799)
BT S EELFHE Adjustments for:
8 75 B AN Finance costs 7 4,141 3,064
A B U A Interest income (335) (191)
HEME  BERZREEE Gain on disposal of items of property,

2 W plant and equipment - (128)
BEYEANTMEER, (M)  Fair value losses/(gains) on investment

5‘%%5 properties, net 15 2,322 (1,970)

ANYEFE=AEE Fair value losses/(gains) on equity
qu)\Tg s R AN 1T A investments at fair value through
AFEZEE (W) F5E profit or loss, net
—RBRS5MEE — held for trading 1,954 4,075

—HAt - others (18,295) -

ME - BEREZEZINE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 14 3,379 5,811
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16 2,737 1,090
HEih\EREE 2 BEEIRE Impairment loss on other

intangible assets 17 6,190 6,613
FEUBR k2 BB E5 18 (8| ) ~  (Reversal)/provision of impairment loss

BEFR on accounts receivable, net (434) 814
TERTRIE e R EMEUR Provision of impairment

SIEZ BB B A FRE loss on prepayments, deposits

and other receivables, net 1,866 1,179
FE U B8 38 A R R RUE Provision of impairment loss on amount

EriE B due from a related company 6,061 =
M BERFZED Impairment loss on property,

VRIEN R plant and equipment 14 830 9,507
5 & MU Write-down of inventories 295 3,791
PEERENONTESHEE Reversal of expected credit loss on

EREED financial guarantee contract —~ (72)
RS EIRG 408 3B Amortisation of financial guarantee

contract - (67)
PE X B8 558 Foreign exchange loss, net 18,933 11,645
8 A IR £ 5 B COVID-19/9 Gain on Covid-19-related rent

Gy =0k & concession from lessor (1,207) -
YN EisEE R = o) 7 =] Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary = 4,165
RAEH E M B A A MM e Gain on deemed disposal of a

subsidiary 11 (4,817) =
& BT B A~ B B s Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43 - (3,902)
(13,853) (27,118)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mERERER (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLEFEUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&&=5))
(Restated)
FERL,(Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 5,941 (1,214)
UWAFEEFEBEEZEHT A Increase in equity investments
BRI EE N at fair value through profit or loss (2,369) -
FE U B TR Decrease in accounts receivable 1,498 1,410
FENRIE - ZE REMER (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
A () R deposits and other receivables (4,887) 5,074
4 NI B Decrease/(increase) in amounts
S (3Ean) due from related companies 111 (1,599)
FERBREFR CBid) /140 (Decrease)/increase in accounts payable (1,198) 286
HibEM R B R ES A E1E 0 Increase in other payables and accruals 10,529 3,335
FE 1<) B 3 R B ZR IR 1 A0 Increase in amounts due to
related companies 165,816 1,215
KEEBE/ (FA)RE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 161,588 (18,611)
2UWERTTF B Bank interest received 335 191
2 g 5N IR Overseas tax received - 1,039
285N IR Overseas tax paid (138) (1,087)
RETEE, (IA)Z2EE  Net cash flows from/(used in)
REFEHE operating activities 161,785 (18,468)
RETHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
EEWME WMFENIXEEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment - 3)
HEWE -  BE MKEHEE Proceeds from disposal of items of
B EA property, plant and equipment 6 277
IR I 2R & 18 hn Increase of restricted cash (6) (5)
MW EM B AR NI & Payment of deposit for acquisition
of a subsidiary (50,000) =
RELE LENB AR Net cash outflow from deemed
Remd #58 disposal/disposal of subsidiaries (9) (39)
REZTEH (FFA) FiB2]E Net cash flows (used in)/from
mEFHE investing activities (50,009) 230

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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%Aiﬁﬁﬂlbii (Il‘;)
ﬂ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E=-—F —T-FF
2021 2020
it TET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
(K&E5))
(Restated)
REEHESRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
2 A Interest paid (1,904) (1,952)
THNERZHER Loan arrangement fee paid (460) (575)
EERITER Repayment of bank loan = (2,483)
BREHMER Repayment of other loan (1,000) (2,000)
EERMERE Repayment of lease liabilities (942) (699)
RIESEERRTAZ Net cash flows used in financing
ReREBEFE activities (4,306) (7,709)
ReRESEEYZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
#wimn (GRd) FHE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 107,470 (25,947)
FU2HRERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 6,830 35,721
INESTERBE) s & - FHE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net (357) (2,944)
FRZREREAESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 113,943 6,830
RERBESEEYHSBZSH  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
e RIRITHE S Cash and bank balances 24 114,006 6,893
o XR SRS Less: Restricted cash (63) (63)
RN GEHEMERNZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
RekREeEEY the consolidated statement of cash
flows 113,943 6,830

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AN EABB®RAME
Q\g‘i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS E
CEBE—ZT-_—F+t-A=t+—BHLFEUABETIE) '
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. DA REEBEERLUEHFSIEE%XE 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND

MEBEARRAB(ARA]) D—HERA
REFAMKZZBRDTF > EERHEEBH
ERXZMERRR ([BRF]) EH - RAA
RBEBZAMMER R T EL XM 2 i
WAFHRE2EEFESANFER —HPHE -

ARATHEREK B AR (G AREE]) R

FEARENETZXHBOT :

e MERENERER:

s MEREERS

s RBHERE:

s RBBEES:

e KRR

e HERBREBZHMMH R

s HENHEREMH(HREREBEZ-T
5+ A=t—HLEFEAKRE
RIEREER) -

ARAREFRR ARAZEEERARR

RERERARSMERESEBR AR ([FE

HEB D RELEXREARAR  MED

MRHAEREMRBRLES ([HBRE LR

51) MR - MEZKZES TR ASERF]
TERWTESBELRE

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

8 & X B R A A

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively

referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal

activities:

° property investment and development;

° property management services;

o securities investments;

° trading of mineral concentrates;

° coal mining;

° sale of parts of mining equipment; and

° manufacture and sale of construction materials (became a
discontinued operation during the year ended 31 December
2021).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate

holding company and the ultimate holding company of the

Company are Macrolink Group Limited (“Macrolink Group”)

and Truly Industry Investment Company Limited, which are

incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands

(“BVI”) respectively, and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu
Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. RAREEERURGEREE (&) 1.

MEARZEH

ARRZEEMBRARZEHET :

A3

AR M () e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) '

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8BUFEUNETIE) ~

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BERITR N
MR BERE EibfEs
NI BRo R AR i B = it & A< Bat FEXEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BEERS
Directly held
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited RBEXHS 1€ (%)) 100 &R
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited BVI United States dollars Investment holding
(“*USD”) 1
Topshine Reward Limited KBRS 50,0003 T 100 & e
Topshine Reward Limited BVI USD50,000 Investment holding
MERBRERERAA Es 5,000,000 7T 100 REERK
Macrolink International Development Limited Hong Kong USD5,000,000 Investment holding
BiERa
Indirectly held
Compania Minera Caminante S.A.C. maE 10,000 B R 100 = EE -
(TZ=/m1) B - R
B &SRR
VA B A8 BB BR B S 75
Compania Minera Caminante S.A.C. Peru Peruvian Soles Searching,
(“Soles”) 10,000 prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
BRERBRAF i 1,000,000/ 7T 100 MERE
Ever Park Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Property investment
A ERBRAF B 17T 100 MEKRE
Golden Talent Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %
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mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHE-T_—F+-_A=1t—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. AAREBERURGEHRERE (F) 1.

B~ Bz &R (&)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BERITR VAN
M BEBRE FE LR
AR ERB BRRKE R =t & A Bt FTEXEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
mEFA (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
Grade Honor Investments Limited EEBETHS 17T 100 B AR
Grade Honor Investments Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
e (EM) BRAE ([HE (GEM) D) B 2 TT 100 REER
Junefield (Building Material) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
(“Junefield Building Material”)
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. e 28,000/ 100 REBEHRHEE
RERET M
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. Peru Soles 28,000 Trading of mineral
concentrates and
sale of parts of
mining equipment
B AR A A] B 1587 100 REER
Link Wide Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. /%= 7,848,316 100 HEERERE
FEiEER
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,848,316 Promotion and
development of real
estate projects
Minera RC S.A.C. W 7,286,874R M@ 100 BR B
B M E R R
VA B 4B 8 BR B8 2K 75
Minera RC S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,286,874 Searching,
prospection,
exploration,
development,

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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1. RAREEERURGEREE (&) 1.

B~ Bz &R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND

A3

AR M () e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) '

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8BUFEUNETIE) ~

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BERITR AN
M BEBE FE LR
AR ERB BRRKE LR =t & A Baott FTEXEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BiEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
Talent Note Limited KBRS 3E T 100 & e
Talent Note Limited BVI USD3 Investment holding
HE LR FHEKLLBERAF AR HME 100,000 7T 100 /E i
(M FEMmELL ) (B at) (T E )
Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency Co., Ltd* The People’s USD100,000 Property agency
(“Junefield Property Agency”) (note) Republic of China
(“PRC”)
RYNFFEBTEZRBER A A H 20,000,000% 7T 100 BEE S
(TR FrEERe |) (B127) LA B ) 2 B TR IR 75
Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading PRC USD20,000,000 Trading of mineral
Development Limited* (“Shenzhen concentrates
Macrolink”) (note) and property
management
services

Hiat - Note:

BEEMBARDRETREEZTMAIEEEDLE -

The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC
law.

EZRAR/LEREIZARAMBE AR ARE
B AFEXEREARESARLAEEE
EFEZIERD BEERS EHEMKN
BRARZABHEHENBRIIE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

* EHEF)

* For identification purposes only

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AN BA B B W RN (H)
% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NBz-—z2-——Fr-A=+—BI-EE(AETIHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

REAIREEERUR RREE (&)

WEHAMBHRRDREBEBT BN E
([BEEMAG])BHZEBUBREE
Al (T&EEHBHEER ) (BEAETEME
BELER - FAGHEA((FBGFER)
K2l REEAREHRAMBR - HELK
EMBHRRTEREE ARG 2 WERTE
K& EmRA (T EMmARRL) 2@
BEGR - REELEEMBHRERE  BRiR
BYENBRARERB R FEFEN - 9K
ATESLKRATERA -BRIFRINEGR - 5
LR MBS RRABTINR - FrBE S EE
ERBAHTET

HERMBRREEBEAARALEMNBARHE
TR+ A=t BLEFEZHBR
®-MBARDARAEERSMEZEGZE
B(EREREESR) - EAKERZ2EKE
BRAIEEMGZAEZHEBERBAES
FHEN  WARWRERREREED
U EOHREER (BIRE 2B ABAEESR
FFEEMIE TR E R R ZHES) - BIRR
RE B ARSI B4 -

HARREESFAERERIRERRNLIRAKA
ZENRERIBLERN - BIAKER G
HERBEAHBERENRZENSEZE—
DHEREERER B

(@) EFRREQARHMREREAZANZ
B

b) HEMEOLBEMELZEN &

) AKREZRERNREENRZE-

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

8 & X B R A A

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also complied with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and equity investments which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f

REAIREEERUR RREE (&)
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HIMER -8 RRTUARE - B
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BARMAA RIS - B 1S
SRR A S A A TR A - BRI AL B
ARZBRBZFARBANEERAR 1
¥ MA - BERRSRRGAREBH
4 o

HEEMBERABR EXAAEFEL =E2
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BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

1. REAIREEERURGEREE (&)

FREEXZEFUERLEER

=

RRAREFDRKREBATHEAREREE

BN

() HMEERZEEE -
ARAXERAERE

b) HIHERNEEEEMAGEERINRE

FAERE  UEERBESMN

0 BRE-—TBERY BEFEBAKEHN

FENRREES

d) ESMRBBEARMMBE I N=
Z—F+ZA=+—8  AEEENZ
LHERNE D R A ARE19,000,0007T
(#928,304,000/% 7t) K& 150,000,000/
T REMERRELERE TEEX

RAFHRARESA T —BAARNEEEH

R R

) EXMFRAMEEERBEZIED BN
SENBEERRGILRAMEEL S
AR AREEERRAERBEALEZN

fEmaAREELREN

MR R -
MARGEER ST E -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

WREZE-ZT
T+ A=+—BHLEFEEHEBFEE
#986,015,0008 L MR =—ZE=—F+= A
B R & EFEL A87,493,000
B ZEBHHRIBRAEABNERIZFE
A L M B A B NS SR E AR o

EBBIRAR A R E

1.

The Group has suffered recurring losses from operations,
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$36,015,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and it had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$87,493,000 as at 31 December 2021. These
events or conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures
to mitigate the liquidity pressure:

(@)

Continuing implementing comprehensive policies to monitor
cash flows through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

Exploring the possibility and speeding up the process
of disposing assets of the Group to enhance its liquidity
position;

Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include
funding from related companies of the Group;

Obtaining financial support from two related companies to
which the Group was indebted in an amount of Renminbi
(“RMB”) 19,000,000 (approximately HK$23,304,000) and
HK$150,000,000 respectively, as at 31 December 2021.
The related companies have undertaken not to request for
repayment of the total indebted amounts for twelve months
from the date of this annual report; and

Re-exploring the property management services business
segment by entering into entrusted property operation
and management contracts with related companies of
the Group, as well as by developing into service-based
operation of rental serviced apartments, thereby generating
stable income and operating cash flows to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REAIREEERUR RREE (&)
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HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—BI-FE GABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account
of the above measures covering a period of sixteen months from
the end of the reporting period prepared by the management, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group would be able
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any future liabilities that may arise and to re-classify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Comparative amounts

The results of the manufacture and sale of construction materials
segment have been presented as discontinued operations and
accordingly, the comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2020 of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and segment information had been reclassified. For comparative
purposes, certain comparative figures have also been reclassified
to conform with current year presentation to align with the
consolidated financial statements presentation of the Group.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NEHETE -+ -_A=+—HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

2.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Covid 19 — Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early
adopted)

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2021
and applied the practical expedient during the year ended 31
December 2021 to all rent concessions granted by the lessors
that affected only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022 as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. A
reduction in the lease payments arising from the rent concessions
of approximately HK$1,207,000 has been accounted for as
a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. There was no impact on the opening balance of
equity as at 1 January 2021.

The application of the other amendments to HKFRSs and HKAS
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s

financial information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+_A=+T—BHUEFECAETINE) "

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HENMEAEMRM2EETEEHR 2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has no

t applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 1
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

0 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts®
7 Insurance Contracts?®®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®*
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Effective for annual
Effective for annual

ENEE S SO

As a consequence

5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of

a Term Loan that
in October 2020 t
conclusion

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract'

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41!

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation

Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
o align the corresponding wording with no change in

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
22 B EMIEBNMAENMZ2EEMAEIHR 2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier
application is permitted. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of the application of the amendments.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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L£XEH| (&) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
BEU B REERFESCHE (—F—F2- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
FEoFF)EINEEAYBRELERNF157 amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
ERMBMELAEW - BB RS LR accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
F16HBEM AR R BB ST ERF4155/ amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are
1B5] - HEAERRAEERESEI BT as follows:

e BEMBHRELEMBSFRIHMTA]: e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
BE T EE B M S EN 2R entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
BENKAEEHERSRE ENGRE new or modified financial liability are substantially different
EEEMERE  BEENER G4 from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
EREBEEERAMERA Z B include only those paid or received between the borrower
KWEBNER  BEEZRAZIERAR and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
KB FXNFWRNER - BEREAEE] borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies
ERARERBERERBITNFERSEH the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
My BIERI R BN ERMAE © % exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
EBilmBERN—E-_—_F—HF—Hzxz2#% period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
FIAMFEEHME - RFFRATKA - %% amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
BRI T EEAEBNY B RREE after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
FRHEATE - amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.

o FAEAUWBWEEAUEI6RIHE] : Bk e HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
T BB TSR 4 %E Bl 551655 BEFT A9 R I from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
13 HFA A B EMEREFENNZK lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
HIERER - LARTEFE BB B SR & % removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
BIZE165R R - RS MENEIT SR incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

HBERE °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #




REMBHRRME (&)

g; NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23 FESBERBE (F)

ER—TFWBATER - ARG R EKEE
B R

(a)

%

BRI R —BALTHEMBREZ BEK
B mz AL

i) i ok R I A EE
iy HAEBEBEEARAFE:

iy AAEERAEBTRRZEE
BB E

2 RER BNE TIHEM G

==

/|

w

m
5w

AEEBER KB ZK

z

I fR

\
’

iy —HEEAS—RHEE(HS—MH
=4 A STNCIIN N =N AR )
BAR)) 2HERTRAEEDE

(i) #%E
AN

vy —HEBRF=TERZAZDL

BRAAEELEASEEGR
shiE B fE A RS2 B

Vi) REBXQEEZATEHHK

(vii) @OEBZATHZEBEEAY
%ﬂi%:mah(ék%iﬁ%ﬁ%Zﬂ

AZFESBERS

(vii) MAKERAEE 2 FRAREH
TEEBABRBZERIERMN
BEBEZEMKERF -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 20 to 30 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 6 years

Plant and machinery 4 to 12 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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POLICIES (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

BEEACEFLEENE NEDRIE K AET Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
o NEBKEHPBAEBLEEZKAS recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
HRNIWERAZ ATE B AEZAFERE in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
BT ABRKER FHERZELEE acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
ERRAFEREESwRNES  ITRETZR to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
AN EEEER IR BAEREREBETE - are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
REREHARCETEECBEFEHALE assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
ARV N G AR B EEAREER—X o intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the

amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

AIERAFHRER 2B EERTFIZE R Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
RIRcELABEMNEREBEIR ZSEFEE impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
TT#E FHER VEFREEZAFERF unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
HRSFIEEN NETERFHNER of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
GHRER S - R FE w5 - B 0] 5 A F 5 determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
2B ARERFHERNAEBERFEHA supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
iR o indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

RIEEIRR A S HER - B8 B IEERFARE Mining rights are initially measured at cost. The carrying amount
BEREFMEEE LB 1TR - #1FEK of exploration and evaluation assets is reclassified to mining rights
FEEECERESEN >R AKEE - A when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
BARA] B EE 2 FIEER A AR R 512 6 mineral resources are demonstrable. Mining rights with finite
MEME#HAREEBEEBAR - BEERAA useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
FHCREEDRES 2K ERERE and any identified impairment losses. The mining rights with finite
EBALE T ABEE - useful lives are amortised on a unit of production basis over the

estimated economic reserve of the mine.

RE XERE  B1FE &G E E K AN E Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
R RNBERERE  MENMTFEEE KR initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
AT 2T REEE AR - R EFGEE and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
BEYGEE R ARUAREREEERARE impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include the
FTHEZEER M TR EERITE cost of exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
BB sHY BAREREZEREREAR search for mineral resources as well as the determination of the
ZEMAI T R ERATIRR - ZAIERZ technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
DEMTHEEEN S EARERNDE resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
WMELEE HWEEEECEH DA ETHG of extracting mineral resources become demonstrated, previously
A MERREBERERER - recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified

as either mining rights or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Land and buildings

50 years
2 to 11.5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #




mEMBRERME (F) =
A NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group generally considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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POLICIES (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group calculates ECLs of accounts receivable that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
other borrowings, amounts due to related companies and lease
liabilities.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group is the contract
that requires a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: () the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #




£

REBMBHRRME (F) 22
ﬂ; NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f
L HE-_T_—F+_A=+—RA1tFE OUETIIE ¥
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

23 FESBERBE (F)

PS5 6 15 BV A ROESE R IR - B B s DA
HREB 2BABAMBRINIERINER - B
REMEmE S ERN EDEARER

BMREEERABDURESHBEREE
RBEHRIAHLEEEEM R (RBE) &
HE VERAKBXGHEBRR 2R AR
BRES - AR R E R E K EH
BERBNZEBEMAE -

EREHEGERE  EEEBBEIHERE
RYKEHRRAECEERAERAECHZ
EHEREZR  ARABENRELEHREA
Bfe e

EHERVEREZRGSER
BE MEATERRIN

IR IETR IR

s HELERBABZER EAREIEE
BEHZIRPPTERERRELEER
BE RETRSE  HEaMAE
RS EREEYE &

o HRPLRXHMBLAF BMEARNKSE
PEIRECERVEREZEMS -
fiah 35 8¢ [ B s 14 22 SR 2 B D ) AR )
T B 2 R AT A 2R A T RE N
[B] o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from sale of mineral concentrates, coal and parts of
mining equipment is recognised at a point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods.

Revenue from the provision of property management services
is recognised over time in the period in which the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the services performed by the Group. These services are
performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified
period of time. Accordingly, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis, and the cost of services is recognised as
incurred in connection with performing such services.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8 & X B R A A

POLICIES (continued)

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Management fee income is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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POLICIES (continued)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(¢) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in the
PRC, Peru and Ecuador are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

The Group holds financial instruments that are not traded or
quoted in active markets. The Group uses valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of certain type of financial instruments.
The use of valuation models and assumptions in valuing these
financial instruments is subjective and requires varying degrees
of judgement. Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of these financial instruments.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available. For
financial assets at amortised cost other than accounts receivable,
the Group applies the general approach which is also referred to
the “three stage” model. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast of economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and amounts due from related companies are
disclosed in note 20, note 21 and note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. The Group considers all facts and circumstances
occurred to judge whether these facts and circumstances
would suggest that the carrying amounts of mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets may exceed their recoverable
amounts (i.e. impaired). The recoverable amount is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to estimate the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are included in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.3
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
investment properties at 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$76,414,000 (2020: HK$77,921,000). The fair value of
investment properties, set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, are determined with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. Such
valuations are made based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the end of the reporting period.
These estimates are compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has reportable
and operating segments as follows:

(@) the property investment and development segment engages
in leasing and sale of properties;

(b) the property management services segment provides
property management services;

(c) the securities investments segment engages in investing in
listed securities;

(d) the trading of mineral concentrates segment engages in the
trading of mineral concentrates;

(e) the coal mining segment engages in the exploration and
development of coal mines concessions and mining for sale
of coal;

(f)  the others segment engages in the sale of parts of mining
equipment; and

(9) the manufacture and sale of construction materials segment
engages in the manufacture and sale of slag powder, which
became a discontinued operation during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group has introduced additional segment of the property
management services during the year.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before tax except that bank interest income and
other unallocated income and gains, fair value gain on unlisted
equity investments at FVTPL, finance costs as well as other
unallocated head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

As a result of (g) mentioned above, certain comparative financial

information has been restated to conform to the current’s year
presentation.
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4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SHEETBIEUNRAFEFE8AEHFTA Segment assets exclude non-current equity investments at
EnrERBRAEE  WENBARME] fair value through profit or loss, deposit for acquisition of a
S FEWFEEKREANNE BHekBEE2EE subsidiary, amounts due from an investee company, cash and
W) - JE U 8 5E N B R A K E b R o i 48 cash equivalents, amounts due from related companies and other
ERREBEE EAZSEEIREEREER unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
EERE o managed on a group basis.

DEBETREFEEMER  EHBEER Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing other borrowings,
ARBEANEM R PEEAHREENERE amounts due to related companies and other unallocated head
B AAZEEBENREBRREEESE - office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
REBEZRZERSHE D 2D BEESTAT An analysis of the Group’s segment results by reportable segment
is as follows:
BE-_ZE-_—S+-A=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2021
FESEER
Continuing operations
NERE NEER
RER b E5RE RRES RRAE A @it
Property
investment Property Trading
and  management Securities of mineral
development services  investments concentrates  Coal mining Others Total
THER ThER ThER Tin Tin Tin TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PG Segment revenue:

NAEPLHE/BEE Sales to/revenue from exteral customers 4,308 14317 - 467,078 - 1,147 486,940

REWA Investment income - - (619) - - - (619)

BARKEUALE Total revenue and investment income 4,398 14,317 619) 467,078 - 1,147 486,321

rH%E Segment results (1,012) 13,041 (619) 1,618 (22,797) (3,648) (13,417)

FAFHEMAREMASE  Bank interest income and other

BAR K unallocated income and gaing 21,396

SEREHADERX Corporate and other unallocated expenses (37,518)

AOREBHA Unallocated finance costs (4,141)

REBELDEEHMBRAGE  Loss before tax from continuing operations (33,680)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENT RESULTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020

Securities
investments
AL
HK$'000

NREPZHE/ER

Segment revenue:
Sales to/revenue from external customers
Investment income

(2,826)

BARREUAER

Total revenue and investment income

(2,826)

Segment results

(2.825)

BRIHERAREBADERAR

SERABRARRR

Bank interest income and

other unallocated income and gains
Corporate and other unallocated expenses
Unallocated finance costs

Loss before tax from continuing operations

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Continuing operations

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 %



GEMBHERNE (H) 22
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
REFHRERDHBE D 2D HAEERBBEIA An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities and
FEMmDBERDHTLOT : other segment information by reportable segment is as follows:
BE-Z-_-—-F+=-A=+—-HBLFE Year ended 31 December 2021

FESEER

Continuing operations
nERE NEER L X
RER b #5RE RFRES BRER At @it
Property

investment Property Trading

and management Securities of mineral
development services investments concentrates  Coal mining Others Total
TR TR TR TR TR TR TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BERAH: Assets and liabilities:

PHEE Segment assets 85,555 37,81 16,126 26,016 476 1,216 167,260

SEREMADEAE Corporate and other unallocated assets 260,799

BEE Total assets 428,059

B8k Segment liabilties 4241 39,504 - 121 6,490 4,521 93,118

EEREMAIEAR Corporate and other unallocated liabilties 252,031

BaE Total liabilities 345,144

EAdER . Other segment information:

RERMB 2 ITEREH Depreciation and amortisation charged in

profit or loss 2 1,657 - 6 282 6 1,953

SEREMRIELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 3,435

5,388
RENEATEFRSE Fair value losses on investment properties,
net 2,322 - - - - - 2,322
n% BERXERESSE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment - - - - 830 - 830

REHE Write-down of inventories - - - - - 295 295

HbEVEEREER Impairment loss on other intangiole assets - - - - 6,190 - 6,190

EURETRERERE/ Provision/[reversal) of impairment loss on

(m) 58 accounts receivable, net o o = o 2% (69) (44)

B F0E e REMEMFIE  Provision of impairment loss on

HEBERETE prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net - - - - 1,864 2 1,866
BARTN Capital expenditureA
-SERERADEEE - corporate and other unallocated amounts - 38,911 - - - - 38,911
A BARSTBREABFERESE - A Capital expenditure consists of additions to right-of-use assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DIER (E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SHEENEBBUREMSIHER SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER
(88) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE—_Z-_ZTE+_A=+—BHIEE Year ended 31 December 2020

REEEEK
Continuing operations

BRI

-

VESE G T R#E
RER E5RE REES BRI iff FHG REIH &3t

Discontinued

operation-

Manufacture

Property Trading Sub-total and sale of

investment and Securities of mingral for continuing ~ construction
development ~investments  concentrates  Goal mining QOthers operations materials Total

THL THT AT AT AT TR THL TRT
HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§'000

EEREE: Assets and liabilities:
NiEE Segment assets 86,587 15,706 29,765 10,770 2,125 145,553 54,397 199,950
ERREMAIREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 68,632
BEE Total assets 268,582
NaakE Segment liabilties 43,675 - 493 559 4,924 49,651 15,251 64,902
EEREMAIEAE Corporate and other unallocated liablities 84,678
BafE Total liabilities 149,580
A2 HEN: Other segment information;
REEMBZNERES Depreciation and amortisation charged in

profit or loss 3 - 4 335 4 346 3,071 37
EERERADELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 3.48¢

6,901

FEMENTERAFE  Fairvalue gains on investment propertes,

net (1.970) - - - - (1.970) - (1.970)
mE BERAEAEEE  Impament loss on property, plant and

equipment - - - - - - 9,507 9,507

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED .
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_ RAEMBHRRNE (H) &
- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-T-—F+-A=+—ALFEUETIIE P
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DIER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SHEENEBBUREMSIHER SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER
(£48) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE —EF+ZA=+—HIEFEE) Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
BRERRE
Continuing operations
BEIE
fexk
VESE i T R#E
RER E5RE REES Rk iff FHG REMH 3t
Discontinued
operation-
Manufacture
Property Trading Sub-total and sale of
investment and Securtties of mingral for continuing ~ construction
development investments  concentrates  Coal mining Others operations materials Total
TERL TERL TR Tin Thn TERL TERL TERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FEN Write-down of inventories = = = 656 761 1417 2,374 3,791
EtEVAERERE Impaiment loss on other ntangible assets - - - 6,613 - 6,613 = 6,613

EUESHESREE/  Provislon{reversal of mpaitment loss on
(B0) %8 accounts receivable, net (54) - - % mn 814 - 814

AR RERAMER  Provision/reversal of impairment loss

AEREBRER/ on prepayments, deposits and other
(Ep) 5% recelvables, net 29) - (471) 872 834 1,206 - 1,206
SEREAINLSE Corporate and other unallocated amounts o)
1,179
HENE  BERRE Gain on dlisposal of items of property, plant
BEE-5BR and equipment - corporate and other
ERARER unallocated amounts (128)
BRRY Capital expenditure*
-SEREMANESE - comorateand other unalocated amounts 1073
g BABRSTPEABENE BELASEBERERESR # Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment
30 and right-of-use assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4., DEHER (&)
i & &R
(a) KEINIREFZHKA

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ::::
NBE—T-——F+-B=+—BILFE GETHIME) '

—E-—&F T -TF

2021 2020

FET FABT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fh PRC 485,793 259,542
WmE Peru 1,147 5,747
BB Hong Kong (619) (2,826)
486,321 262,463

PR ELEXBHBABRTIREP
PRPEH 2 48 -

(b) FHEEE

The revenue information of continuing operations above is

based on the location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

ol - 3 —EEF

2021 2020

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

A E PRC 114,517 132,351
WwaE Peru 38,269 58, 183
a5 Hong Kong 1,262 1,336
154,048 186,820

LIRS R R D AEAR T
RAEREDDE -

148 ~MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

The non-current assets information of continuing operations
above is based on the location of assets and excludes

financial instruments.
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4, DEER (E)

REMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

BE_ZT_—F+t_A=t—HLEFEULETIE) ©
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ERTEREF2EHR Information about major customers
R ARRE S ECEEKNRERRPZ Revenue from continuing operations from customers of
EEBHBAAEEBEETI0% I ERAT corresponding periods contributing over 10% of total revenue of
the Group is as follows:
—E- —EEF
2021 2020
FERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EPA(ELBEEE S5 ) Customer A (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 121,339 -
BFEB(EEERE S HEF) Customer B (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) - 171,266
EPC(EEREEZ D) Customer C (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 83,561 -

5. WARHEAMBARKE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

REBREFELEEB ZWASTAT : An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations is
as follows:
:g: - ﬂi = 7 = E'E
2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ON Revenue
EEEHKA Revenue from contracts with customers
iH & R 1B Sale of mineral concentrates 467,078 258,085
HERERHEZT B Sale of parts of mining equipment 1,147 2,973
§HE H K Sale of coal = 119
Y% B 1B IR WA Property management services income 14,317 =
482,542 261,177
X E A KT KA Revenue from other sources
%ﬂfﬁﬂﬁl?\%@ L Gross rental income 4,398 4,112

DEMEA B8

NP EFERLEZEHFA

Fair value losses net:
Equity investments at fair value through profit

?,a SHBRARE -FHEER or loss — held for trading (1,954) (4,075)

& B U A Dividend income 1,335 1,249
3,779 1,286

486,321 262,463

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 % H
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AN &= AR TSR M (M)
Q\g‘i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E
CEBE—ZT-_—F+t-A=t+—BHLFEUABETIE) '
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WARHMKARIWKE () 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

BE-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2021

RREZ WEEERK Hit @t
Trading of Property
mineral management
28 Segment concentrates services Others Total
TET TR TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERKREES Types of goods and services
HERE Sale of mineral concentrates 467,078 - - 467,078
HERBERBTHMH Sale of parts of mining equipment = = 1,147 1,147
METERBKA Property management services income - 14,317 - 14,317
EFRHNMAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 467,078 14,317 1,147 482,542
HEm S Geographical markets
] PRC 467,078 14,317 - 481,395
WE Peru - - 1,147 1,147
EFAHNMAAE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 467,078 14,317 1,147 482,542
LON:E41S Timing of revenue recognition
EE B At a point in time 467,078 - 1,147 468,225
E—BERN Over time - 14,317 - 14,317
EFAHNMAAE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 467,078 14,317 1,147 482,542

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
E B E X B R D F
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GO BE NS (H) 20
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) =
- BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HBLEFRECAETIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WAREMK AR WE (8) 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

EFAENBANDE (&)

BE_ZE-_EF+_A=+—RHIEFE

customers (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

BEE S Bk B R =i} 45t
Trading of
mineral Coal
2 &B Segment concentrates mining Others Total
FHET FET FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREREERE Types of goods and services
HE SR Sale of mineral concentrates 258,085 = = 258,085
HERBREZ I Sale of parts of mining equipment - - 2,973 2,973
$H 5 B IR Sale of coal = 119 = 119
EFAEHWANEEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
i & 45 Geographical markets
=8 PRC 255,430 - - 255,430
WE Peru 2,655 119 2,973 5,747
BEFAHWANEEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
W AREREE Timing of revenue recognition
£ —BF 25 At a point in time 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
F—EEMEA Over time - _ _ _
EEAHWAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
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s AN B®REMNE (K)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NBE-—Z-——F+-A=+—BIFECAETIIE) e
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
5. WAREMK AR WE (8) 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)
NZEBE-Z—F+-_A=+—H8 BEYEE The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
BRBOEFHRTEAES KRBTSR performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at
BIT) X ZERSREWMT : 31 December 2021 relate to property management services are
as follows:
—E-—F
2021
FHET
HK$°000
TEEHE SR U TRERERASRANSRE Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
—FR Within one year 14,335
—F 1% After one year 13,885
28,220
PETHTRAZBMESREER —FEE The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
RBWRANRZEBRESRB N EBYEEER performance obligations which are expected to be recognised as
% BEBARBEER —FRNET - revenue after one year relate to property management services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within one
year.
R-E-_—F+-A=+—H 2EFHT As at 31 December 2021, all the other amounts of transaction
BARBHMBEEMISBEESBERES prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations are
R—FRNERBWA ° expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.
RZEBE-_FEF+_A=+—H8 ' 2BEE=HT As at 31 December 2020, the amounts of transaction prices
BHAEBHXZERSBEERASERN —FR allocated to the remaining performance obligations are expected
wRAEWA - to be recognised as revenue within one year.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5. WARHEAMWARKE (&)

AEEREFERKERG 2 B A KRS

mREMBHRRWME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+-_A=T—BHUEFEGETINE ©

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

5.

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains from

DT ¢ continuing operations is as follows:
—EB=-—-F —E_F
2021 2020
THExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(E75)
(Restated)
Heb g A R W= Other income and gains
RITH BUA Bank interest income 335 190
YIERIB RS WA (B7220) Property agency commission income (note (i) 904 1,296
HEWE  WERFZHEEREB W Gain on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment - 128
EBEBRA Management fee income 1,612 2,150

H A8 AR B BECOVID-19R) Gain on Covid-19-related rent concession
A =0k & from lessor 1,207 -
el =—d g RN = oy Gain on disposal of subsidiaries = 3,902
BT #80 B (B 22 (i) Government grants (note (i) - 758
HAh Others 250 70
4,308 8,494

i - Notes:

i) MERERSUATIRELETREL ZHMNEL -
W F — B B RERR ©

(ii) REBE-ZT-_TF+-_A=+—RHILFERN " £&
@?ytcowd 1948 2 75 R 7 32 BT 476 B 49758,0007%8
T EDNEBBBRFIREN R EITE -6
BN A IR E KB IRFR IR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

(i)

The property agency commission income was arising from contract with
customer in the PRC and recognised at a point in time.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately HK$758,000 in respect of Covid-19-
related subsidies, related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong government. The grants were recognised when the required
employment conditions were fulfilled.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HOE B EARNAERAF
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AN EAMBEREME (H)
Q\g‘i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E
CEBE—ZT-_—F+t-A=t+—BHLFEUABETIE) J
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
6. REEERKEXBNKEEEIE 6. OPERATING LOSS FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS
AEBREFEKEEFNLEEBELH The Group’s operating loss from continuing operations is arrived
B (A - at after charging/(crediting):

—EZ—F —E-FF
2021 2020
iorza FET FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(&&=5))
(Restated)
EBERAAST (TREEEHE) Employee benefits expense
(excluding directors’ remuneration) (i)
e ITEAREMEWMET Salaries, wages and other benefits
in kind 12,792 14,566
RONAEFET B A5k Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes (v) 941 1,165
13,733 15,731
% 2 Em B Auditors’ remuneration 900 900
FREEECTE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,583 656
FERAER B Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense (iv) 465,694 262,826
ME BERREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (iii) 2,805 3,174
PE N Eri8 HEm Net foreign exchange loss 22,225 15,134
FEUBR OB E &8 (8 E) (Reversal)/provision of impairment loss on
B F accounts receivable, net (ii) (44) 814
AN FIE - RS K H W E Provision of impairment loss on
EEERE TR prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, net (i) 1,866 1,179
B ERAHBHREAERER Reversal of expected credit loss on
financial guarantee contract (if) - (72)
LT REFRBHENEE Lease payments relating to short-term
& leases in respect of land and buildings 79 219
M A AR e ER Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (ii) = 4,165
HERREE Provision for compensation claims (i) 5,032 -
WAFEFE BEEEET ABa Fair value gain on unlisted equity
BIE E IR AR E RN A FEKE investments at FVTPL (ii) (18,295) -
YE - BEMRERERIE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (ii) 830 =
REYEHESWABEE Gross rental income from investment
properties (4,398) (4,112)
Ve Less:
FRERBEBRAZREDE Direct operating expenses incurred for
EEXCEERKERT investment properties that generated
rental income during the year 84 27
(4,314) (4,085)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
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GAMBEEME () 20
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) =

BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HBLEFRECAETIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
6. REEFELKEXKPNEKEEEIE 6. OPERATING LOSS FROM CONTINUING

(&) OPERATIONS (continued)
Wt - Notes:
(i) BERAFEZ 44550008 L (ZE_FF : T (i) Employee benefits expense of approximately HK$455,000 (2020: nil) and
7T) % 13,278,000 7T (= —Z 4 : 15,731,000/ HK$13,278,000 (2020: HK$15,731,000 (restated)) were charged to cost of
T (EEY)) ER Rt AEE RRB KA A RITH sales and services and administrative expenses respectively.
B -
(ii) FEHREBERAN - ABEREFATHMEERA (i) Amounts are included in “Other operating income/(expenses), net” in the
(ZH)F&EIR- consolidated statement of profit or loss.
(iii) ME BELREOHESETL(ZE_TF: T (i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of nil (2020: nil), approximately
BIT) ~ 492,805,000 7T (=T =T : 3,174,000 HK$2,805,000 (2020: HK$3,174,000 (restated)) and nil (2020: nil (restated))
BT (REY))) REB T (ZE_ZTF : TF T (K were charged to cost of inventories, administrative expenses and other
B5))) BEARIFFATERA « 1THRE AU REALL operating expenses respectively.
EXHA -
vy BAEREBIEFEMRA295008T(ZE_F (iv)  The amount included write-down on inventories of approximately HK$295,000
£ 11,417,000 7T (LEF)) ° (2020: HK$1,417,000 (restated)).
(v) RRBHGTENS B ERSRAIEKATABA + A (v) No forfeited contribution under retirement benefits schemes is available to
AR R R FE R FE A 5K - reduce the contribution payable in future years.
7. BIERAE 7. FINANCE COSTS
RERFELEEBNTBRADTET - An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as
follows:
—E-_—fF —E-TF
2021 2020
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI ENBBEEZRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
Hi g B8 repayable within five years 2,493 2,456
HERLHER Loan arrangement fee for other loan 460 575
HEBEF L Interest on lease liabilities 1,188 33
4,141 3,064

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AN BAMBERME (F)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
CEBEZ - F+ZA=1+—BHLEFEGETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EERFETHAEMNS 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Rig Em R BB QAEHISE383(1)()
(0)  RMOER AT (BREEZFMBEER) R
PIE2HRBELFANEERTETRAENS

W Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

—E-—F —ETF

2021 2020

FHE T THT

HK$’000 HK$’000

e Fees 540 540
EME - Other emoluments:

e BMEREYA R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,604 1,752

RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 40 58

1,644 1,810

2,184 2,350

(a) BYFHTES
FAENTBUFATESZR/SN

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

T the year were as follows:
—E- —E-EF
2021 2020
FTET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
we: Fees:
MEREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 180 180
il Mr. Cao Kuangyu
(R—ZE-_—F+A—HBHEET) (Resigned on 1 July 2021) 90 180
)12 5 A& Mr. Fung Chuen Kin
(R=ZE=—F+tHA—HEZF) (Appointed on 1 July 2021) 90 -
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 180 180
540 540

B Lt &SN - FABTEE MR B3k
WITERE M (ZT_TF : &) o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

Apart from the above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2020: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EERFETHAEME (&) 8.

£

GEMBHERNE (H) 22
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f
BE-ZT-—F+-A=-+—BLEFEAETIE "

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

Fe - 2BHR

e BEYFE BREFTEMHEX B < 48 51
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
FTERT FHERT TERT FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—EF- - 2021
HITEE R Executive directors and
FEITHAER the chief executive:
BEXE Mr. Fu Kwan - 120 - 120
SRS A& (HTaE) Mr. Zhang Jian (note) - 320 - 320
KRB RE Mr. Zhang Bishu = 120 - 120
FEat Ms. Liu Jing - 744 31 775
PR BB % & Mr. Chan Yeuk - 120 - 120
B A4 Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
- 1,604 40 1,644
—T-FTHF 2020
HITEER Executive directors and
FBITHAER the chief executive:
BEXL Mr. Fu Kwan - 120 - 120
SRS A (H i) Mr. Zhang Jian (note) = 120 - 120
SRNE LA Mr. Zhang Bishu = 120 = 120
Rgg izt Ms. Liu Jing - 1,092 49 1,141
PR B2 5T 4 Mr. Chan Yeuk - 120 _ 120
AR Ak E Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
— 1,752 58 1,810

Wizt -

FREETRERARRITRERNEE - HRN EXPRRE
B # B 1B B AR RIT AR BT IR (RIS B H7 B -

EXFARINTHRETHATESZH S 2
BEREMMNE - RARZEALTEELRRF
K BB A B =R iR a0 E A R A RO

ARRUBI AR REEEHER
TTRABRFAREXRBEREEMME (=
T_FF &) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

Note:

Mr. Zhang Jian also assumed the responsibility of the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the chief executive.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors shown above are generally emoluments in
respect of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2020: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RAMBEEME (H)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlI
NBEZZE-—F+A=1+—RLEFEGETINE)

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9. EfuBREHEE 9.
AFE AfNGEEHFEERESMN(ZE_F
F:—()EBEE BFZHMESFBER EXWE
8 AN (ZE_TF % M) &Z=HEER
(EARRBEFTHAEBTRAE)RAFEZ

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year include none of
the (2020: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the five
(2020: remaining four) highest paid employees who are neither a

e FFBER T X director nor a chief executive of the Company are as follows:
—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e EMEREDH = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,415 4,435
RIRETEI Pension scheme contributions 330 203
5,745 4,658

BRTIIME BENFEERFEETHA
EREHEARAMT -

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

EEAH
Number of employees
—E=-—fF —_EFTF
2021 2020
0— 1,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 1
1,000,0017% 7t — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 3 3
5 4

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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GEMBHERNE (H) 22
F 8 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f

BHE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. FT8H (E&R) EH
EBNEBRNBEFERETBELE 2 MaHE
RRRAIE16.5% (ZE-FF :16.5%) 2
RHEBME - Hthth R ERR R 2 FE )
RAEE R EREAEER ZIBITH

Rt
KEt&E o

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in

which the Group operates.

—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B EA — H b b [& Current — elsewhere

FEEBH Charge for the year - 12
BEFERERBRS Over-provision in prior years (24) (115)
EEBIE (BR) B Deferred tax (credit)/charge (1,568) 882

EHHER : Withholding tax charge:
—th - PRC 134 125
EEHRIALE (B BF Total tax (credit)/expense for the year (1,458) 904

AEBBHAIBEZHEGER) " ERER
RAEBNGSHHXIE165% (T T F :
16.6%) MatBE 2 EmM B ZRAT ¢

The tax (credit)/expense on the Group’s loss before tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong
profits tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) as follows:

—EB-—F —ETHF

2021 2020

TET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

(&&E7))

(Restated)

REFBEEXEBNRBAER Loss before tax from continuing operations (33,680) (51,743)
BAEAERR1I6.5% (T T F : Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%

16.5%) 5t & 2 F 18 (2020: 16.5%) (5,557) (8,538)
BEMTZ A Income not subject to tax (6,069) (2,244)
TR HIF 2 A X Expenses not deductible for tax 7,771 5,066
BEFEREEBRZ Over-provision in prior years (24) (115)
RERRIAER Tax losses not recognised 6,643 6,066
BAFEEDHHEHIEER Tax losses utilised from prior years (2,568) (132)
IWEBAFEEMANESEREKLE M  Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

MEAR 2 ZE operating in other jurisdictions (1,788) 676
TR B B AR B AR FE IR Effect of withholding tax on dividend income

a4 arising in the PRC 134 125
REEMRFE2FHE(KR) BA Tax (credit)/expense at effective rate (1,458) 904
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e B HmRME (F)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) &
BE—T-—F+-A=t+—BLEEFEGUETHIE) _
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
MM1. BRITZEEXBRERR/ELENE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DEEMED
NI DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
ZURAPEAEEERED P RARER
(BETHRAER] AIBELEEBRA-T _—

Reference was made to a civil ruling dated 26 January 2021

F-A-+TANBNRFHRE Bt BE
™ R FOEBE HIR - B AR 2 BE60%H)
BRRAMHEREEMAERAR (DHRRE])
FHRbIR AT (RBMEEIR]) - W EK
MEERER T - —F At NHERE

TTREET P AUAB B1TH 58 B AR B -

R-ZFE-_—FMOA+HBE  EEMPEERR
EREHAR UBEHRFARAEE Bt 8
B AR EITRBIBEAEIR - B (HF
BIE) BRILREUNME - REESEMETTNRE

FEMBH B - At ARFEEHN

R AEEER-_ZE-_—FMNATRBXRE
HEHMRENEGE BRBHNE—F
15 MBE2HERA M IBMRMTEESS(0) °

3%

Al WHERBRAAFEFEAHE

BREABARE  -CRIEREXBNEED

R BT

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

N EZZE - —F+-A=+—HIEFE
TR E_—FOA+RABEREEENE
FH®EZ RERERHEEEZENMNBEBLRD
HEREENIAEFAAEENERIELSE
¥ Bt ARREEREELATH_-Z
—T—FOATREARBKRIEBEPERESERN
AEBMNGEVBREAN(BEIELERNBEA

issued by the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan
Province, the PRC (“Loudi Intermediate Court”), pursuant to which
Loudi Intermediate Court ruled that the mandatory dissolution
order (the “Mandatory Dissolution Ruling”) was made against
the Company’s indirectly 60% owned subsidiary, #FZ=EEN
BBRAF (Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd.) (“Hunan
Taiji”), and requested Hunan Taiji should proceed to a mandatory
dissolution to be implemented by Loudi Intermediate Court from
26 January 2021.

On 15 April 2021, Loudi Intermediate Court reiterated its ruling
and issued a civil judgement (RZEREZE), pursuant to which
Loudi Intermediate Court implemented the Mandatory Dissolution
Ruling, including, inter alias, the formation of a dissolution team
which was ordered to proceed with the mandatory dissolution
of Hunan Taiji. As a result, the directors of the Company have
concluded that the Group lost its control over Hunan Taiji on 15
April 2021. Further details of the dissolution please refer to note
38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hunan Taiji, which was engaged in the manufacture and sale
of construction materials, was reclassified as a discontinued
operation of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 upon the deemed disposal of Hunan Taiji on 15 April 2021.
Accordingly, the management of the Company had determined
that Hunan Taiji was de-consolidated from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group with effect from 15 April
2021 (“deemed disposal of a subsidiary”) and recognised as
equity investments at FVTPL. The results from the discontinued
operation are analysed and presented as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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MM1. BRITZEEXBRERR/ELENE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DEEMED
NaE (&) DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
H=Z=—%F
—A—HZE HZE
—E-—F —EZFF
MA+EH +=—A=+—H
IEHARS IEFE
Period from
1 January
2021 Year ended
to 15 April 31 December
2021 2020
TER FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERIEEEE] Discontinued operation
WA Revenue - -
& R AR AR Cost of sales and services = =
E A Gross profit - -
HAo g A R s Other income and gains - 1
THER Administrative expenses (2,418) (6,553)
H At 48 & X 1% 8 Other operating expenses, net (6,192) (14,247)
BAEH S mREN WS Gain on deemed disposal of Hunan Taiji 4,817 -
HA/FREREE KL Loss for the period/year from
TSR R 1B the discontinued operation (3,793) (20,799)
AR/ EFRAEERBER Loss for the period/year attributable to:
ZN/NEIEZZS N Owners of the Company (330) (12,201)
FEfE A an Non-controlling interests (3,463) (8,598)
(3,793) (20,799)
HERERENFRESRELOT ¢ The net cash flows incurred by Hunan Taiji are as follows:
M=%
—HA—HZE HE
—E-F —EB_FF
mA+ER T-A=+—~
LIEEARS IEFE
Period from
1 January
2021 Year ended
to 15 April 31 December
2021 2020
THER FHAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KEEE Operating activities (47) (594)
"EEE Investing activities - -
B EE Financing activities - -
(47) (594)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NBE-—z-——f+-A=+—BIFE(UETHIE) -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
MM1. BRITZEEXBRERR/ELENE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DEEMED

%ﬁéwﬁ&ﬂﬁz(ﬁ)

Na] (8) DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
ERELERS  BWEEENTEHMNEE The major classes of assets and liabilities of Hunan Taiji as at date
MBEUALRGELENBARMKZWT of deemed disposal of a subsidiary and gain on deemed disposal

of a subsidiary are as follows:

R=-B=—F
B+EH
As at
15 April
2021
FHERT
HK$°000
ME - B KR Property, plant and equipment 35,798
EREEE Right-of-use assets 17,818
TERFRIE - Re M E A E W RIE Prepayments, other receivables and other receivables 66
JE Ug B 3E A B) 5K 7E Amount due from a related company 6,896
& RIRTTEH Cash and bank balances 9
FEERER Accounts payable (854)
JE AN 72N &= B IR Amount due to the Group (18,330)
FE - A& R A1 RIR Amounts due to related companies (747)
EMEMAFENETEE Other payables and accruals (16,073)
24,583
=R S Non-controlling interest (9,027)
BE 3, K B i Exchange fluctuation reserve (5,746)
WAE L BB A F 8 W e Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 4,817
14,627
RZEZ—FMA+HBRAEREDN Fair value of the 60% equity interests in Hunan Taiji
60% % A #E 25 ) A F{E on 15 April 2021 14,627
HRRIEHERWBARIMNIE S LIRS EEY An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
RFRE AT T respect of the deemed disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:
FET
HK$°000
ReRE Cash consideration -
HENR S MRITHER Cash and bank balances disposed of (9)
BRAREHESFENRE e RNESEEY Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
B3 T respect of the deemed disposal (9)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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mEMBRERME (E)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=+t—HULEFEULBETIIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. BREEB 12. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) FEKEEBRERILELKEEK (a) Continuing and discontinued operations
RBECEEBRERIEEEEBNETR The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
HEANEEEEIIRE A TEEE - continuing and discontinued operations are based on the

following data:

—E- —EEF
2021 2020
FERT TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRitESRER B SEIEN Loss for the year attributable to owners of
FAXRRRIHE AEGLEBIE the Company used in the basic and diluted loss
per share calculations (32,552) (64,848)
g 4= Number of shares
ARstESRER B EEIEN Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
FRBEHEITLBIRNEFEHE issue during the year used in the basic and
diluted loss per share calculations 1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251
(b) BEREEK (b) Continuing operations
ARAREEAELBEELCEEENTR The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
EARAREEEEBENTEETE continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
is based on the following data:
—E-—F T -FF
2021 2020
FERT TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&)
(Restated)
FRAQNAEES AEM Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
REFBEREEBHER Company from continuing operations (32,222) (52,647)
FTERAN D EE F NS ELEEBL The denominators used are the same as those detailed
ERIMHEEEBNETIRAR R EEE above for both basic and diluted loss per share from
Frsfit & M E o continuing and discontinued operations.
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & 3§ MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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 BABBRANE (&)

. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
CTHBEZE - FTA=t+—ALFECAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. 8RER (&)
(c) ERLEERHK

ARAHEAABECRIEEEEBNE
B B AR K # G BRI R B IA T BURRT

12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
(c) Discontinued operation

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
discontinued operation attributable to owners of the

= Company is based on the following data:
—B=-—F —T_TF
2021 2020
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&E=5))
(Restated)

FRRNRREAR AEMN Loss for the year attributable to owners of the

REERIEREEBNEE Company from discontinued operation (330) (12,201)

FRERM D B E XS EREEBH K
ERIEREEBNERERAREEER
et & AR o

RZE-_—FR_ZE_FTF+_A4
=t+—H  ARBWEEFDETEE
A o

13. K&
NAEERNL EZMHE MmRE TS (=
ToTHEHE) EETREMREE—_T ——
F+-A=t+—BHItEERMEABKE (ZF
“EF ) o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

The Company had no potential ordinary shares in issue as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared during the year (2020: Nil).
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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GEMBHERNE (H) 22
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HBLEFRECAETIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. Y% - BERRDRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KAERLH* BF HENERE RERRE  BAERG RE @zt
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings improvements machinery*  equipment vehicles Total

TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E--E+-f=1-H 31 December 2021
WZE-EE+-A=+-HR At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
—E_-5-fF-H
KR Cost 3,100 136,837 11,927 164,153 4,054 9,008 329,079
ZHTERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (71,070) (4,901) (157,685) (3,844) (8,763) (246,263)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816
W-ZE-_—f-f-H" At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated
B2 ERAE depreciation and impairment 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 25 82,816
e Disposals - - - - 6) = (6)
RIELENBAR (HE11) Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (Note 11) - (30,406) - (5,356) - (36) (35,798)
REERERE Depreciation provided for the year - (2,006) (1,038) (282) (48) (5) (3,379)
HEBE W) Impairment losses (note (ii) = - - (748) (82) - (830)
EH AR Exchange realignment (303) (3,259) (641) (82) (14) 5 (4,294)
WZB--F+-fA=1+-H" At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated
R ZHERAE depreciation and imparment 2,797 30,096 5,347 - 60 209 38,509
W-E--f£+-fA=1-H At 31 December 2021
KR Cost 2,797 38,818 10,764 7,351 3,783 8,455 71,968
2 HERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (8,722 (5,417) (7,351) (3,723) (8,246) (33,459)
EEEE Net carrying amount 2,797 30,096 5,347 - 60 209 38,509
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & # MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e BEHRRME (F)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued):::::
BE-—S-—F+-A=-+—BIEEUUETHIE) '

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
14. Y% - BERKE (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
KA BF RENEEE HEREE  HAZRE e 3
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings  improvements machinery* equipment vehicles Total
THL TARL THTL THTL THL Thn THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“Z-SF+-f=1-H 31 December 2020
RZE-NE+ZA=+-HER At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
ZZITE-f-H
WA Cost 3,343 134,167 12,862 154,737 4,310 9,782 319,201
LHFERMA Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (55,760) (4,096) (147,035) (3,967) (9,239) (220,097)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,702 343 543 99,104
WZE-Z¥-A-H" At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
B2 ERAE depreciation and impairment 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,702 343 543 99,104
hE Additions - - - - 3 - 3
HE Disposals - - - - - (149) (149)
KEERERRE Depreciation provided for the year - (3,959) (1,124) (490) (127) (111) (5,811)
BEBE W) Impairment losses (note (ii) = 8,409) = (1,047) = (57) (9,507)
R A% Exchange realignment (243) (278) (616) 303 9 19 (824)
WZB-_EE+-fA=1-H" At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated
MR ZHERAE depreciation and impairment 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816
R-E-Z£+-B=1+-H At 31 December 2020
WA Cost 3,100 136,837 11,927 164,153 4,054 9,008 329,079
LHFERGME Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (71,070) (4,901) (157,685) (3,844) (8,769) (246,263)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816

. MURBEBAIIZ HBE

& ZEEFEREEASENR TS =-—F+=A
=+ —AZHEEHEBREMZYE - BERE
BEBT(ZTZFF : £1,124,00087T) °

166 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

oE R EALX AR

=

Located outside Hong Kong.

The net carrying amount includes property, plant and equipment of nil (2020:

approximately HK$1,124,000) relating to exploration and evaluation activities

of the Group as at 31 December 2021.
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g NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Y% - BERKE (&)

(i)

(i)

(il

BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLFE WEH
f##93,379,000/8 7T (Z T =T : 5,811,000/ 7T)
FoTET(ZE2FF  THIT) © 2,859,00077T
(ZZE=Z4 : 3,445,000 7t) 520,000/ 7T (=
T : 2,366,000 7T) D RIFTATFERA - 1T
BRERAREMEESE -

R-ZZE-TF+-_A=+—H0B AEEEEEN
37,750,000/ T 2 & T - BERZEDEME
AEEERBITR—BBEZER  SBHARGE
B R SRR M 527 ©

RZF=Z—F+=-A=1+—RH LEBIEELE
&G ERD Y E 5 B T SRS B A R # R RFFEE
FHRSELHEM ([REELEMN) 2VE  BER
BEFTETEE - AEBEREAFERLESKAR
AT T RER S c BT EERRSEEENE E
KAFRRESRERE - L AT EFEDE
REEERNE=F - IRETE - ED %ﬁm%&
1 28 DA R o /N 7= 3% 8 B SRR (B S 18 497 48,0007 7T
182,000 7T °

R-ZZE_TE+-_A=1+—B AR ERERS
2k EE (HEE17() - 2B EES BRIGERM
HEMNRTBEPREZYE MERXEMET
MEE AEBREBEATERDERKAET TR
BTG - THREFERAEELEE  REHX
N R EREOREUDENERERETS
TmETHEE - RBEREENS - TEHRATS
E o BRERANEENERS iﬁwﬁﬁﬁim
MARARTFUAE - ERAFEFESERATE
BEERMNE=H - BETE  CORIEF - M%
T 28 DA J% )9 B8 T 2R B IS #8. 498,403,000/ 7T
1,047,000 7T 57,000/ T °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %
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BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Note:

(i) Amongst the depreciation provided for the year ended 31 December
2021 of approximately HK$3,379,000 (2020: HK$5,811,000), nil (2020:
nil), HK$2,859,000 (2020: HK$3,445,000) and HK$520,000 (2020:
HK$2,366,000) were charged to cost of inventories, administrative expenses
and other operating expenses respectively.

(ii) At 31 December 2020, the Group had certain property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of approximately HK$37,750,000 pledged to secure
banking and general facilities granted to the Group, details of which are
included in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) As at 31 December 2021, the Group performed an impairment assessment
based on fair value less costs of disposal with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer on its property,
plant and equipment allocated to mining rights activities and exploration
and evaluation activities’ cash generating units (“CGUs”). In assessing the
CGUs, discounted cash flow projection is adopted. The above fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Based
on the assessments, impairment losses of approximately HK$748,000 and
HK$82,000 were recognised for plant and machinery and office equipment,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group performed an impairment assessment
based on fair value less costs of disposal with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer on its property,
plant and equipment located in Hunan, the PRC, due to prolonged
suspension of production in Hunan Taiji (note 17(i)). In assessing the land and
buildings, direct comparison method was adopted based on price information
where comparable properties of similar size, character and location were
analysed. For plant and machinery, market approach was principally adopted.
Prices for similar assets were considered, with adjustment to reflect condition
and utility of the appraised assets. The above fair value measurements
were categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Based on
the assessments, impairment losses of approximately HK$8,403,000,
HK$1,047,000 and HK$57,000 were recognised for buildings, plant and
machinery and motor vehicles, respectively.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF



mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TBE_T_—F+_A=+—"BEFECAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. IREY % 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

:g: - ﬂi — 7 — E'E

2021 2020

FERT TET

HK$’000 HK$’'000

RN—A—BzEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 77,921 73,850

NEEFHEEER (F1B) 5258 Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustment (2,322) 1,970

E 5 28 Exchange realignment 815 2,101

Rt A=+—HZEREEAE Carrying amount at 31 December 76,414 77,921
RIS EMEZERERTE - The carrying amount of investment properties shown above

comprises:

—®-—%F —ETF

2021 2020

FET THETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

R BEARHEERSAE Held under medium-term lease in the PRC 76,414 77,921
RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—H " "&EEHK The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
BYERKRERG T HES BB GERM KT December 2021 with reference to a valuation performed by RHL
NEBERAREATER ZEE B AE TS Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, on
BEEENEESSRETHE - Ig@@)\ an open market value basis by direct comparison method with the
HEAEBEMNERREMEBEIK &5 THRE major input being the market price per unit of floor area. Certain
METIREKLBERTE=FH  B@E investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
B EHNRNGS T EREMFEITA o leases, further summary details of which are included in note 37

to the consolidated financial statements.
R—_FE-——&F+-_B=+—8H - 77"% E At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s investment
B T {8 £940,366,0008 T (& - T F : properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$40,366,000
41,634,000 7T) 2 & IF}xﬁtf@%EﬁﬁEﬁﬂ;ﬁ (2020: HK$41,634,000) were pledged to secure credit facilities
EEERZEREZIER  HBEIHNESE granted to the Group, details of which are included in note 27 to
KM E27 - the consolidated financial statements.

R-E-_FF+—-_F=+—H AEBEER At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s investment
{E#931,910,000/8 T 2 & T % & ¥ % K 1 properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$31,910,000
VERENRIERERRE ZER  sFBEHRN were pledged to secure loan facilities granted to a related
EA BB RHTEES0 © company, details of which are included in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
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B u W R K () 20
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

v BHE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—BHLEFECUERTIIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
15. BE Y () 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

NEBEDH Fair value hierarchy
TRFAPAREBE 2 REYEZ AN FEFER The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
T o of the Group’s investment properties.
i B BEART BERFA
™ i% HRE HEWAE BEHAE
(E—#) (B=#) (B=#) wEt
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TAER TET TERT THERT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R=-B=--%+=A As at 31 December 2021
ET=|E
LEEDNFEFNE Recurring fair value measurement for:
[ElERE S Commercial properties - - 76,414 76,414
R-ZE-ZTFE+=A As at 31 December 2020
=+—H
KEMENTERFE Recurring fair value measurement for:
mAE Commercial properties - - 77,921 77,921

RAEE LRE—RBE K2 AFE
SHESE . NEEAIMEESR(-E-F
E o) o

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
N EHE—F - F+t-A=+t—BLEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15 ?Qﬁ%% (nlﬁ)

PHERAFESEHARNE=ZFNAFETEN Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level
H AR 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
BEME
Commercial
properties
FET
HK$'000
m_?_uyi A—BWEESRE Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 73,850
AN ERABREEN R FEE Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in
EEZAER profit or loss 1,970
b 3 A2 Exchange realignment 2,101
RZZEZZEF+-_A=+—HK Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and
—E-—F—A—HBHWNEAReHE 1 January 2021 77,921
AT EFABREENEBETFE - Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised in
TR A TR profit or loss (2,322)
B 5, 3 2 Exchange realignment 815
R-_EBE-_—F+_A=+—HHNEALHE Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 76,414

R-BE-_—FR_-_F_FF+=-HA=+—H

At 31 December 2021 and 2020

AP EDR it B & 1l EXTABEBAE

Fair value Significant

hierarchy Valuation techniques unobservable input
KRBt Rz EAYE B=H BEELBE BY R ARBLTISER
Commercial properties In Beijing, PRC  Level 3 Direct comparison method Market unit price per square meter

AEERBERLEE
AISER  EREBUNEER
BOEBERR RREETHER -
BOUKA - HE 5

B HISEEEHR TR -

Ixﬁ@)\@ﬁ%i?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬂ% s
——F+-A=t+t—B BumBERL
BRREMELIFELA

T-TF:

ﬂ/(T%M%E
/(&) #93,821,0008% 7t (=
3,896,000/ 1) °

R —F k=

BREEMEFH -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

55 A AR
A
AEEG
K B R B AL
MERITHIT - WG EDENHEREE

—EF A=t
AR RN E R RANE S B
BF A TR E - KTy A A A E R

Direct comparison method is adopted based on the principle of
substitution, where comparison is made based on prices realised
E) on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character

and location are analysed and weighed against the respective
factors of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of

market value.

31 December 2021.

The key input was the market unit price. A 5% increase/(decrease)
in the market unit price (per square meter) would result in an
increase/(decrease) of approximately HK$3,821,000 (2020:
HK$3,896,000) in the fair value of the investment properties as at

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC are commercial properties held by the
Group either for capital appreciation or for earning rentals.
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GEMBHERNE (H) 22
# NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f

BHE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. T HEEE 16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AEBAEEEFFRANE T IHREFE The Group has lease contracts for certain land and buildings
FITHESDN - REGHE T $’§lﬁ'ﬁ used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront
XA —BEHRIE BB THESHERRK to acquire the leasehold land, and no ongoing payments will
BERHEMNR - HE LR RER - ]IL/(EP,HH be made under the terms of the land lease. The leasehold land
HERHA THREFHHEEH R ASIL is held under medium term leases and is situated in the PRC.
2ENB5F(ZEFF : DIR3F) o Leases of land and buildings generally have lease terms ranging

from approximately 2 to 11.5 years (2020: less than 3 years).

REAFEN AEEFRAEEENEREER The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
------- BN : movements during the year are as follows:
HELH T REF &5t
Leasehold Land and
land buildings Total
THET FTET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-_E-_FTF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 17,196 = 17,196
1 90 Additions - 1,970 1,970
WEEH Depreciation charge (434) (656) (1,090)
B 3, A2 Exchange realignment 1,158 - 1,158

RZZBE_FTF+_A=+—HK Asat 31 December 2020 and

—_E-_—%—A—H 1 January 2021 17,920 1,314 19,234
%40 Additions - 38,911 38,911
TEER Depreciation charge (154) (2,583) (2,737)
RIELEWB AR (HE11) Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

(Note 11) (17,818) - (17,818)
MEBH Lease modification - 867 867
[ 5, 38 & Exchange realignment 52 616 668
R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 - 39,125 39,125
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 & # MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Q\g‘i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E
CEBE—ZT-_—F+t-A=t+—BHLFEUABETIE) '
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
17. Hib\B\EEEE 17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BHER
HEEER THEE RERE &5t
Exploration
and
Supplier  evaluation Mining
contract assets rights Total
FTERT TERT FTERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Ba) (B at(ii) (Kt & (iii))
(Note (i)  (Note (ii))  (Note (iii))
—E--ft+=ZA=t+—H 31 December 2021
RZZE——F—H—HZMKA " Costat1January 2021, net of
B 2 5H 85 RORE accumulated amortisation and
impairment - 2,995 3,854 6,849
DR AEEE Impairment loss recognised - (2,712) (3,478) (6,190)
[ 3, 2 Exchange realignment - (283) (376) (659)
RNZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H At31 December 2021 = = = =
R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021
DN Cost - 14,757 13,781 28,538
2 EEIRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment - (14,757) (13,781) (28,538)
EEFE Net carrying amount - - - -
—E-TF+-AF=+—H 31 December 2020
MN-_ZE-_ZF—F—HzKA + Costat 1 January 2020, net of
B 25T 5 RORE accumulated amortisation and
impairment - 7,113 7,407 14,520
ERRBEEE Impairment loss recognised - (3,599) (3,014) (6,613)
ME o 70 & Exchange realignment - (519) (539) (1,058)
RZZBEZZEF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 - 2,995 3,854 6,849
RZZE-_TF+-A=+—H At31 December 2020
(PN Cost 174,985 16,344 15,2783 206,602
2 EEIRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (174,985) (13,349) (11,419)  (199,753)
REHE Net carrying amount - 2,995 3,854 6,849

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(i)

HERSREEAEER _ZTNFREA_+-H
WEg B () (KRR RIS A 2B R R]) RE
MEBATNERRER BERBAEERHEREGE
) EERMEEEAR AR (DERME ) L
MEREMALZBRR-TTRFARA=THZ
BEARZMHtERZ  HEERRME AR
AE([FEZRIRME]) F—REP B2 R
mBER  BREENEZRRMEATEEERE
a8 7 2R 0 T R R B 2 SR AR R E R
FAS0% A L - RIBELMAEBEAR  EIRME
BEREHREBBRENT ZRMEKE - WRE
FRRRMBNEERERREER LS +R
FHRUBEE EEB A AR FEEREKE - BVEE
RIFGE AR ZIEREAERXRREFT AIER LD
THFEZ FEEH -

HRKERERR  AEEER_ZT—=F+AK
“T-RF+ At (HPBHE) REEREHRENX
B E E R RE D B R RIR M E R P
BEHF - THBUREE B HRRMEESS(E)
H-Z—R"FNAR  PEREHREEHERN
BB E R o

RZT—hE=-ZA=+=8 " HEM EHmE
FEENEETRNEEEET P RARERE
HEAMA-T-NAF-A+-_RZEFBAIE &
It ERHME ((ERREA)R=E-NFALAEKR
AR ARBRR 2 RBAUS  NAEREESE
BEL AT REOA R RE (FRE—SEMER -
WA 2B EES8 (b)) « RIFFBIARZBR ERE
R ARBEFERR  ZRFBRNERERGFED

ABEER TR B R B fhat - At - AEER
RENEREMELEEEETHFE - ZETHE

A=l EHEREOEREERTEMN T
EETHFE  SERZETHHERERZ A5ER
B RBE_E-N\Et+-_A=+—HLEEELK
ERERARUERENEFLEERRRERELD
28,245,000/ T E 1B 2 £ -

RIE-—FOA+THAARELER  HERED
TBRAREENMERT  AEGIELENFS -
W2 MR M mRME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The supplier contract represented the materials supply agreement
embedded in the joint venture agreement dated 30 June 2006 regarding the
establishment of Hunan Taiji entered into between the joint venturers, namely
Junefield Building Material, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, and
RN EE AR AT (“Lianyuan Steel”), upon the acquisition of Junefield
Building Material and its subsidiary, Hunan Taiji, by the Group on 22 May
2009. HEFEEERMEAR AT (“Hualing Steel”), a company established
in the PRC, is a steel products manufacturer, Lianyuan Steel has beneficial
interests in Hualing Steel and Hualing Steel is also effectively owned as to
more than 30% by the holding company of Lianyuan Steel. Pursuant to the
joint venture agreement mentioned above, Lianyuan Steel is responsible to
guarantee the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag required by
Hunan Taiji and to procure Hualing Steel to supply granulated steel slag
to Hunan Taiji at the prescribed unit price for a period of 15 years from
the date of commencement of operation of Hunan Taiji. The intangible
asset was amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of approximately 14 years in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

Due to shortage of supply of granulated steel slag, the Group has filed
applications in October 2013 and December 2015 for arbitration proceedings
against Lianyuan Steel, which is also the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji,
for, inter alia, failing to procure the requested amount of steel slag supply,
further details of which are included in note 38(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. Since August 2016 Hunan Taiji was in suspension of production
due to suspension in the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag.

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was informed by Hunan
Taiji that a notice of response to action (fEFFiEAIE) dated 12 February
2019 from the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province,
the PRC, was received, pursuant to which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in
September 2018 requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
shareholders’ disputes (further updates please refer to note 38(b)). Based
on the legal opinion of the legal advisors in the PRC, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the outcome of the ruling of this litigation
proceeding was uncertain and could not be estimated with reasonable
certainty. As a result, the Group determined the production resumption of
Hunan Taiji had been adversely affected. In view of these uncertainties, which
also adversely affected the likelihood of recovering the carrying value of the
supplier contract intangible asset, the Group had determined it prudent to
recognise full impairment of approximately HK$28,245,000 in relation to the
supplier contract intangible asset in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Hunan Taiji ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group upon deemed disposal on
15 April 2021, please refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
for details of the deemed disposal.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5 25 ol

MBEHmRME(E)

-+ - A=+—B FFEE (CETHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

m/\\\ﬁ/ﬁjz (nﬁ)

(ii)

(&)

DRI EEETZEEEZ AR RMEERER
YRS 2 Far i« FFal Lx&@m&maﬂfﬁ
R HEEAERZET(ZTZZF : £2,995,000

BI)  R-E-—F+-A=1t—BNERAHE
KRR EEERAHERAGAETE

AAREELEB L HES BRI EMGZIRIRET
HHEBERAA ((HY]) HEHFERIHEER

£ —$+ B=+— Bo b EETRETE
NFEREERANEER - BETTE -
&m&ﬁm?ﬁéa,ﬁ&ﬂﬁ&m&ﬁmﬁbfﬁﬁé
B o ERHH R RET B ER E%ﬁiﬁfifﬁ
EnEBAE - EHMATEFESERAFTEER
B =4 - ﬁﬂﬂ&z@ﬁ%&im&%mmﬂ%mmn .
EE SERGERAMET - SAHERTHEE
EE R R (AR B9 B [ (P A 9 #T 3R % /820.0% » 35
RRAT) - REFTE  AEERBHMERTEE
ENfAta kR SEERAEERSE  IREE=
T F+ A=+ —HULEFERRBHERTHE
ERERREEE 42,712,000 7T

RAEZ2EBUEEABRMEMGLEHEY
&¥1E§FEA_%_?¢+ A=+—H#&fh
E#EITRENE - mEAACRFTRR S RERA
ETNEABENFTERER - RETTM - WE
HRRNEEEEEDRETHRRT G EDREE
L{Eﬁfﬁ C BRI E S T E BT RIS - E
CEEREERE - AREREEI &N IS
iﬁ%:fﬁl%z& A M IE SR R TG A ERR D R
REIER [ (PTAMBATITEIR £ /819.4%) A RF
B (FTAMBATITIR R A12.8%) - RWIEHE R
HEEEMN TR - 9 BIRRINE RARRSNEH
BRI RS TR T UAZR R B ) R 2R A £R 5 B /R LA
ZARANFHERANFHENENRESRERESE
BRE2 3%TA - RIBFTE - AEBERRZFHIR
EWEIE?B’NEI%—MK@ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ(‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁ‘f%ﬁ Riz

RBE-Z-_TF+_A=t—HIEFEARME
EJWE&QHEQFEEWWWEESE 5 51 491,003,00078

7T }%2,596,0007 7T ©
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The exploration and evaluation assets mainly represent the cost of
concessions, permits and exploration and evaluation works related to
various coal and mineral mines in Peru, which are under the exploration and
evaluation stage as at 31 December 2021 with a carrying value of nil (2020:
approximately HK$2,995,000). These assets are not subject to amortisation
until they are placed in use.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
(“Ravia”), an independent professional qualified valuer, on its exploration and
evaluation assets as at 31 December 2021 based on fair value less costs
of disposal. For the purpose of assessment, the exploration and evaluation
assets have been allocated to exploration and evaluation activities’ CGU.
In assessing the exploration and evaluation assets, discounted cash flow
projection method is adopted. The above fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The recoverable amounts
are determined by taking into account the estimated mine life, production
volume, selling price and operating costs. The assessments cover a 9-year
period using discount rate of 20.0% and zero growth rate for the exploration
and evaluation assets. Based on the assessments, the Group determined that
the estimated recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
was lower than its carrying amount and recognised impairment losses of
approximately HK$2,712,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 on its
exploration and evaluation assets.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia, an independent professional
qualified valuer, on its exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December
2020, based on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections. For the purpose of assessment, the two exploration and
evaluation assets have been allocated to exploration and evaluation
activities’” CGUs, of which the recoverable amounts are determined by
taking into account the estimated mine life, production volume, selling
price and operating costs, and the latest financial budgets approved by
the management. The assessments cover a 9-year period using pre-tax
discount rate of 19.4% and a 9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of
12.8% for the two exploration and evaluation assets, respectively. During the
assessment periods for the two exploration and evaluation assets, the latest
financial budgets for the next 6 years and for the next 6 years respectively
were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group and cash flows
beyond this 6-year period and 6-year period respectively were projected
using a growth rate of 2.3% per annum. Based on the assessments,
the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts of these
exploration and evaluation assets were lower than their carrying amounts
and recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$1,003,000 and
HK$2,596,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 on its two exploration
and evaluation assets, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(il

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining activities pertaining
to coal mines in Peru. The mining rights were amortised on a unit of
production basis over the estimated economic reserve of the mine. The mines
were suspended for production for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia, an independent professional
qualified valuer, on its mining rights as at 31 December 2021 based on fair
value less costs of disposal. For the purpose of assessment, the mining
rights have been allocated to mining rights activities’” CGU. In assessing
the mining rights, discounted cash flow projection method is adopted. The
above fair value measurements are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The recoverable amounts are determined by taking into account
the estimated mine life, production volume, selling price and operating costs.
The assessments cover a 9-year period using discount rate of 18.6% and
zero growth rate for the mining rights. Based on the assessments, the Group
determined that the estimated recoverable amount of the mining rights
was lower than its carrying amount and recognised impairment losses of
approximately HK$3,478,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 on its
mining rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessments of the mining rights with reference to
valuations performed by Ravia. For the purpose of assessment, the two
mining rights assets have been allocated to mining rights activities’ CGUs,
of which the recoverable amounts are determined by taking into account
the estimated mine life, production volume, selling price and operating
costs, and the latest financial budgets approved by the management. The
assessments cover a 9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 19.5%
and a 9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 12.3% for the two mining
rights assets, respectively. During the assessment periods for the two mining
rights assets, the latest financial budgets for the next 3 years and for the next
5 years respectively were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group
and cash flows beyond these 3-year period and 5-year period respectively
were projected using a growth rate of 2.3% per annum. Based on the
assessments, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amount
of one of the mining rights assets was lower than its carrying amount and
should be fully impaired and recognised impairment losses of approximately
HK$3,014,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NBE-—Z-—5+-A=+—BILFEABTIIE) -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. LA EBEtEBH®S T AEz= 18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

HRERE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JELEMIRAKE @ AT E: Unlisted equity investments, at fair value:
—HERE — Hunan Taiji 32,922 =
Lt 3 E IR E AR 2 E HI60% A% AN fE The above unlisted investments represent 60% equity interest in
B OHEA—FREREKIAAT - /Eﬂﬁ,J\ Hunan Taiji, a company established in the PRC. Hunan Taiji was
ERBE T _—FHA+TRAARKLESEAER de-consolidated from the consolidated financial statements of the
REBRGEMBEHRENRN - WHE B ER 2 Group with effect from 15 April 2021 and recognised as equity
NAFEFEAEEEH T ABRONRA %x investments at FVTPL on the same date, please refer to note 11
B BEFEE  WE2HESVBRRNME to the consolidated financial statements for the details.
11 o
R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—H  HEREL Hunan Taiji is in the process of mandatory dissolution as at 31
TETRHEHESE  E@FS  MELREEE December 2021, please refer to note 38(b) to the consolidated
87 75 R 2% B 7£38(b) ° financial statements for the details.
19. 7 E 19. INVENTORIES
:g: - ﬂi — 7 — E'E
2021 2020
FExT TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R R % H FE Raw materials and consumables 5 5
SR Th Finished goods 22,023 28,259
22,028 28,264

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
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GEMBHERNE (H) 22
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

= BE-T-—F+-A=+—BItFECUBTIIIE) ©
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
20. FEWERRX

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

:E: - ﬂi — 7 — E'E

2021 2020

TERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

JrE U BR X Accounts receivable 1,196 3,249
B Impairment (1,196) (2,317)

- 932
FEUWEBR R — MR EZE BAREEIE - —fRm Accounts receivable are usually due immediately from the date of

ERELAFLENT  EEEH KA —@

billing. Payment in advance is normally required except the credit

A MREAEEFXKFARES KHEEFRE
HEERUEB I ETREEFRZUEREMW
8 R o 25 B 28 77 4 5 50 8 R AR 2 F Uk BR
REBHRERREER THeREEET
HEEERRS  UWREEERR - EUKE
RETTERETEUARE - T TR RBET
g -

period is generally 1 month extending up to 2 months for certain
customers from coal mining business and sale of parts of mining
equipment business of the Group. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
balances which are reviewed regularly by senior management to
minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing
and mainly denominated in RMB, USD and Soles.

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

RBEYRR  RERABRFELMGBEE
AEHEBBERZ KRR HAOT

:g: - ﬂi — 7 - E'E

2021 2020

F#& T THT

HK$’000 HK$'000

— @ AR Within 1 month - 113
—EZ=M@A 1 to 3 months = 582
BE=EAH Over 3 months = 237
- 932

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
TBET_—F+A=1+—BLFECHETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. FE U BR X

(nlﬁ)
EWERFOBERE cZFHMT -

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

—E-—F —EETF

2021 2020

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

REH] At the beginning of year 2,317 1,619
AR E SR Impairment loss recognised 489 1,021

HEERARRREESR Reversal of impairment loss recognised (923) (207)

(A 48 57 W [B] T #5088 Write-off as uncollectible (555) (131)
[ 5, 8 & Exchange realignment (132) 15
RER At the end of year 1,196 2,317

AEERATEMBHREERSE
AL ERMERE

B IR BRBE R A

K& B BAS ﬁ?ﬁﬂ£$1¢
R R BEAATE EIJE’J/\IE)SZTEi%E’\MEM °

VAT 0 51) 7K 5% 8] 8 Uk Bk K P D R 12 5 L B

8 - EBLATA EURR
HERANREREREFE P TEHEEE
e RETEFEHEE

AEEERRE zﬁl&ﬂﬁ}%%%( D# - BRAET

E518

eLidzolkiopa The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses by recognising a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all accounts receivable from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

FE U R R B AR IR

ERmEEIEE - A
2RI

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on

he |

Bk the Group’s accounts receivable:
B
Past due
PR—@ER —Z=@RB HBB=EA &%
Less than 1to3 Over 3
1 month months months Total
R=ZT=—F As at 31 December 2021
+=—A=+—H
FEeE(FET) Gross carrying amount (HK$°000) - = 1,196 1,196
TEHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate = - 100% 100%
BERE(TET) Loss allowance (HK$’000) - - (1,196) (1,196)
RZZE_TF As at 31 December 2020
+=ZRA=+—8
Em@E(FET) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) 258 663 2,328 3,249
TEHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 12.79% 22.78% 91.62% 71.31%
EERE (T8 T) Loss allowance (HK$’000) (33) (151) (2,133) (2,317)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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o1. FA{IZIE - RE R HEMPEYEIE 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FET TATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SRR Prepayments 968 729
e (K:F) Deposits (note) 53,026 1,849
H {8 U 5118 Other receivables 15,267 17,369
69,261 19,947
VERLE] Impairment (26) (3,999)
69,235 15,948

DA Analysed into:
mENER Current portion 19,235 15,948
EREE D Non-current portion 50,000 =

Bt - Note:

RZFEZ—F+-A=+—8 FAEENZSBEE—%
50,000,000 7T ) < 58 4 Bt W B B BB A Bl 1 S f+F - HAE4R
EUMBRRRADERIETBEE - REBHA-ZT=——
FZARAMNEERS  ARREKHEREEE  misE
BMOENEEREARAR (BN ARHERELERH
(AP Es B EILERR AR ([BEAR]) 22 2RHE) -
# X {8 4186,000,000% T - BIZARIMEKBERED
XREURMEETREY - BELEMRAFEI4AT - B3
WESEEKRBERS BEGRAVBBRRILEBSRA
1E - EURBE SR I R R ST ©

BNRE - R REMREFREZREEE

As at 31 December 2021, included in the deposits of the Group there was a balance
of HK$50,000,000 paid for acquisition of a subsidiary classified as non-current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. Pursuant to a sale and
purchase agreement dated 5 March 2021, the Company conditionally agreed
to purchase, and Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited (the “Vendor”)
conditionally agreed to sell the shares, which represent the entire equity interest
of FEMHELEBI AT (the “Target Company”), at a total consideration of
HK$186,000,000. The business scope of the Target Company included property
leasing and property management and operations. The proposed acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Up
to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the aforesaid
acquisition has not yet completed.

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments,

2EHmT : deposits and other receivables are as follows:
—E-—-F —E_EF
2021 2020
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA) At the beginning of year 3,999 7,422
BRI EE B Impairment loss recognised 1,866 1,710
BRI EEEEMD Reversal of impairment loss recognised - (531)
4757 Uk [ 7 i 84 Write-off as uncollectible (5,507) (4,370)
LEMEAQ A Disposal of subsidiaries - (278)
PE X, & Exchange realignment (332) 46
RER At the end of year 26 3,999
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TBE_T_—F+_A=+—"BEFECAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. ERRE - ek EMEKREIE
(#8)
HipEU S SR REEHE - 1% A FIR
HERE  UEARRERER  URR=
TG+ ABHEE AR E R
PR —_E—=F+_ACKEH  mAEsE
EWEEBREAEGER B HE
ERORRANEERERE - RBE 2
—TE+-A=+-ALEER AEEK
[0 £729,000/8 7T © Esp4&E 4B B A A U@l m
4 o

FRSREEMBYGRIEN SR EEKEM
FUEERNEREEERRENEHOT :

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The other loan receivable was denominated in RMB, bore
interest at 1% per month, was secured by personal guarantee
and was repayable in December 2013. The other loan receivable
was fully impaired in prior years as the loan was past due in
December 2013 and the collection of the amount was in doubt.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
approximately HK$29,000 and the remaining balance was written
off as uncollectible.

The movements in the ECL allowance related to financial assets
included in other receivables and other loan receivable are as

follows:
BRETHBERSENEREE HttEWEF
Financial assets included
in other receivables Other loan receivable
ERFEN BERESD BEGES ZEREH
BHEE HERR BHEE RBERE

12EAREM BR-AE BR-FR L2BREE BE-XF BE-EA
REBR ARG WE REFR s WA @

Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime

ECL not ECL ECL not ECL

12-month credit- credit-  12-month credit- credit-
ECL  impaired  impaired ECL  impaired  impaired Total

FTER FTER FTER TER TER FTER FTER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RZZ-_Z£-f-H At 1 January 2020 - - - - - 3,357 3,357
REBHED Reversal upon settlement - - - - - (29) (29)
BANRESE Impairment loss recognised = = 27 - - = 27
A M Write-off as uncollectible - - - - - (3,559) (3,559)
B XA Exchange realignment - - - = = 231 231
R-ZE-ZE&E+-R At 31 December 2020 and

=t-HAR-E=—% 1 January 2021

—-A-H - - 27 - - - 27
EHBE Exchange realignment = - 1) - - - )
R-B--£+ZR At 31 December 2021

Er= - - 26 - - - 26

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT_—F+t_A=t—HLEFEULETIE) ©
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 FEUREBE N T3 IE/FEH&(}&}XQ 22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/
NEFRIE AN INVESTEE COMPANY
(a) EREEDQIFRE (@) Amounts due from related companies
TFEEANES
REEBEER —B-—F —ETF
Maximum
outstanding
during the
year 2021 2020
Bt THERT THET FHT
NEBB Name of company Note HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Junefield Group S.A. Junefield Group S.A. (i) 110 64 110
Junefield Premium Metal Junefield Premium Metal

Company S.A.C. Company S.A.C. (i) B 4 S
Junefield Mining S.A.C. Junefield Mining S.A.C. (i) 2,238 590 708
Total Genius Iron Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.

Mining S.A.C. (i) 179 159 179
2 R Hualing Steel (ii) 12,924 = 12,924
BIKEERR A A Mega Choice Investment

Limited (i) 88 81 82
Junefield Geological Junefield Geological

Explorations Institute S.A.C.  Explorations Institute S.A.C. (i) B 5 &)
Golden Ideal Gold Mining Golden Ideal Gold Mining S.A.C.

S.A.C. (i) 6 - 6
3k A B S ot 2 R 3 Beijing Junefield Real

BRAA] Estate Development

Company Limited (i) 48 48 =

951 14,019

RN FEERBFAREER 28 RERE
B -

0] AABPMTETARZALENKARRMESE (F
FE]D) RRERTNEFEHES

(i)  WEREZIFERERERAS - NEEEREE
A B - MEZ RSB E30%EE N E
BEhBERMBZZRABEE R_T_FF
TZA=+—H AEFREZERERNYFARE
NETE -
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The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Notes:

(i) Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (“Mr. Zhou”), a close family member of Mr. Zhou
Jianren (an executive director of the Company), has beneficial interests in
these companies.

(if) Lianyuan Steel, the non-controlling interest of Hunan Taiji, has beneficial
interests in Hualing Steel and Hualing Steel is also effectively owned as to
more than 30% by the holding company of Lianyuan Steel. The amount
mainly comprised of prepayments and deposits paid as at 31 December
2020.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HOE B EARNAERAF
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A EABMBBAME (E)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)::::: ,&
CHE_ZE-_ S+ _A=+—HLEFECBTIIE) T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
22 EWBEATRE EWHIRE 22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/

NEIFIE (8) AN INVESTEE COMPANY (continued)
(a) FEWREEE D IIRE (&) (@) Amounts due from related companies
(continued)
ERAPRERKNBEEARZKIENEME The movements in ECL allowance related to financial assets
ENTEREEBBREENEBNT ! included in amounts due from related companies are as
follows:
BEFES
FEHEEEE -
ERRE
Lifetime
ECL
credit-
impaired
FHET
HK$’000
RZZEZEF—F—H ZZ2=ZF At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and
+ZA=F+—RARZZE=—F—H—H 1 January 2021 -
TR R (B 5 18 Impairment loss recognised 6,061
BIEHEMB AR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (6,061)
R-E-_—F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 -
(b) EWRHEZRE QN IARE (b) Amounts due from an investee company
FEWHIEE AR RNIE S EKM IR The amounts due from an investee company are unsecured,
4.85%M FEMEAERN S - REFHN bore interest at 4.85% per annum and with original terms
TASE B EME - BEETIBEERERNEE of repayment ranging from fifteen months to two years. The
EARBER - amounts have been settled subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.
REBE—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIt%F The maximum outstanding balance during the year for
ERN - BURIERE QAR RBERFEEANH amounts due from an investee company was approximately
Rim AN EEAERL 18,744,000 T HK$18,744,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED .
182 % = BB A S B A 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 # #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+_A=+T—BHUEFECAETINE) "

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
23. U NFEEBHEEHT AEER 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

€@ TH THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRAIEE - ZmE Listed equity investments, at market value:

—&E - Hong Kong 16,121 15,706
AR MR AKRENFEES Bt - 9 The above equity investments were classified as financial
MAURTEFEEHEZEH T ABZN S instruments at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
TH- for trading.

24. HERBITE

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—E- % T F

2021 2020

F#E T &L

HK$’000 HK$’000

He NMIBITES Cash and bank balances 114,006 6,893

RFEHEERE  AEBUARBHEZ
Re RIBTHE Y A20,655,0008 T (==
ZETF 1 4,652,000870) RTF A B 2 R
T - BEARETATEHLBLAEMES
AT AR AR R B A O BE B IR R B R A BE
EERNESERT  A5EBBEREE
TTHNEZETSRIRITIEA R SIIEE & -

R-_EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 " BEL KK
R B IET R A R 1T Z & £ 432,000
RH (HEERL63,00087T) (CE-F
29,000% f (18 F MR #163,0007%8 7T) ) ({’57%%’*
HEARNRES) -

RITRESBREBEE A RTFRANXZFH X
AR RITEBRENEERFAYEINE
HIRCER ZIRTTIA

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$20,655,000 (2020: HK$4,652,000) and placed with banks in
the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the cash and bank
balances, there was a balance of approximately Soles 32,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$63,000 (2020: Soles 29,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$63,000), placed in bank in Peru
as guarantee fund for issuing of credit card.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NBE-—z-——f+-A=+—BIFE(UETHIE) -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. EE{FBR=X 25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

RBEHR REZAHAECAEEEN An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the end

BRAZERE DT : of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
—B=-—-F —T_FTF
2021 2020
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—{E A AR Within 1 month 2 5
—Z=@A 1 to 3 months = 32
HBiE =18 A Over 3 months 2,747 4,764
2,749 4,801

ENEABTAERIEANARE XK
REEE-

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are mainly
denominated in RMB, USD and Soles.

26. HbENFERESTAERE 26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—EB-—-F —T-THF
2021 2020
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt BaE Accruals 19,679 17,670
FER P T Business tax payable 2,030 2,030
BiE & Deposits received 1,351 1,033
BRBE Contract liabilities 685 229
H th & S 3RI8 Other payables 23,688 31,151
47,433 52,113

BAREIZEREANE AEREXRE
RARFE - A RA/STFHFERE
BUAARBERRBE -

BHRERERRINERRE @MUK E
HBEWR -R_F_—F GHAEGEEMNE
RIHNEFRLEERBERETIMFEU
R P 58 B SR MR B P A0 -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

B & X F R 2 7

The accruals mainly comprise of accrued interest, legal
and professional fees and salaries. Other payables are
non-interest-bearing and are mainly denominated in RMB and
Soles.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver products and goods. The increase in contract liabilities
in 2021 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sale of parts of mining
equipment at the end of the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. st EHMEE

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INTEREST-BEARING OTHER BORROWINGS

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
Jioka F#& T FH&T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BN &R Current
HiER—FEMA Other loan—secured (ii) 22,000 23,000
H A B 5K — Other loan—unsecured (i) 6,115 5,980
EEr Total 28,115 28,980
WA Analysed into:
AEEZHMEE : Other borrowings repayable:
——FRNIEERKEE — Within one year or on demand 28,115 28,980

Biat -

(i)

(ii)

(iil

R=ZFT—NAF+ZA=+—H FAEEEWEE
4R 17 BU 5 4R 17 B B 49319,000FE L sk HE F R 4
2,465,000/ LA AWM BREE A B E - ZERN
EiHE - B FHRBERTRERE ([RBERT
REFREDNEBFLEZ FFRFE  EERE

T+ _A=+—RHIEFENEZHEE

BITERARNEBVRMEZETHE  BERR
BIEER  HR =T _TF+=-fF=+— EZ%E
BEH A37,750,000/%8 7 - EERLEREE
——H+-A=+—HLFERRRK -

REBEEE —ZWE AR RS /25,000,0007 7T
mfiﬁﬁﬁﬂ4%%~uﬁi$%§zf%%§
BeBEke ﬁﬁ#ﬁmhau%ﬁﬁﬁ RE R =
SEFENWER=-ZT—N\F—AEE - R=_F— t
F+=8" mﬁﬁﬁﬁmEAJiﬁ%mm-éf
BYC#E—$TCHE_T—NF—HA=8-

RZFB-—NAE—-A AEEEZREAG
25,000,000/ 70 89— B BIE AT L 1+ - B
Eﬂtﬁwhﬁmﬂﬂﬁ LR=egtE= R = Bl o
R-Z_FF—F  EFAHEEFSTERE_F

——F-AZH - BER T —F— AEMNHE

TR BEAPRE—SEEE_T_—F—H&
—H MEMEDETHBSLS% RER=-_T=—

F—AEMMMARE - RIFHETRIBAR ITRE
- B4 (BERER) X [1440,0008 TH B & -
BEAHEE—SEEE_FT_=F—H=H"-

R—B-——%+=-A=+—8" z%ﬂﬁu$%
%] B T 42 {8 4 540,366,000 7T (— 2 = T4 -
41 634,000 70) MG TIREMEERER - N
T FER-_T-_THEF+-A=1+—HB BEEEX
ﬁumﬂﬁi FHEAERALBERE (£F)
BERAR(AEEREREEERER) L THA
RIERIERIER -

448 BB DA R 3 (L 1 40 S B
BREERER -
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Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(il

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a bank loan of approximately
USD319,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$2,465,000 from a local bank
in Peru for financing its mining projects in Peru. The loan was denominated
in USD, interest-bearing at annual rate of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 6.4% per annum and was fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The bank loan was secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment situated in Peru with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$37,750,000 as at 31 December 2020. The charge of asset was released
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group entered into an agreement with a money lender in Hong Kong for
one-year term loan with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 for facilitating
the general working capital needs of the Group. The secured other loan is
denominated in HK$, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and was repayable
in January 2018. In December 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with the money lender and the repayment date was further
extended to 3 January 2019.

In January 2019, the Group entered into a new agreement with the money
lender for one-year term loan of HK$25,000,000 with interest at 8% per
annum and repayment date on 3 January 2020. In January 2020, the
repayment date was further extended to 3 January 2021. Pursuant to a
supplemental deed effective in January 2021, the repayment date is further
extended to 3 January 2022 with interest rate revised to 8.5% per annum.
Pursuant to a supplemental deed effective in January 2022, the repayment
date is further extended to 3 January 2023 based upon conditions precedent
in the supplemental deed including but not limited to the payment of
arrangement fee of HK$440,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the loan is secured by certain of the Group’s
investment properties with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$40,366,000 (2020: HK$41,634,000). The loan is also secured by personal
guarantee given by Mr. Zhou and corporate guarantee given by Junefield
(Holdings) Limited (in which Mr. Zhou has beneficial interests) as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB, bears interest at a rate of
9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE-—T-— 1A=+ ALFE(ABETHIE) -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. ENBE NS HIE 28. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

ZIENFORAERIT R NEETENE - The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

29. HEGE 29. LEASE LIABILITIES

KEBEAEHAA The Group as a lessee

RZEZ—F+_A=+—H AxEEEE At 31 December 2021, the Group has lease contracts for office
BRABRTEMESRI THESR - PHAEFT premises and properties. Lease of office premises has lease
MAERA2F(ZEZTF : 26) - MW term of 2 years (2020: 2 years) and lease of properties has lease
MEEHAEIILF HEZXSEWEEALAE term of 11.5 years. The leasing of the properties is intended
ENREXEARSEXAE EEEHRNE for use by the Group as short-term or long-term rental serviced
RIEEELIGHTER o apartments with ancillary business premises such as catering and

convenience stores.

RAEER AEEHEAENEREASEN The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
BEAZEHMT : the year are as follows:
—EB-—-F —E=F
2021 2020
FET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
N—A—HWEEE S5 Carrying amount at 1 January 1,304 -
HEE New lease 38,911 1,970
F) 212 10 Accretion of interest 1,188 33
INES Repayment (942) (699)
AR A BCOVID-1989F € 5 :8 Covid-19-related rent concession from lessor (1,207) -
HEEK Lease modification 867 -
PE X, 3 & Exchange realignment 643 =
RT+-_A=+—HBHMEETHE Carrying amount at 31 December 40,764 1,304
Bl Analysed into:
ENE Current portion 7,261 973
EmENE D Non-current portion 33,503 331
f EBEMNIHBAMELGRE M mEMT The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42(e)
42(0) AW EE © to the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
¥ o B &E A BB A I ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) =
BE_ZT_—F+-_A=T—HLEFECABRTINE) ~

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29 HE&GRE (&) 29. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
HEEEBEANERNSEOT ¢ The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
as follows:
—E-—-F —E_EF
2021 2020
THEx FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEAENNE Interest on lease liabilities 1,188 33
FREEEREER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 2,737 1,090
HEHEERBANAXS Expense relating to short-term leases 79 219
AR ERICOVID-198F &5 E Covid-19-related rent concession from lessor (1,207) -
FEENERNRE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2,797 1,342
HERRAEHGFEGHSRERANNR ML R The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
BT - statement of cash flows is as follows:
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
THEx FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEEA Within operating activities 79 219
EREEEA Within financing activities 942 699
1,021 918
e MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 # o= KA A B B A T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TBE_T_—F+_A=+—"BEFECAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. BIEREN

30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

—E-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
FERT FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

AR THEARNRE
RTIRTTER

Guarantees given to a bank in connection
with facilities granted to a related company - =

R-ZZE-_EF+_A=+—B BEEBE
MELLE-RBTEARMNEEEESR
RAaE ([8BMERFD MERA)FTEIY A
AE-T—NE+—ANBHNERER (EFHT
EmaE RIEE]) ([K\EER])  HEBEHE
K (ARelzEE2EWBAR) MEITHR
HEETHREYME (HESKEHBRAEAN
FrEtmBEmE 4 £ A #931,910,0005 7t) (Kt
FE15) F MEARINEE (RALERKEE
BENAEBEEAR) MABREABARKE
35,000,000 2 ERWEMEREAE ARE
8,000,0007T X AR B B T IEE R EE 2 -
RBBESRA-_ZT-NAE+—B N\ B
M o BB E S AL RN LB 5 IRET S
Bz Bt BMNEEREREEEE
LRI —RMEFEE ARK120,0007T A
MR ELLNERERE TN ZER
REZHFERE - SNEENERRE W
HHEELLCIREER  WEHMNEEE
4 HggRERBEEESLRIRHTS

ERAIBEOAEERREX -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

At 31 December 2020, Junefield Property Agency, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pledged certain of
its investment properties, whose carrying values included in
the consolidated statement of financial position amounted to
approximately HK$31,910,000 in aggregate (note 15), in favour
of a bank as security for the repayment obligations of &8/%%
EEEARAAF (“Jinzhou Rongxin”), a related company of the
Group which is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou, for partial
loan principal amount of RMB8,000,000 plus related interests in
respect of a loan of principal amount RMB35,000,000 and tenure
is for a period of two years from 8 November 2019, pursuant
to mortgage agreements (as supplemented and amended by a
supplement agreement) dated 8 November 2019 entered between
Junefield Property Agency and a bank (as lender to Jinzhou
Rongxin) (the “Mortgage Agreements”). Junefield Property Agency
and Jinzhou Rongxin also entered into an indemnity agreement,
whereby Jinzhou Rongxin agreed to pay Junefield Property
Agency a one-time handling charge of RMB120,000 and to fully
indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s obligations under the
Mortgage Agreements. Jinzhou Rongxin’s parent company has
also provided guarantees to Junefield Property Agency that it will
assume all fees and losses incurred to Junefield Property Agency
in respect of the provision of financial guarantee, in case of default
by Jinzhou Rongxin.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #




30.

REMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MBEREH (E)

R FTS IR A R IR A B S B R & KV T8
HEEEBERENEVNRERNATESRE
BEBRBMANRASEARETITE - R
—E-_TF+-_A=Z+—H ARAEEE
KT EEREBEBENRR - % AT
RRARBEALBITENKER = &
B BBERENNEERR A VBERE
YARBEEM R_T_FTF+_A=+—
B REFBVHIREERFEIR - HarEE
BB E BT - WA I E 18 %5 fE R TE B
EEEEHE D 472,000/ 7T °

R-ZTE-_FTFE+_A=+—8 AX&EAH

BERAGAMAGN RS ERBOEBHA
A R #8,020,0007T (48 5 1 499,592,000/%8
JL) °

PEERGONEERRMODELE

B - RBE_Z-_—FER_T_FTF+=A
Z+—HALEFERN SBEE2EIWETAE
% BBV BEREONEER RO/ E

— &R - WE 2 FE42(d) ©

RBE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE
CMBERABOCEIE MEEVEN
MO REE -
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BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT (continued)

The financial guarantee contract that arose from the entering into
the Mortgage Agreements is measured at the higher of the ECL
allowance and the amount of its fair value initially recognised
less the cumulative amount of income recognised. As at 31
December 2020, the directors of the Company have assessed the
status of the debts under guarantee, the financial position of the
debtor as well as economic outlook of the industries in which the
debtor operate, and concluded that there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
guarantee contract. Loss allowance was estimated to be close
to zero as at 31 December 2020 in accordance with HKFRS 9,
and as a result reversal of expected credit loss of approximately
HK$72,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020, the maximum exposure amount of the
Group under the financial guarantee contract was approximately
RMB8,020,000, equivalent to approximately HK$9,592,000.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract is
classified as stage 1. During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, there were no transfers between stages. Please refer
to note 42(d) for further information about credit risk exposure of
the financial guarantee contract.

The financial guarantee contract has expired and the charge over
the investment properties have been released during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TBET_—F+A=1+—BLFECHETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. IELERIH

AEEEERREENBERFAZESHN

31. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities

T during the year are as follows:
IEEFi I8 & = Deferred tax assets
A {4t 45 8 R 2R PE
RBORF 2 BB
Losses
available
for offsetting
against
future taxable
profits
FHET
HK$'000
\:;: —ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 347
R 2 IEERIE Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (329)
MEH A= Exchange differences (18)
R-ZB-EBF+=-A=+—H" At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and
—E--¥-A—-HK 31 December 2021
—E-—-F+=A=+—H -
EZEHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities
BEEWE

Revaluation
of properties

FHxT

HK$'000

R-_ZE_ZF—H—H At 1 January 2020 33,256

MBI 2 BT IR Deferred tax charged to profit or loss 553

ME H 258 Exchange differences 594
RZEZZTF+-A=+—HERK At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

—E-_—%—H—H 34,403

ST ABREREN A Deferred tax credited to profit or loss (1,568)

b 5 =& Exchange differences 224

R-B-_—-%+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 33,059

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EERIE ()
AEEBREBB 2 HIEEIEL1,062,000%8
T (ZE T4 : 1,062,000 7T) AT £ R 2 /7
RILEHIREIBZ R A Z K RERFHF o
7 & B 7R A Hh B 2= A B TE B 98 4946,028,000
B (ZEZZHF - 161,902,000 7T) I 18
R—Z2RFRER - o] HEERRERT R
M -MBE_ZT-_FTF+_A=+—HILF
EALECNZRHB AR (FH:F43) 1% @ B
- EFE+-_A=1+—H AEEITER
BEAZRMHNMEERE -

AEBNTAREWMBEZHEBIELDY
123,150,000/ 7T (ZZ Z=ZF 4 : 106,559,000
BIL)  MASENEERLZERF AMAL
EEBFRENNERALEEE  EREE
AAMPMARSERFEZEABKAZ
50% ' NS IKSH LRI 2 B 18 -

HRBEEBRREERCE —REEZME
DA AARIEARI AR ABEFEEEZ
J& SR A0t | - R 3 B A A TR B 1R SRR AT TR
HEE °

BIERBECEMBFRIEANBRE @ NP EKZ
ZHNECEMBIIMEEEE R ZBEAR
WA0% B - EBEBEETE T NF—H
—BAERER YEAR-_ZTZTEFE+_A
St BUBRELAZEN - HPREFHE
INREEMBRZEER 2B BRI H
E o A AT IR EBRE BB R R AT - SEASE
BfmE #@AMEAES%KI0% - Bt » &
EBRERRPERZZHBRARE Z_ZEZN
F—RB—BRELEZEBIMADIRZKREH R
ENR RN BE-_—FR-_F_ZTF+=H1
—t+—H HEfBARYELRELAF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,062,000 (2020: HK$1,062,000) and that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$46,028,000 (2020:
HK$161,902,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. The Group has no tax losses arising
in Ecuador as at 31 December 2020 after disposing the subsidiary
in Ecuador (note 43) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Peru of approximately
HK$123,150,000 (2020: HK$106,559,000) which the Group has
the option to carry forward all net operating losses for five years
or carry the losses forward indefinitely, but only up to 50% of
the taxpayer’s taxable income of each subsequent year. Loss
carryback is not permitted.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax
losses arising in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.
There were no unremitted earnings for the PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CEBE—ZT-_—F+t-A=t+—BHLFEUABETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. | 32. SHARE CAPITAL
ROEE &N
Number of shares Share capital
—B--F% —T%EF —B--F 223
2021 2020 2021 2020
FHR FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
ETE Authorised:
BREE010B T2 TR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 25,000,000,000  25,000,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
BEETRER Issued and fully paid:
R—B—BE+=-B=+—8H At 1 January and 31 December 1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251 120,625 120,625
33. & 33. RESERVES

AEBAFER - EEZERELBRAR
BN R R ESE EHBELA BB HE

EXT

REBEARBTEKBEAT 2 AFAL
%M B A B FB A EBR B AR A 2 10%3)
BREXTARHER EEREEHRED
HEMER250%A 1 o EHAEERA
SEHEANRBRSAEE - X ERH
FEEATARBEER YARREER
ARBSAD L Z L HIEE BN - 1EF
RETRIESRTIEINEEMELRZ
25% °

HibEERBARRATES TRL
RRES T BELEMEHNEERR
FRYEEVHE -

)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 95 to 96 of this annual
report.

()  According to the Articles of Association of the PRC
subsidiary of the Company which require the appropriation
of 10% of its profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The transfer of the reserve must be made before
distributions of dividends to owners of the Group. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used for making up losses and may
be converted into capital in proportion to existing owners’
equity percentage, provided that the balance after such
issuance is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

Other reserve represents the capital contribution from a
related company controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan, an executive
director, the chairman and the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.
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BE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BLFEUETIIE) "~
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
4. EEXRFEEREZ 20 EAEHK 34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

B2 E NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRIWRAER 7 A EAFFIEREZ 2 IE The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
2EMB AR ZFHIE of the Group that has material non-controlling interests:
FEREREEZ
MEARER RIBHRFTEL X P 75 e g Lo PMEFERERZZER Rt ERER
Proportion of
Place of ownership
establishment and interests held by the Loss allocated to Accumulated
principal place of non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests interests interests
B —T-FTF B —T-THF ZBZ-F —T-TH
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

THER THET TR THAT
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000

R ZE Hunan Tail F B PRC TEA 40% (3,463) (8,598) = 12,455
N/A
AEEBEEENFEERER 2B AT 28 Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
BERBEHFNNGET - LM FTHMBERRE A subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
EERNYEHENESE HEREELH-ZT below. The summarised financial information below represents
T —FOATHRARBKIEGRERAEENLR amounts before intragroup eliminations. Hunan Taiji was
BHBHmMEN BHEFER  WEL2HEEY de-consolidated from the consolidated financial statements
ERERM LI » of the Group on 15 April 2021, please refer to note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements for the details.
HERE Hunan Taiji
—E-THF
2020
FAT
HK$’000
MENEE Current assets 13,190
EMEEE Non-current assets 54,189
mEAE Current liabilities (34,225)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEAFERER G EASHN 34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

BR (%)

WEER (F) Hunan Taiji (continued)
H-ZE—-—F
-A-HE BE
=F=—F —E =
MA+HEHBE +=-—A=+—H
AR IEFE
Period from
1 January Year ended
2021 to 31 December
15 April 2021 2020
THER T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
N Revenue - -
= NS & Other income and gains = 1
F % Expense (8,659) (21,495)
FEEHAE Loss for the year (8,659) (21,494)
FEHMPEEE Other comprehensive income for the year 88 2,968
FEZHERMAR Total comprehensive expense for the year (8,571) (18,526)
RENE R g 3 N Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests = =
REXBREME Net cash outflow from operating activities

R L F R (47) (594)

RekBReEEY Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
WA ERR (47) (594)

194 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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BHE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

B 3% ok M e (4])
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

from financing activities.

HESME FERTEE TEHMEER et
Interest- Interest-
bearing bearing
Lease bank other
liabilities borrowings borrowings Total
T T T T FAT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
RZE-_ZEF—H—H At 1 January 2020 - 2,465 30,595 33,060
BMEREREELENEE : Changes from financing
cash flows:
EERITREMERK Repayment of bank and
other loan - (2,483) (2,000) (4,483)
EEHEaE Repayment of lease liabilities (699) - - (699)
H 1th % B Other changes:
FHE New lease 1,970 - - 1,970
T EH Interest expense 33 = = 33
B 3, A= Exchange realignment - 18 385 403
R-ZE_TEF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 and
r=F=——%—H—H 1 January 2021 1,304 - 28,980 30,284
MERSREEENEH Changes from financing
cash flows:
BEEMER Repayment of other loan - - (1,000) (1,000)
EEHEAE Repayment of lease liabilities (942) - - (942)
H{th & & Other changes:
wiHEE New lease 38,911 = = 38,911
HEBN Lease modification 867 - - 867
A AR B BCOVID-198Y Covid-19-related rent
e R E concession from lessor (1,207) - - (1,207)
T B Interest expense 1,188 - - 1,188
B 5 A= Exchange realignment 643 - 135 778
R-ZZE-_—F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2021 40,764 - 28,115 68,879
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
36. EEE M 36. CHARGE OF ASSETS
UWAEEETFEEREEABER 2 AEEE Details of the Group’s borrowings, which are secured by certain
EvHFBINERNGEE B RERME14 pledged assets of the Group, are included in notes 14, 15, 27

15 2730 ° and 30 respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
37. BREBAHZH 37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

AEERBELELEHOLHFHEEETRED
X BERZEMAME(CE_ZF :NF—
E=F) -

The Group leases certain of its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements, which leases negotiated for terms
of two years (2020: ranging from one to three years).

RZZEZ—F+A=+—H AKEHRE
B PET 2 N A& & HOR KRR
U ARIT IR A E N KB T ¢

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

—E-—F —EZTF

2021 2020

THEx FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 3,863 2,736
—FREMRFTNRN After one year but within two years 2,656 720
6,519 3,456

38. RIRFFA 38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

@ HEBEMIIR-F—=ZF1tAK (@)
—ET-AF T ARTEBEREEES

Junefield Building Material filed two applications for
arbitration proceedings at the China International

HEZES([(MREES]) RIM XM
A HERE D HRFERH
#HEABE RER=E—F—A
—HE_ZE—=Ff N \A=+—HHHEK
R-ZE—=FNLA—BE=_Z—A"FN
A=1+EHEBEE A EEEr A4S
TH NMEFE R AR EE 2 KE ([KE R
B ZMEE  BREMEEF (DA
[ —AREMBRBIRIFEZRARE
HERFELD -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission (“Arbitration
Commission”) against the minority shareholder of Hunan
Taiji, Lianyuan Steel in October 2013 and December 2015
respectively for compensations on, inter alia, failing to
procure the requested amount of supply of the granulated
steel slag for production (“Steel Slag Supply”) for the
periods from 1 January 2011 to 31 August 2013 and from
1 September 2013 to 30 September 2015 under Hunan
Taiji’s joint venture agreement (the “First Taiji Arbitration
Application” and the “Second Taiji Arbitration Application”
respectively).

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



38. RIRFFR (%)

(a)

(&)

RZZ—RF—F - 5 GEM) ZEMF
HEEBSENEBE - AREMFHRE
ZHOR o W (M) RERZZE—tF
NAZBHESERNEFEASBHAR
#13,850,0007T °

R=ZZF—+tFRHA HBEMB®SE
ZREEMPHEBABIELE - FRERIA
BB REHAEALER=ZZE—RFAN
A=+HEREILR_ZT—X"FNA
=+—H REHFFBESHEOARE
71,485,0007C * WKW EMRHEZES X
B BESREMBmRIERR - FR
M AR o

R-ZZT—NFERA B EM) KE
FZRFEMPEBRBZHARE ([HR
£ Bt (HF81F) BRI EER
HE(EM) ST —NF—F—
AE-Z—X"FN\A=+—HHBEAH
BT R 2 BRE 49 A R%30,097,0007T °
A ERIHEARER T —NFRA
NBERZAZEE - T3 (EM) mE
R AR AR AR R BIBITREE © % B
BER_E—NEFLA-_+HLBELKR
B Bz BRMENR-_Z—NLEN
AR BRI RTEEFRARER
(b= AoER ) 12 H 2 sk = #
REZ B BREBEZERENR =T —NF+
AZ+hB®MET  ERmHEERE
O BEEHEE - T (EM) &RER=F
—NE+—AZt+NhBESEERER
FE o

AEERESRBE -_T-—RFALA—HE
B FE T = BT 5| e 2 A] BE B (B R
MERDNE - FTHFIOEERR - U
RZEBERE - SHERB (FEHF

#D) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

In January 2015, Junefield Building Material was awarded
the First Taiji Arbitration Application by the Arbitration
Commission. Junefield Building Material ultimately
received the compensation in the amount of approximately
RMB13,850,000 from Lianyuan Steel on 2 August 2017.

In May 2017, Junefield Building Material further filed an
application to extend the claiming period ended from 30
September 2015 to 31 August 2016 with a revised claim
amount of approximately RMB71,485,000 in respect of the
Second Taiji Arbitration Application and it was successfully
accepted by the Arbitration Commission.

In May 2019, Junefield Building Material received the
arbitral award for the Second Taiji Arbitration Application
(the “Arbitral Award”), pursuant to which, among others,
Lianyuan Steel is liable to pay Junefield Building Material
the compensation for the supply shortfall for the period
from 1 January 2014 to 31 August 2016 amounting to
approximately RMB30,097,000. However, Lianyuan Steel
failed to pay the compensation before 9 June 2019.
Junefield Building Material filed an application for mandatory
execution with the Loudi Intermediate Court which was
accepted on 29 July 2019. Subsequently, Lianyuan Steel
lodged an application for requesting withdrawal of the
Arbitral Award with the Fourth Intermediate People’s Court
of Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing Intermediate Court”) on 5
August 2019, which was rejected by Beijing Intermediate
Court pursuant to court’s ruling dated 29 October
2019. Junefield Building Material ultimately received the
compensation plus related interest on 29 November 2019.

The Group is in the course of seeking legal advice on further
action for possible compensation on the supply shortfall
commenced from 1 September 2016 onward against
Lianyuan Steel and considering filling further applications for
arbitration proceedings (the “Arbitration Application”).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
N EHE—F - F+t-A=+t—BLEFEUABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

38- *5;&2 (nlﬁ)
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(b)

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was
informed by Hunan Taiji that a notice of response to
action (JEFFBAIE) dated 12 February 2019 from the
Loudi Intermediate Court, was received, pursuant to
which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in September 2018
requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due
to the prolonged shareholders’ disputes.

The court hearing of this case has been held on 25
September 2019 and the ruling was given on 19 January
2020, pursuant to which the request for a court judgement
to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan
Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
shareholders’ disputes was rebutted. Lianyuan Steel has
filed an appeal dated 23 January 2020 to the Higher
People’s Court of Hunan Province (“Higher Court”) to
request immediate dissolution of Hunan Taiji.

Junefield Building Material received a civil ruling dated 14
October 2020 issued by the Higher Court, pursuant to which
the Higher Court ruled that the civil ruling dated 19 January
2020 issued by the Loudi Intermediate Court was withdrawn
and Hunan Taiji should be dissolved from the effective date
of the ruling (the “Dissolution Ruling”). The Dissolution Ruling
is final and took effect on 21 October 2020. Subsequently
on 31 October 2020, Junefield Building Material received a
letter from Lianyuan Steel requesting for proceed with the
dissolution of Hunan Taiji.

Based on the legal opinion of the Group’s PRC legal
advisors, Hunan Taiji is entitled to lodge an application with
the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC for requesting
a retrial to withdraw the Dissolution Ruling and rebut the
request made by Lianyuan Steel for court judgement to
dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan Taiji’s
joint venture agreement (the “Retrial Request”). In December
2020, the Group lodged the Retrial Request. On 12 March
2021, notice of acceptance of the Retrial Request was
received from the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC. On
31 May 2021, a civil ruling was received, pursuant to which
the Retrial Request was rejected by the Supreme People’s
Court of the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 1 February 2021, Junefield Building Material received
a civil ruling dated 26 January 2021 issued by the
Loudi Intermediate Court, pursuant to which the Loudi
Intermediate Court ruled that Hunan Taiji failed to
proceed with the dissolution within 15 days pursuant to
the Dissolution Ruling and it accepted the request from
Lianyuan Steel for implementing the Mandatory Dissolution
Ruling by the court, hence Hunan Taiji should proceed to a
mandatory dissolution implemented by the court from the
effective date of this ruling. Based on the legal opinion of
the Group’s PRC legal advisors, the Mandatory Dissolution
Ruling is final and took effect on 26 January 2021.

On 15 April 2021, Loudi Intermediate Court reiterated its
ruling and issued a civil judgement (REREE), pursuant to
which Loudi Intermediate Court implemented the Mandatory
Dissolution Ruling, including, inter alias, the formation of
a dissolution team which was ordered to proceed with
the mandatory dissolution of Hunan Taiji. As a result, the
directors of the Company have concluded that the Group
lost control over Hunan Taiji on 15 April 2021 (Note 11).

Based on the opinions of the Group’s PRC legal advisors,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Mandatory Dissolution Ruling will not affect the possible
Arbitration Application.

In April 2022, the Group received RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,098,000) from the
dissolution team for the first distribution of proceeds from
the mandatory dissolution of Hunan Taiji. Up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
mandatory dissolution of Hunan Taiji is still in progress.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. RRFFA (&)

) REZE—Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HLHF
BEA - EMELRAEEEMELEN
BEHEBELENRDEIISTEARNRRZME
# 2 & M8 A 5]Minera RC S.A.C.I8
R#ETHER P RE £42,614,000
KRB -ZMTAEDANEHER =
——FOAREARITMERT - RN
T - _F—H - Minera RC S.A.C.lg%|
MBS T ARMBELEHRA-ZT ==
F—AZF+—BAZHEH R -BEER
Minera RC SAC. BN T —NLFR
AEBEMELENBRSEENRMSE
BamBEMNERERz— m—RET
TAZRBXZ M E{E41,275,000% &
(Z R 492,483,000 7T) ° Minera RC
SACRZEEEHBBLRE EFF - U
REZBFR REAEELAIAER
R AU TEREZHEERESBE
B M2 BEBHR =T ==
PO At B R EE(E 491,309,000 (B
R 492,549,000 70) 2 5 — REAR BN
ERBITERA - REWEAZEM ZA
ZER ARAEZERE BAREITE
RELRER —RERELZ AL B
g BE ESRMABER  MEREZR
—E-—F+-A=+—BIEEER
MZMR AR B RERBERBELY
2,584,000& M (18 % 1 495,032,000/
JL) °
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38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
two ongoing claims against Minera RC S.A.C., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, totaling
approximately Soles 2,614,000 regarding the fatal accidents
occurred in a mining site operated by the Group in Peru.
Settlement hearings were scheduled to be held in April and
July 2021 for the two cases respectively. In January 2022,
Minera RC S.A.C. received a ruling dated 21 January 2022
issued by a labour court in Peru. According to the ruling,
Minera RC S.A.C. was liable to pay a compensation of
approximately Soles 1,275,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,483,000) to the family of a deceased worker
regarding one of the two fatal accident cases occurred in
a mining site operated by the Group in Peru during 2019.
The management of Minera RC S.A.C. has subsequently
filed an appeal to rebut the ruling as the compensation
should not be fully borne by it since it has insured for the
workers. Meanwhile, there will be a hearing scheduled
to be held in April 2022 for claiming a compensation of
approximately Soles 1,309,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,549,000) regarding the other fatal accident case.
Based on the legal opinion from the legal advisors in Peru,
the directors of the Company have taken the view that since
a ruling has been given by the labour court for one case
and even though there was no result on the appeal, a total
provision of approximately Soles 2,584,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,032,000) for the claims for the two
cases was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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g; NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ?

BHE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLEFEGCBTIE) ~
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. BEAFRXS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Mt E 4R A BT RS R BT FE30 « 38435 & 2 In addition to the transactions detailed in notes 30, 38 and 43 to
RGN AEEBRFNEBERETUTE the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
AR5 : material transactions with related parties during the year:

—E-—%F —E-FF

2021 2020

Bt TER FHT

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

B (£E) AR A YEA Management fees charged by Junefield
BB (Holdings) Limited (i) 1,080 1,080

44 B SR A R A 7 U ERAY Management fees charged by New Silkroad
EEE Culturaltainment Limited (i) 248 689

M EBBREERRA A Management fees income from Macrolink

@ Eok=5:E-3ON International Investment Co. Ltd. (ii) 1,612 2,150
EEE S IERER AT Short-term lease expense charged by

WE MG BAER S FERE T ERER A A (i) = 56
REBEMMHERZEFH Agency commission fee income from

ERZEERARN BEMNTHERZEFMEREZBRA A

REASEBRA (if) 904 1,296
KEFEKBEREGE AT Property management services income from

R W) % E R IRFS U A FEBERIGESRAA v) 13,659 -
KEFEBRIZRAER QA Property management services income from

)2 B R WA FrEBIZER AR AR (v) 658 -
HERBERESTHT Sale of parts of mining equipment to

Total Genius Iron Mining Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.

S.A.C. (i) 183 _
mlJunefield Mining S.A.C. Purchase of mineral concentrates from

BEBE Junefield Mining S.A.C. (i) - 1,281

RPN SRS TR B S E R A One-time handling fee income for provision
—REFEBRA of financial guarantee to Jinzhou Rongxin (iv) = =

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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s BmEMBHRERME (F)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CEBEZ - F+ZA=1+—BHLEFEGETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. BEAFRX S (&) 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() BERFZ2EAXRS (&) (a) Significant transactions with related parties
(continued)
Bzt Notes:

(i) AABRTEFARALRENRARLLE -
Witk (RE) BRAREA EnlEzm - §A
ERBETRATNTKRHE °

(i) ARFEFRATEEBELENZEME
ARTHEAEGELD - BAREBRTIIAL
7 HRBE °

(i) ARRRATEFEARALENRABLE
M Junefield Mining S.A.C.KTotal Genius
Iron Mining S.A.C.# & & 25 #E 25 ©

vy REBEE-ZZ-ZFF+-_A=1+—HBLFE
N AEER—FERTREELETREY
¥ UMERBMNEERBHERAISARKE
8,000,000t (48 5 1 99,568,000/ 7T.) &
HEAMBFAEERETZER REE=
T-NE+_A=+—BLLEER F&£H
IR SRR REESR N R E— R EFEE
AR #120,0007T (AHE R £7136,000%8 7T ) ©

V) ARREFERATEEBEEEINZEHE
AEPHEEERER - BATREHRINA
FAT AT SZHY 165 2% {6k SR AR ©

At 5B (iv) IR B 5 (v) R B E T R 5 TME K
ETRABUATERZFHEBERS -

RTAEB2TEEEABZH

&

(i) Mr. Zhou, a close family member of Mr. Zhou Jianren (an executive
director of the Company), has beneficial interests in Junefield
(Holdings) Limited. The monthly management fees were mutually
agreed between the contracting parties.

(i) Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interests in these related companies. The fees and
prices were mutually agreed between the contracting parties.

(iii) Mr. Zhou, a close family member of Mr. Zhou Jianren (an executive
director of the Company), has beneficial interests in Junefield Mining
S.A.C. and Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C..

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group pledged
certain of its investment properties in favour of a bank as security
for the repayment obligations of Jinzhou Rongxin amounting
to RMB8,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$9,568,000
and related interest. The Group received from Jinzhou Rongxin
one-time handling fee of RMB120,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$136,000) for provision of financial guarantee during the year ended
31 December 2019.

(v) Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interests in these related companies. The fees were
charged pursuant to the terms in the agreements signed between the
contracting parties.

The related party transactions in respect of items (iv) and (v)
above also constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group

—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEEERA Short term employee benefits 2,144 2,292
B B 4 A Post-employment benefits 40 58
ENEEERABCRHERLTE Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 2,184 2,350
B TFrESBABETHNBEILS The above related party transactions with key management
WEBR FmBEFUASTE 2 personnel do not constitute connected transactions or
RO FEBERS continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
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# NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f

BHE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. REHE s z2E€/R T A 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
R EHEERE - SERSMTACZER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
(ERONNE instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
DAEE
FTERHE

BEITA LBEKE
BENER SRR

BE SREE et
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total
FET FERT FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—®B=—F 2021
WEEKT B A RlAIE] & Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary - 50,000 50,000
JE U BR 3R Accounts receivable - - -
BREAEMNRIE - EZe2 Kk Financial assets included in prepayments,

HEMEWRFIBZ ¢ mEE deposits and other receivables - 7,524 7,524
FE UL B8 iE N R FUE Amounts due from related companies = 951 951
FEU IR & A R FRIA Amounts due from an investee company = 18,744 18,744
WAFEGF=BEZETA Financial instruments at fair value through

BEAemI A profit or loss

— FIRAERE (FE) — Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 16,121 - 16,121

—JE LR AEKE () — Unlisted equity investments (PRC) 32,922 - 32,922
R e RIRITHE Cash and bank balances - 114,006 114,006

49,043 191,225 240,268
A FE
FERHE
FHET A LA A
BEanrem FTEH
BE BELEE et
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T 2020
JEWLBR R Accounts receivable = 932 932
BREEBEMRE &R Financial assets included in prepayments,

HthEWRIE 2, R EE deposits and other receivables = 1,081 1,081
FE UL A5 N B X8 Amounts due from related companies - 1,095 1,095
NAFESEBHEESHIA Financial instruments at fair value through

BExrMemIT A profit or loss

— ETRAEKRE (BH) — Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 15,706 = 15,706
R & RIRITHE S Cash and bank balances - 6,893 6,893

15,706 10,001 25,707

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Q\g‘i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E
TBET_—F+A=1+—BLFECHETIIE) '
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. REHE o zem T A (&) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

DEBERATENESRERE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

—E_—F —F-FF

2021 2020

TER FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FESBREX Accounts payable 2,749 4,801
B4 T H At B 5P RRIE K Financial liabilities included in other payables and

EstBEzZe/mBE accruals 34,905 43,946

FTERHEMEES Interest-bearing other borrowings 28,115 28,980

FE 5 B3 R Bl 518 Amounts due to related companies 193,024 27,955

HEBE Lease liabilities 40,764 1,304

299,557 106,986

4. EMTEZAFERAFESE 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EEENE HeLRSEEY  WEHEB Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
NEWETS - EWED - aEEEANZIE - equivalents, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary, accounts
EREMEWRRENESREE  EIUE receivable, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
BANTIIE - ENEIEE AR RIE - JENEE other receivables, amounts due from related companies, amounts
R BBREEEMEMNZELEAEZSR® due from an investee company, accounts payable, financial
BE TEEMESE  EMNBEEAQT BN liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
LHEaE s AT EEEERMEEE - other borrowings, amounts due to related companies and lease

liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts.

SRHEENBBEZATFTERENRXSTER The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
AREETRXBREBITIARE 2B ARE @ Gdlsk at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
EEREHERIN ARG AFEZHERRB current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
S UINE or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were

used to estimate the fair values:

FTIRAEEZ AFEILATSEREAE The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
e KRB ZEEREBHEER LB ZET market prices. The directors believe that the estimated fair values
NEE(BAGEEHBRRAER) RHBATE resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
BH) (WAL FEFEEHEFS T ABREN L the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
TRAEEMmMS ' st AGEBERER)BAE - changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
TR EEBBEARESHASEEEZEE - statement of profit or loss for listed equity investments at FVTPL,

are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BERBBRME (M)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) =

BHE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
M. ST EZRAFEENRAFEESE 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

(88) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AREFEKENRIELTRAKRE - EAERH The Group invests in unlisted equity investments, which represent
MREARENRAER - NEB B LK RE equity interests in Hunan Taiji in the PRC. The Group has
BEFEGEREMGTEITRENDATE - estimated the fair value of the unlisted investments by adjusted

net asset value valuation model.

LNTFEIR—ZE-_—F+_A=+—"HF®@ Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
SR TAMENERTTEREGAERE N valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
NEEHXREDI : sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021:
BEXRFH TR BRE AE
B £ 1l BEmAE HAFENBER
Significant Relationship of
Valuation unobservable unobservable
technique input inputs to fair value
BE=HNFELTREARE DNEEFE HBEEFENQATE HEAEEFEN
AREBNRE REHS -
AFEME
Unlisted equity investments under Quoted price based The fair value of The higher the
Level 3 on net asset value underlying underlying
net asset value net asset value

valuation, the higher
the fair value

TRINRAEEERTAEZ A FEFEDHR © The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments.

E—R E-R E=# et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-B-—F As at 31 December 2021:
+t=A=+—-8:
LAATF{EETE B H& 8t A Financial instruments at FVTPL
Bl emTA
— EIRAREKRE — Listed equity investments 16,121 - - 16,121
—FELEIRAEE — Unlisted equity investments = = 32,922 32,922
16,121 - 32,922 49,043
RZE_ZF As at 31 December 2020:
+=ZA=+—8:
LA AT {EsE B H& 8 E A Financial instruments at FVTPL
Eamem T A
— FARAREKRE — Listed equity investments 15,706 - - 15,706

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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C BAUBBRAME (&)

. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE-T- S+ -A=t+-ALFEGUBTIE) -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
M. ST EZRAFEENRAFEESE 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

(#8) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NEEBEDH(EFE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
RAFEARN  RE=ZRRARXFEAENES The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during
R the year are as follows:
FExT
HK$°000
DAFEFEEEEHFAERZN Unlisted equity investments at fair value through
FETRAKRE profit or loss
RZE_TF—F—HB ZZBE_ZTF At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and
+—A=+—HERZE=-—%—H—H 1 January 2021 _
ERRELENB A RER (HE11) Recognised through deemed disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 11) 14,627
EERRANERN RSB Total gain recognised in the statement of profit or loss 18,295
R-B--F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 32,922
NR—_E - FNN_E_FTEF+_RA=+— The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
B AEBTETRUAFEAENSRE value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
:=§E\ o
RAFE  WEE—FEF LB ZAFE During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
ATEER NMEBANELFEF =R (ZZT=Z measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
F ) o or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).
42. I EREEEBENREBE 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
NEBRESEHEEZBMERAR : miERE The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
e (B R EE R - NS R B R AE RS E market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
@) EERBRLRBESER KREE equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
EEREESEETRESUTISE B A 2 risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
Bt ESRRIRE A EB B I RIBE R 2 E financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
HEEEFE- on the Group’s financial performance.
(a) FIZE (a) Interest rate risk
R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 BHEE At 31 December 2021, the Group’s exposure to the
RBE - NER - BRANEB N EFMF risk of changes in market interest rates was considered
B REE  Fi - AKEBMEEST insignificant in management’s opinion as the Group had
SRHERSHREBWHR BTN - AEBEE no borrowings with floating interest rates as at the year
BIWEE HEFRER - A EEE end. The Group currently does not hedge its exposure to
THERAKRER  WEASTEREZE interest rate risks. However, the management monitors the
HHRERN KRR - interest rate risk exposure closely and will consider hedging

significant interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ﬂ; NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f
- BE_ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HULEFECUBETIIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

42. B EBEEBENREE (&)

AEBEHEHRZFEHRAR - ZFRBRK
BEEBEMERAEMNEEEININEH
EITZHERRE - AREZETREE
REBHURTERWE  MEEFXRD
ZRAMORXZHYAARE - REBKE
TLETT - REXRB LB EERAREY
AARKE - ZBRETINE -

A B B SN IR © AT -
ERETYERINEEAR  LEABE
HERHDEAZINERR -

RRBTES T HE - A RN AR
PR - Bt - HRB T E8EED
e slks - TRBEBREMEEMBE M
FRAEZERT  NEBE R AEIE
(REREERABATEEMEB) &
AEBEZEDENREMEERTAR
KERZAEAEEEH 2 BURE -

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s major operations and businesses are located
in the PRC and Peru and substantially all transactions are
conducted in RMB, Soles and USD. All the assets and
liabilities of these businesses are denominated in RMB,
Soles and USD.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, relevant foreign currency risk
is minimal. Accordingly, their fluctuation is excluded from
the sensitivity analysis. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)
and the Group’s equity.

=, RR %1 AT 5 18 REFEmS
GR4) (&), EAD (R D) *
(Increase)/
Increase/ decrease Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% TFHT TAT
% HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-—F 2021
B ITH AREEE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (81) _
B THARBHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 81 -
—EFTHF 2020
BT ARKEZE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (1,097) -
HETHAREAE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 1,097 -
* TEIERER * Excluding accumulated losses
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Q\g‘i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E
TBET_—F+A=1+—BLFECHETIIE) '
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. BiIREKGEEENREEE (8) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

BEERE - BRNERERI A R In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
FANER  BHERUES T L TIRKE unrepresentative of the inherent exchange risk as the year
B B SN R end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
% (B 4% R B 15 I AN 38 25 2 A B A % Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
EREBUKTFE RERIEHFEELRE S securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
WAL ZREE NZEBE-——FRKR T -F equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
FTZHA=1T—H  ASEEHZRE Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
BREBREY AAATFEFEBEE equity investments classified as financial instruments at
Fit AlBmmem T A2 @RI ARK FVTPL as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The Group’s
B o REBMRBFT Emz ERE T listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are
RRE AR A REIRMEMRE - valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.
AEFBTEFTRME EZIF EHRAER The Group does not actively trade unlisted equity
& - AEEBRYESBARKBBAOMNE investments. The Group currently does not have a hedging
HARE - A ARIEEERSE  IELTIX policy in respect of the risk exposure. The management
AERBEELENRBRKAARE - Bt > I of the Company considers that the risk exposure arising
ERIE TR ERBEBKREDH © from unlisted equity investments is limited and no sensitivity
analysis for unlisted equity investments is therefore
prepared.
RAFEEEORERR IR S HE? The market equity indices for the Stock Exchange, at the
B 45 SRAS - B R FT 2 T SR =R E & close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
HEERBAZFNESHE RHFEEMT : the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest

and lowest points during the year were as follows:

—E-—F &/ & —E-TF =/ &
+=-—A=+-—H High/low +=—A=+—H High/low
31 December —ZE=—% 31 December —E-FF
2021 2021 2020 2020

B 22 B Stock Exchange
— B4 15 &k - Hang Seng Index 23,112 31,085/ 27,147 29,056/
22,745 21,696

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) =
HE_T_—F+_A=+—RHIEFECABTIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREGEEENREE (8) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) REERERR (&) (c)
TRETEMBEEGEHERTE AR
ABMERZEZBERAT RAREZRAF
ESEE% 2 BEE - HREARKRE
RS REARE ZFREEFE -

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

BR B AT 5 18 g m

REE REL(Em) (R D) *
Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss (decrease)
amounts before tax in equity*
FHET FHET FET
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
—E-—F 2021
TEETR - Investments listed in:
BEBE-NUAFEFEAE Hong Kong - financial
T ABENERT A instruments at FVTPL 16,121 806/(806) =
T -TF 2020
BELETR : Investments listed in:
EE-UAFEF=EEE Hong Kong - financial
BT ABaNEmTA instruments at FVTPL 15,706 785/(785) -
TBERGER Excluding accumulated losses
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) E
BE—T-—F+-A=t+—BLEEFEGUETHIE) _
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREGEEENREE (8) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

AEBFHBRFTHEHSMEEZ A E & The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
B UABREESESRIHANEEEE periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
B\ E B IR - 37 ¥ B R K E T B B counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
f% BEAh - 7N [ FE HA 4 1R B Uk AR provision is made for possible defaults. In addition, the

DA E S EELRBZ - UERRT Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
TLB(@,MIE\{/EHng]ﬁﬁEﬂ; o individual accounts receivable to ensure that adequate

impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

rEBEMeREE (BRASMAS The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
EBY  PREEMKIE - - ZehEM comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
FEWRBEBNESRMEE - EWEEDRIK included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
IEDA&JEHM&&%SA* WIE)MEERE amounts due from related companies and amounts due

RHYFEANMES AR ERESE from an investee company, arises from default of the
E’SaZ?IE\E’\JE\EEE ° counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the

carrying amounts of these instruments.

HRAEERERARAEEEZE=F Since the Group trades only with recognised and
ETEE  WEFTERAR R_ZT—_— creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
FRZZZEFTZA=1+—H K& collateral. At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
ERAEPHAEERAARP I EES significant concentrations of credit risk arising from the
ERIEERBRSESFHIER - Group’s accounts receivable that were due from the Group’s

largest customer or the Group’s five largest customers.

AN B EE20 P BE - AN B P UK BR The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
HRERBHELFTERBEEBE - credit losses for accounts receivable as disclosed in note
20.
Z A FEURBR XA SNEY & Bh 3 B DA N BA 7 For financial assets other than accounts receivable and
ERELY  REBEEEVRERRZ for financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
BRI - RS ERE HHE probability of default upon initial recognition of the asset and
ZECERREACKEZEIEN - AT whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
HEERREECKEELIN NEFH on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
HREBEERHAERZEERENNR assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
f ER ) bR FE R RS Y E L BB 1T ELBR o the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
REBeERSERA XIFARTE L= asset or underlying loan as at the reporting date with the risk
B o REBRERERERAING SR EE of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
VA % 87 78 2 AR A 49 E% F PO (& 5> 8 DA S et available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
HEERR &N E S BT EE information. The Group uses four categories for financial
B o assets other than accounts receivable and for financial

guarantee contract which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each of those
categories.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f

BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HBLEFRECAETIE) "
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. BEEKREEEWREE (&) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) EERE (&) (d) Credit risk (continued)
o AEEERIENESR BRAHGFEFENER
Category Group definition of category Basis for recognition of ECL
BHIH REEFHENORBRTKN - B3 &8 B RIE 12 A FEHEEEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  12-month ECL

not have any past due amounts

7 &¢ BnEREEERREEREEZM EEAFERRAEEBE - RMERARE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

since initial recognition

EHN FRBBETNEECERRE EEFEHREAEEEE - ERME
Default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
impaired
i FREBRETEBABRERENMBRE  MAEE S EMH
Y [ SR IR ) 7 B S
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

BEEREURRFEAERERS Maximum exposure and year-end staging

#

TREIR - E-_—FR-_ZBE_FTF The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
T A=+ —ARBEARSEMNEEER exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
BHEHNERHEELRESEZERE H which is mainly based on past due information unless other
SR EIER AER  BRIEEMERE information is available without undue cost or effort, as at
BARNETERK AR HENA S - B 31 December 2021 and 2020. The amounts presented are
Bz o ISR S A EENER carrying amounts for financial assets and the maximum
SR BERS NS EERR exposure to credit risk for financial guarantee contract.

Wy e

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AR BEEKE (&)

’, ' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
TBET_—F+-A=+t—RBILFEGETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. BRI EE B KR BUR ()

(d) EE=RE (&)
B 5 B B LA R R OF A B Y B R 7

AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

2 (&) (continued)
128 AR H
EEER ERGENRNEERR
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
E-K& gl BEZKR B A% @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
THT T T THL THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB--F+-A=1+-8 Asat31December 2021
KERBARNT 2 Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary™ 50,000 - - - 50,000
FE M BR T Accounts receivable* o - - - -
BREBFTE &ER Financial assets included in prepayments,
HtEWFIE e RAE deposits and other receivables
~ - Normal* 7,524 - - - 7,524
FERBEARFE Amounts due from related companies
—~E&" ~ Normal** 951 - - - 951
Rl R & A RIFUE Amounts due from an investee company
—E&" ~ Normal™* 18,744 - - - 18,744
B e RRITEH Cash and bank balances
— K@ - Not yet past due 114,006 - - - 114,006
191,225 - - - 191,225
R_FE-FE+-A=1—H Asat31 December 2020
MR Accounts receivable* - - - 932 932
AREEMNTE RER Financial assets included in prepayments,
HitERZE 2 REE deposits and other receivables
—FE" - Normal™* 1,081 - - - 1,081
EWEENEFE Amounts due from related companies
—EF - Normal** 1,005 - - - 1,005
ReRFTEH Cash and bank balances
—KaH ~ Not yet past due 6,893 = - = 6,893
FETEEARMEART  Guarantees given to a bank in connection with
RONER facilities granted to a related company
-BENARNENBES - Guaranteed portion of facilties drawn by
BERHDS arelated company
~RBH — Not yet past due 9,592 = = - 9,592
18,661 - - 932 19,503

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F #



42. BRI EE B KR BUR ()

(d)

(e)

FERR (&)

R 5 B R F RS
X (&)
C BBAREEARERC ORI -

ERRBEREBRIENENES S MBER
R0 B FE -

- BREEBEMNFEA REREGRKRAZE
BMEE  BREEQFZANKLEEHIRE
RAFBEENABH AT EEHXPASRE
ENEERR A MRBERRELEE LT
HEREBGRARIER] - TR @A
ENEREESREAIFR] -

REE & ks
AEBCBRDEMERERDESS
Ko RREARTERREFHENENE
B HEEHZRBESHER - R]IT
R—REBEDERERERS

REERDESEARE  AEBERK
HRRX KPR RREEEY M
ZKREDERBRRRARHTAKEZE

BrESRERRLBEESRERDZY
@,

TRETASEZ SR A BN RS HE
BRERBAORFTENRZEIHA -
TERAMBERAOABN B RERE
RRXHUTHRARSEREARERE
BERZBI B AR 2 BIEREE NN

REEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

s 5.V

REMBHRRME (B) )

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8BUFEUNETIE) ~

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

*

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information on the ECL calculation is
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

- The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and amounts due from an investee company is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short,
medium and longer term. Banking and general facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments. The
amount included below for financial guarantee contract was
the maximum amount the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount was claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HOE B EARNAERAF




s AN B®REMNE (K)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TBET_—F+A=1+—BLFECHETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. BRI EE B KR BUR ()

(e) RBEZ R (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

BRER®R =E2t1+=
ZEANRA @A UR —Z5fF BB F @t
On
demand
or less 3 to
than less than 1to5 Over
3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
FAT FAT T T T T FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—B-—F 2021
FETER X Accounts payable 2,749 - - - 2,749
BEEEMERMINIE  Financial liabilities included in
LEAEEZS R other payables and accruals
BfE 34,905 - - - 34,905
HEBE Lease liabilities 3,906 5,584 20,002 24,531 54,023
FTERHEMEER Interest-bearing other
borrowings 28,115 - - - 28,115
e 3 E A B 5B Amounts due to related
companies 193,024 - - - 193,024
262,699 5,584 20,002 24,531 312,816
—T-THF 2020
FEERER Accounts payable 4,801 = = = 4,801
BEEHEMERMINIE  Financial liabilities included in
LEGTEEZE /M other payables and accruals
BB 43,946 - - - 43,946
HE&E Lease liabilities 249 746 332 - 1,327
FFEHEMEER Interest-bearing other
borrowings 28,980 - - - 28,980
FES B E R R A Amounts due to related
companies 27,955 - - - 27,955
MR TEER W Guarantees given to a bank
&L TRITH in connection with facilities
ER granted to a related company 9,692 - - - 9,592
115,523 746 332 - 116,601

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REBMBHRRME (F) 22
ﬂ; NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) f
5 HE—_T-—F+-RA=+—HBIFECUETIIE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

MEREEEEENREE(E)

AREERER Y B ABERHAR
B R RS MR B ) R
HERZARLE  UXHEXBRE
1R B R -

RERLAPBELEE  FAKEHEH
ERABRREKNBREZEBHBTHK
- BE_R_—FR_F_FF+=
A=1T—HALFE UEREEEAZ
BiR BERSBRRIELES -

AEBENAERS Y @St X (ERF
BB aRD) EREER - B FR
REEE (BRENRER ﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁﬂ

AND POLICIES (continued)

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital using the debt-to-total equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including amounts due to

BEHMER)BRRERRSEEY: related companies and interest-bearing other borrowings)
less cash and cash equivalents.
R—_EBE-_—FER_T_FTF+=HA The debt-to-total equity ratios at 31 December 2021 and
=+—H Zfiﬁ‘%fjﬁm WmEERWMT ¢ 2020 were as follows:
—E-—F —EZEF
2021 2020
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIEE Total borrowings 221,139 56,935
B IREeERREEFEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (113,943) (6,830)
B Net debt 107,196 50,105
i Total equity 82,915 119,002
B AR X Debt-to-total equity ratio 129% 429%

3. HEME AT 43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

REEZE-ZT_FEF+-_A=+—HILFE
A Topshine Reward Limited ([ Topshine |)
(XRRzEEZEMBRR) HEERE]
VEHMAZZE_ZTFNLA_BNEE KR
LA H & Genuine Crystal Limited ([ Genuine
Crystal |) R EW B R A H 2 ‘*B%$E§* g
EEREBERS00BT(ZE_FHE
£I1E]) - Genuine Crystal® — K& &K

AN A HET B R R e[ Mighty Comforts
Limited ' — X EBRZHSFMKS 2%
BER AT (n)?’F'JF'?l[%\—?EI?E’AT —RKR
Eﬁ%.&%ﬂ%ﬁziz&é% N A s Ka(i) Profit
Land Property Development PROLANDPRO
SA —RREAZBFEMKL AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F %

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Topshine Reward
Limited (“Topshine”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement dated
2 September 2020 with a related party, to dispose the entire
equity interests in Genuine Crystal Limited (“Genuine Crystal”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal 2020”) at a consideration of
HK$5,000. Genuine Crystal is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries include (i) Mighty Comforts Limited, an
investment holding company incorporated in the BVI, (i) Profit
Land International Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong and (iii) Profit Land Property
Development PROLANDPRO S.A., a company incorporated in
Ecuador.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoEBREALAAERLF



S BEMBHRERME (FE)
. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CEBEZ - F+ZA=1+—BHLEFEGETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. HEMWB A 7 (&) 43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
:g_iiu%%%ﬁeﬁ_ T -_ZEFNA = The Disposal 2020 was duly completed on 2 September 2020.
HEATHK - — = _gﬁﬁ’%$ﬁa’]uﬁzﬁ?’l7§j The gain on the Disposal 2020 amounted to approximately
493,902,000/ c R E-_EFHEFIH HK$3,902,000. Following the completion of the Disposal 2020,
TR - ANEE R Genuine Crystal & H i B the Group ceased to hold any interest in Genuine Crystal and its
RAIP I BEAEMER - subsidiaries

—T-THF
HEEIE
& B H
Disposal
2020
At date of
disposal
FET
HK$'000

BERAE Assets and liabilities
e RIRTTEH Cash and bank balances 44
B RIEREFAE Other payables and accruals (3,880)
(3,836)
EE 34, %% B et Exchange fluctuation reserve (61)
HE Wz (B a5) Gain on disposal (note 5) 3,902
B

XARAER: Satisfied by:

HeRE Cash consideration 5
EHALENBEATNBESRESESEYH R An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
TR ¢ respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

—EETF
2020
F&T
HK$'000

ReRE Cash consideration 5

HERIRE RIRITHEER Cash and bank balances disposed of (44)

FRLENBRARNE S ES Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

ZEMHRLIFE of the disposal of subsidiaries (39)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
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mEMBRERME (E)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_—F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. NN T Z BB AR R T 44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
BEARARRREAMERE 2 P BRI ER Information about the statement of financial position of the
ZERIOT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-—fF —EFTF
2021 2020
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BE RERE Property, plant and equipment 4 9
ERERE Right-of-use assets 1,254 1,314
REB AR Z2&/E Investments in subsidiaries 390 2,405
WHERE ARG & Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary 50,000 -
EMEBEERE Total non-current assets 51,648 3,728
REBEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 21,052 25,759
FERFIE - e R EMmEWERIA Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,967 461
FE WL B BB A R IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 80,492 80,551
INAFEFEBEEZE ;T AEBRE Financial instruments at fair value through
MEmT A profit or loss 16,121 15,706
He MIB1THE S Cash and bank balances 91,851 209
mE & E LA Total current assets 212,483 122,686
REBEE Current liabilities
H &R R B BIE Other payables and accruals 15,442 13,676
FFERHMEER Interest-bearing other borrowing 6,115 5,980
HEBE Lease liabilities 885 973
FE B8 sE A Al 518 Amount due to a related company 150,000 -
JE 1 BT B8 A ) 3R 7E Amounts due to subsidiaries 10,240 10,189
mEBERE Total current liabilities 182,682 30,818
REBEEFE Net current assets 29,801 91,868
EERAERABAR Total assets less current liabilities 81,449 95,596
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HERE Lease liabilities 375 331
EEFRE Net assets 81,074 95,265
= Equity
ANREEAEGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
&$ Share capital 120,625 120,625
515 Reserves (39,551) (25,360)
Mg Total equity 81,074 95,265
B RiE
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
5% =
Director Director
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) :::-

NBz-—2-—&1+-A=+—B1%E OUBTHIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. ERATZHBRRE (8) 44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
Wt - Note:
AKABFEERENT ¢ A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
B 7 % 18 R Bt
Share
premium
account Total
FHET FAET
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
RZZT=ZF—A—H At 1 January 2020 163,910 6,362
FEXHAL AR Total comprehensive expense for the year - (31,722)
AT _TEFE+_A=+—HRK At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
—ZT=—4%—H—H 163,910 (25,360)
FRE2EMAXAE Total comprehensive expense for the year - (14,191)
R=B=—%+=-BA=+—H At 31 December 2021 163,910 (39,551)
45. HEESBRRE 45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
GEMERRN _ZE_—_FOA_-_+NLHE The consolidated financial statements were approved and
BE O E IR - authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2022.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BB 2D
g; PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES f

REBR -_E-_—F+-_A=+—HB2REME

Details of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2021

EIRUNNE are as follows:
BREEEE
i B (FEFHXK) THE 3 Al Jii RS
Approximate
gross floor area Category of
Location (square meter) the lease term Use
Office units 708, 728, 731, 732, B b R T A I [ 851 4 b {5 A A SES
734, 735, 1132, TR IR EF KR FHR T MM E Commercial
1510 and 1516 of Tower 1 HBESE—E =A=-t+—BE"

Junefield Plaza 708 ~ 728 ~ 731 » Land use rights
No. 6 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie 732 734 735" for a term expired on
Xi Cheng District, Beijing 1132 - 1510 21 March 2044
the PRC 1516 E N By
Office units 725-729 on Level 7 A B JE R T PRI = 744 =+ i {55 R A SES
and 917 on Level 9 of Tower 2 TR FIINRET T 5% FHR T E Commercial
Junefield Plaza HBREISE & =A=Z+—HE®
No. 10 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie CBT725ET729FE K Land use rights
Xi Cheng District, Beijing NBNTERRNEN for a term expired on

the PRC 21 March 2044

o~ MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A TEHBHE
% FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY E

RE RESULTS
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—EB-—F —_T-TF —_T-NEF —T-NFE —T—+F

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(&%) (=5)) (&E7)) (&£ &E7))
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
REBELEES Continuing operations
A Revenue 486,321 262,463 337,839 184,704 36,275
BELEEK 2 Loss before tax from
Br T Al S 18 continuing operations (33,680) (51,743) (77,979) (80,563) (13,254)
FriefiEe,  (FAx) Income tax credit/(expense) 1,458 (904) 3,524 (1,121) (4,690)
BEREERKZ Loss for the year from
FEEBE continuing operations (32,222) (52,647) (74,455) (81,684) (17,944)
ERIEREER Loss for the year from
FEERE discontinued operations (8,793) (20,799) (24,164) (50,216) (44,918)
FEEE Loss for the year (36,015) (73,446) (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862)
FE{L Attributable to:
ZIN/NETE7F SN Owners of the Company (32,552) (64,848) (88,810)  (111,784) (44,895)
FEVE R FE = Non-controlling interests (3,463) (8,598) (9,809) (20,116) (17,967)
(36,015) (73,446) (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862)
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=HA=+-—H
At 31 December
—EBE-—F —E-EFF ZT-NEF ZE-NF ZT—tF
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FET FAT T T T T FH T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEHBE Total assets 428,059 268,582 329,261 393,394 440,295
BELRE Total liabilities (345,144)  (149,580)  (150,294)  (133,527)  (145,647)
82,915 119,002 178,967 259,867 294,648
E(ERER Equity attributable to:
KARER A Owners of the Company 82,915 106,547 159,101 229,684 241,836
FE 1 AR A 2 Non-controlling interests - 12,455 19,866 30,183 52,812
82,915 119,002 178,967 259,867 294,648
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